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Introduction 

Central Iowa Power Cooperative (CIPCO) is an electric generation and transmis
sion cooperative supplying the wholesale electric needs of 15 rural electric coopera
tives and one municipal cooperative in the state of Iowa. The service territory of the 
CIPCO Systems stretches 300 miles diagonally across the state from Dubuque on the 
Mississippi River to Shenandoah in the southwest and the Missouri border on the 
south, ultimately supporting the electric needs of over 200,000 Iowans.  

To provide the capacity and energy required by the CIPCO Systems, CIPCO has 
ownership in the Duane Arnold Energy Center, the Louisa Generating Station, 
Council Bluffs Unit #3, and Summit Lake Generating Station. CIPCO leases Fair 
Station from Eastern Iowa Light and Power Cooperative and purchases small 
amounts of hydro-electric power from the Western Area Power Administration.  

CIPCO is a member of the Mid-Continent Area Power Pool (MAPP), a regional 
electric power network serving 16 million in 900,000 square miles in the upper 
Midwest and Canada. Membership in the North American Electric Reliability 
Council (NERC) extends to CIPCO through MAPP. NERC is a federation of electric 
utilities dedicated to ensuring the continued balance and reliability of the bulk 
electric system in North America.  

The wholesale electricity needed by the CIPCO Systems is carried from the power 
plants to nearly 250 local distribution substations over 2,000 miles of transmission 
lines and 34 high voltage substations. CIPCO's transmission facilities are also inter
connected throughout the state of Iowa with those of investor-owned utilities, 
allowing many opportunities within the network to exchange resources and 
support the statewide system.  

CIPCO is committed to providing to the CIPCO Systems dependable wholesale 
electric power at Stabilized Rates with superior Quality of Service through the 
proficiency of its People and Systems.
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In order to prepare Central Iowa 
Power Cooperative (CIPCO) for the 
next decade, many steps have been 
taken by the Board of Directors and 
management to establish an organiza
tion able to meet future challenges and 

opportunities. Part of any planning 
process involves savoring successes, 
and perhaps, recollecting disappoint
ing results. Through these experiences 
CIPCO's Board and staff have acquired 
a base of knowledge and a mode of op
eration that has prepared them well to 

face the challenges ahead.  
In 1946 CIPCO was organized by 

eight member distribution cooperatives 
to supply their electrical needs. Be
tween 1946 and 1982, seven additional 
rural electric cooperatives and one 

municipal electric cooperative were 
added to the system. To supply the 

capacity and energy required by over 
200,000 Iowans across the state, CIPCO 
has ownership in coal-fired, nuclear, 
oil/gas combustion turbines, and die
sel power plants and leases additional 
generating facilities.  

Since 1946 CIPCO has contracted 
with Iowa Electric Light and Power 
Company through an Operating and 
Transmission Agreement for the op

erations and maintenance of CIPCO's 
original system, called the Integrated 
Area. Through merger and member
ship application the system has ex

tended outside this Integrated Area.  
Two operating centers are maintained 
in this expanded area to provide serv
ice to the entire system. The Creston 
Office in the western part of the state 

and the Wilton Office in the eastern 
area allow CIPCO to better meet the

A Word from the President and General Manager

needs of the total system. To carry on 
the daily operations of CIPCO nearly 
100 employees staff the operating of
fices, generating plants and headquar
ters facility.  

The services provided by CIPCO 
as the power supplier for the CIPCO 
Systems go beyond ensuring electrical 

Ensuring the 
quality of life in 

rural Iowa 
involves 
not only 

maintaining 
Stabilized 
Rates, but 
providing 
Quality of 

Service through 
the proficiency 

of People 
and Systems.99 

service to its membership. CIPCO 
provides operating and technical main
tenance functions, marketing and pub
lic relations expertise, a computer sup
port system, training opportunities and 

more.  
In 1986 CIPCO expanded its sup

port system to the CIPCO Systems by 
becoming a founding member of the

Iowa Area Development Group 
(IADG). CIPCO is committed to pursu
ing economic development opportuni
ties through IADG. The success of 
IADG will ensure growth and enhance
ment of the rural economy by provid
ing jobs and security for Iowans into 
the 1990's and beyond.  

The utility industry today has a 
great deal of interest in diversification.  
A need to levelize the highs and lows in 

power usage over the past several years 
has prompted many electric utilities to 
invest in other industry and business.  
CIPCO continues to explore diversifi
cation alternatives utilizing Central 
Iowa Energy Cooperative (CIECO).  

It has always been the goal of 

CIPCO to provide a dependable, eco
nomical source of wholesale electric 

service for its member systems while 
maintaining its integrity and financial 
stability. That is still CIPCO's goal.  
However, the scope of providing this 

service has broadened. Ensuring the 
quality of life in rural Iowa involves not 
only maintaining Stabilized Rates, but 
providing Quality of Service through 
the proficiency of People and Systems.  
CIPCO's strong leadership position in 
the utility industry also assures our 
membership that we will be there with 
them through the 1990's and beyond.  

James Wenstrand, President 

Dennis L. Murdock, 
General Manager
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"A new era 
began in March 

of 1989 with 
the selection of 

Dennis L. Murdock 
as Executive 

Vice President 
and General 

Manager99 

The.CIPCO Executive Committee 
from the left: Vice President John 

Heineman, Secretary-Treasurer 
Richard Mickelson, President James 

Wenstrand, Assistant Secretary
Treasurer Carl Horman, and General 

Manager Dennis Murdock.

CIPCO's history involves eras of 
change which have left it stronger 
and a leader in the industry. A new 
era began in March of 1989 with the 
selection of Dennis L. Murdock as 
Executive Vice President and General 
Manager. As a 21-year veteran of the 

organization, Mr. Murdock has been 
involved in the events as CIPCO 
progressed through the 70's and 80's, 
and he will now lead CIPCO into the 

90's. To ensure that a strong corpo
rate organization will support CIPCO 
in the next decade, several major 
steps have been taken.

Economic and political uncer
tainty created a wholesale shift in 
marketing trends in the 1970's. The 
business community failed to antici
pate the impact of outside influence! 
such as the energy crisis, on its 
profits. Many businesses sacrificed 
long-term growth for short term 
profits. Inflation heightened profits 

and marketing was no longer a 
priority.  

The recession in the early 1980 
changed all of that. The 1980 Censu 
revealed that deep shifts were

John Heineman, Jr.  
Greene County Rural 
Electric Cooperative

Joe U. Konner 
Guthrie County Rural 
Electric Cooperative

James B. Paper Dale R. Newman 

Marshall County Rural Maquoketa Valley Run 

Electric Cooperative Electric Cooperative



occurring in the marketplace. The 
customer base was changing. Com
petition, deregulation and technologi
cal advances were affecting all phases 
of the business community. Many 
had lost track of who their customers 
were and most certainly what their 
needs were. It became evident that 
long term planning and development 
of marketing strategies would be the 
key to meeting the challenges of the 
1990's and the 21st century.

The Executive Committee 
and General Manager meet 
to discuss policy and future 

planning with the 
assistance of corporate 

counsel, John Ward. From 
the left, Carl Horman, 

Richard Mickelson, Dennis 
Murdock, John Heineman, 

James Wenstrand and 
John Ward.

G. Franklin Walter Eldo H. Meyer 
Adams County Cooperative Benton County Electric 

Electric Company Cooperative Association

Melvin W. Neil James W. Van Ryswyk 
Buchanan County Rural Clarke Electric 

Electric Cooperative Cooperative, Inc.

Lawrence L. vuinn 
Eastern Iowa Light and 

Power Cooperative

t-ar t . La.nman 
Farmers Electric 

Cooperative, Inc.

james Y. vvenstranc Carl D. Horman Richard G. Mickelson Dale E. Hawkins 
Nyman Electric Pella Cooperative Rideta Electric South Iowa Municipal Electric 

Cooperative Electric Association Cooperative, Inc. Cooperative Association

Wayne Wilcox 
T.I.P. Rural 

Electric Cooperative
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Myrna Fisher 
conducted 
cooking 

demonstrations 
throughout the 
CIPCO System 

in the fall of 
1989.

As CIPCO management 
watched these trends evolving, it 
became apparent that the cooperative 
needed to consider some long-term 
strategic planning. Departmental 
managers and senior staff members 
met with the General Manager to 
address industry trends affecting 
CIPCO's future. The process in
volved a situational analysis of where 
CIPCO has been, where it is today 
and where it will be tomorrow.  

The process of setting goals and 
objectives was begun as part of a long 
term project and three strategic areas 
were identified: Stabilized Rates, 
Quality of Service, and People and 
Systems.  

Stabilized Rates can be 
achieved by simultaneously working 
to minimize costs and maximize

revenues. CIPCO must also be aware 
of the competition. It is CIPCO's 
intention to achieve and maintain a 
favorable competitive position 
through value-added marketing 
strategies and by holding future 
wholesale rate increases at a level not 
to exceed the rate of inflation.  

Quality of Service encompasses 
reliability of service, quality of electric 
power supply and quality of customer 
service. Reliability addresses the 
frequency and length of system 
outages. Preventing even momentary 
service interruptions and short 
durations of voltage fluctuations are 
crucial in today's world of high 
technology. Quality of customer 
service challenges CIPCO to better 
meet the members' needs and im
prove communication and quality of 
workmanship.  

People and Systems is the work 
force and systems (equipment, 
organizational structure, policies and 
procedures, etc.) necessary to carry 
out present and future operations.  
CIPCO's effectiveness in staffing and 
development of systems will be 
critical to the successful achievement 
of the established objectives of 
Stabilized Rates and Quality of 
Service. One of CIPCO's greatest 
assets has always been its people and 
the cooperative relationship among 
them. CIPCO's staff works as a 
supportive unit and shares the 
responsibilities and obligations of 
serving the members. Equipping the 
staff with electronic systems and an 
efficient internal network of policies 
and procedures enables CIPCO to 
effectively meet the needs of the 
CIPCO Systems.



Through a system of rebates CIPCO assists the member systems in offering 
special incentive programs to promote the efficient use of electricity.
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The staff of CIPCO's 
Marketing/Communications 

Department discuss strategies.  
From left, Secretary Kathy 

Trump, Manager of Marketing 
Craig Fricke, Corporate 

Communications Specialist 
Joyce Haugen, Secretary Donna 

Nederhiser, and Marketing 
Coordinator Rich Peterson.

It became evident by the mid 
1980's that the CIPCO System must 
gain a greater understanding and 
commitment for marketing. By 1986, 
marketing had been elevated from 
that of a sales function to an overall 
planning process. CIPCO's Strategic 
Marketing Plan, published in 1985, 
provided a concise review of its 
situation, documented measurable 
system-wide goals over a five-year 
period, and outlined strategies and 
programs that would be imple
mented to achieve the stated goals.  

Much of what was learned from 
the strategic planning efforts con
ducted throughout the late 1980's 
continues to form a basis for our 
future marketing plans. As we look

ahead to the 1990's, marketing must 
assume a far more important role 
throughout the CIPCO System than 
has been customary. Increasing 
competitive pressures, coupled with 
customer's demands, will promote 
marketing to a central role in the 
organization at the distribution and 
G&T levels. Increased emphasis will 
be placed on building a customer
oriented environment within the 
organization. Success will be directly 
related to our ability to ascertain and 
understand the wants and needs of 
our member consumers. In addition, 
a concerted effort must be made to 
better understand our competitors 
including their significant strengths, 
weaknesses, and strategies.  

The demands of the market
place in the 1990's will require 
constant innovation with a heavy 
emphasis on research and develop
ment and test marketing of possible 
new programs and services.  

The key for CIPCO and its 
members, then, is linking the market
ing efforts to the financial goals of the 
organizations. This implies increased 
levels of accountability for Directors, 
management, and employees. Em
ployees must be trained and empow
ered to meet customer needs in an 
overall effort to attain pre-deter
mined, measurable goals and objec
tives.  

T.I.P. REC lineman Don 
Coburn makes final 
adjustments while 

securing the transformer 
to a pole.
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CIPCO's Marketing Analysis 
and Planning Steering Committee 
recognized that a strong position in 
the marketplace was essential to 
future successes. CIPCO was given 
the charge to assist the member 
systems with the development of 
individual marketing plans and then 
to support these plans with specific 
goals and objectives. Through this 
teamwork, members' needs can be 
identified and met.  

CIPCO's Board of Directors 
approved a rebate program to be 
extended to the members or trade 
allies as a marketing incentive to pro
mote the efficient use of electricity.  

Originally CIPCO incorporated 
rebates for the purpose of drawing 
attention to the benefits of programs 
and services that the distribution 

1. A hand-held reader is 
connected to a meter 
equipped to retrieve data 
electronically.

Load data is transmitted over the 
telephone lines the same day as the 
meter is read through a modem linked to 
CIPCO's computer.

cooperatives could offer to the 
member. The members' advantage 
was a reduction in the initial pur
chase price for state-of-the-art high 
efficiency equipment, thereby mak
ing the investment more plausible.  

Relatively high competitive 
pricing and market skimming yielded 
early short term success. However, 
with the advent of soft competitive 
prices matched with market satura
tion of these targeted electric users, 
the market began to decline.  

Recent rebate enhancements 
enable cooperatives to meet the 
competition head on and stimulate 
significant activity in the area of 
adding new loads to the system.  
Cooperatives can now use rebates 
within their service area in whatever 
manner is most beneficial. Some may



wish to use them for short-term 
promotions or as billing credits.  
They may vary the allocations or 
issue them to trade allies. Unlike the 
permanency of special rates, rebates 
have the unique flexibility of chang
ing to meet specific requirements.  
The general public is conditioned to 

Electronic metering packages 
represent the most efficient 
way to retrieve accurate, 

reliable load data-from the 
meters installed at the 

distribution substations.

this procedure through its continued 
use in other industries.  

Current research indicates that 
not all members are motivated by 
rebates; therefore it is important for 
cooperatives to offer a menu of 
programs to target these individuals.  
The same research tells us that 
members under age thirty-five who 
do not farm will react very favorably 
towards rebate incentives. Members 
often check with friends and neigh
bors about a purchase, and they want 
the latest technologies. These market 
segments can be reached with 
newsletter testimonials and promo
tion of electricity's high tech image.  

CIPCO believes the member 
systems now have the flexibility at 
their disposal to leverage success in 
the nineties. With marketing plans 

3. Lynn Martin and Don 
Chaon review 
information received 
through the telephone 
link from the member 
system to the CIPCO 
computer. The data is 
then processed by the 
computer in order 
that appropriate 
reports can be 

-generated.  

4. Suzanne Hawley and John Staschke 
use the data collected from each metering 
point to prepare the monthly wholesale 
power bill for each CIPCO System.

being developed and a system of 
rebates available to the CIPCO 
Systems, Quality of Service comes 
into focus.  

Even though the 1989 Opera
tions and Maintenance budget was 
not increased over 1988, staff was not 
satisfied with maintaining the system 
at the same level. Through resource
fulness and ingenuity, CIPCO moved 
ahead in its efforts to elevate the 
system to a higher state of reliability.  

In addition to an aggressive 
new-to-replace-old (NTRO) transmis
sion and substation upgrade pro
gram, major maintenance took place 
in 1989 on 175 miles of older trans
mission line. "Clear cut" right-of
way clearing on 200 miles of line will 
reduce line-to-tree contact and 
momentary service interruptions.
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Increased substation inspec
tions, infrared surveys and combus
tible gas testing will help identify 
problems early and allow for correc
tion before service is interrupted.  

Improved system maintenance 
and NTRO programs initiated in 1987 
and continuing into the future are, as 
evidenced in the table below, making 
siginificant improvements in the 
Quality of Service for the CIPCO 
Systems.

5 Year Av 

1985 1986 1987 1988 1989

erage Outage Time 

0 Average Outage Hrs per 
Member per Year 

E Average Outage Hrs. per 
Member per Year W/O 
Storms

It is becoming increasingly 
difficult to get parts for some of the 
older equipment on the CIPCO 
system. Therefore, major substation 
modifications are being performed at 
these facilities. In 1989 work was 
completed at the Dundee, Wyoming, 
Coggon and Grand Junction Substa
tions.  

At the Dundee Substation the 
capacity of the station was doubled in 
the modification, thereby providing 
adequate transformation for the 
members in the area. Modifications 
such as these will continue across the 
system to update aging equipment.  

Construction began in 1989 on a 
3.5 acre site near Riverside for 
CIPCO's new Iowa Junction 69 kV 
Substation. This station will provide 
switching for 69 kV lines from the 
Hills and Muscatine Substations to 
support the area.  

Quality of Service goes beyond 
service reliability. A Distribution 
Substation Technical Assistance 
Program was established in 1989 to 
provide technical assistance and test 
equipment for the design, operation 
and maintenance of the member 
system distribution substations. This 
program will be a valuable tool in the 
endless task of minimizing equip
ment failure which affects the mem
bers' rates and service reliability.  

Area Supervisor Jim Scott, left, 
and Transmission Engineer 

Marlon Vogt, right, confer with 
Dick Anderson, Manager of 

Operations



In keeping with the corporate 
philosophy that CIPCO's most impor
tant asset is its People and support 
Systems, several new systems were 
put in place to enable staff to perform 
their work more effectively and with 
greater efficiency.  

Forty obsolete billing meters on 
the CIPCO System have been re
placed to date with electronic meter
ing devices. These new meters will 
ensure greater reliability and accu
racy. This program will continue 
until all of CIPCO's metering points 
are equipped with the new metering 
packages.  

An energy accounting system, 
ENERACC, was developed to pro
vide checks and balances and greater 
accuracy of the members' wholesale 
power bills. ENERACC also assesses 
the total system energy requirements 
and losses for reporting load to the 
five investor-owned utilities with 
which CIPCO is interconnected.  

An Operations Safety Commit
tee was appointed and completed the 
General Safety Procedures manual 
describing safe work rules for all 
operations personnel. A PCB and 
Spill Cleanup Manual was written as 
a safety guide for employees han
dling polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) 
oil and to prevent spilled oil from en
tering area water systems. Adding 
these Systems to the tools available to 
staff greatly enhances their ability to 
ensure greater Quality of Service to 
the CIPCO Systems.  

The Computer-Aided Drafting 
(CAD) system continues to be an 
invaluable System for the staff. All 
design and construction drawings 
needed for the new Iowa Junction 69 
kV substation were produced on the

CAD System. Mapping of CIECO 
properties in the Lake Panorama area 
was completed, utilizing United 
States Geological Survey maps as the 
starting point.  

Diagrams for key metering 
points were developed on CAD to 
document abnormal and unique 
metering arrangements. Diagrams of 
the distribution cooperative delivery 
point substations are being prepared, 
so that operation and maintenance of 
these facilities can be improved 
overall.  

Another important System that 
is in place is the Board of Directors 
Resource Guide. This comprehensive 
two-volume set of data will act as a 
working information system for the 
Board of Directors and System Man
agers. This Resource Guide has been 
created to enhance the opportunity 
for the Board, System Managers and

The CAD system has become 
a valuable tool for the 
CIPCO Operations and 

Engineering Departments.  
From left, Draftsman Larry 
Carpenter, Substation and 
Protection Engineer Steve 

Towe, and Manager of 
Engineering Dale Krohse.  

new employees to become knowl
edgeable in the history and events of 
their power supplier. As the coopera
tive has grown through merger and 
acquisition, so have the intricacies of 
its operations. This Guide is a refer
ence document that will contribute to 
a better understanding of CIPCO.
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6CIPCO has 
begun 

recruiting 

from 
nontraditional 

labor 
markets 9

Due to the demographic trends, 
the work force is diminishing, and it 
is becoming necessary that employees 
be drawn from untapped labor pools.  
CIPCO has begun recruiting from 
previously nontraditional labor 
markets, such as college students, 
college-educated homemakers, and 
retirees. This will net a wealth of op
portunities for CIPCO to acquire 
qualified, competent employees.  

Without capable employees and 
efficient systems, the goals and objec
tives of CIPCO cannot be realized.  
CIPCO, therefore, has identified and 
addressed the current and future 
needs of the organization and is 
responding accordingly.

Through ownership, purchase, 
lease agreements and interchange, 
CIPCO currently maintains sufficient 
generating capacity to supply the 
power and energy required by the 
CIPCO Systems.  

% of 
Unit Fuel MW Total 

DAEC Nuclear 108.0 24.0 

Council Bluffs #3 Coal 77.6 17.2 

Louisa Coal 29.9 6.6 

Fair Coal 66.0 14.7 

Summit Lake Oil/Gas 105.0 23.3 
Total Owned Capacity 386.5 85.8 

WAPAPurchase Hydro 17.0 3.8 

Coggon,Durant,Wilton Oil 7.9 1.8 

SIMECA Oil 38.8 8.6 

Total Capacity 450.2 100.0 

CIPCO's diverse mix of generat
ing capacity is well divided in regard 
to base load, intermediate and peak
ing. Base load units are the Duane 
Arnold Energy Center (DAEC), 
Council Bluffs Unit No. 3, Fair Station 
Unit No. 2, and the Western Area 
Power Administration's (WAPA) 
hydro-electric. Intermediate units, 
Louisa Generating Station and Fair 
Station Unit No. 1, operate a high 

Manager of Administration 
Pat Murphy, left, and 

Manager of Generation 
Gary Sharp review the 

Directors Resource Guide.



percentage of the time but are taken 
off-line on weekends or during times 
of light loads.  

The peaking units are those at 
Summit Lake and all diesel capacity 
owned by municipals in the CIPCO 
system. These units are run only 
during periods of high loads or in 
case of emergency.  

The DAEC and Louisa Station 
set records for kilowatt-hour genera
tion in 1989. Since there was no 
refueling outage during the year, 
DAEC was able to generate 3,181, 955 
megawatt-hours, 18,000 megawatt
hours (0.5%) over its previous record.  
DAEC also set a record for megawatt
hours generated during any one 
month in December 1989. 391,610 
megawatt-hours were generated 
during the extremely cold period 
when winter temperatures produced 
near record demands on the CIPCO 
system.  

Louisa Station generated 
3,840,906 megawatt-hours, exceeding 
the former record by 611,000 mega
watt-hours (18.9%). Fuel costs at 
Louisa had become more competitive 
and its forced outage rate was very 
low.

Energy Sales
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The cooperative spirit 
prevails at CIPCO.  

Maquoketa Valley REC 
and CIPCO's Wilton and 
Creston crews participate 

jointly in the Dundee
Lore 161 kVpole 

replacement project.
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Major maintenance during 1989 
included the inspection and overhaul 
of Fair Station Unit No. 2. Extensive 
overhaul of base loaded equipment 
occurs once every five years and took 
a period of ten weeks to accomplish.  

After two years of having the 
summer peak load exceed the winter

Peak Demand
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225
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peak load, CIPCO returned to a 
winter peak in 1989 of 340 MW. The 
summer peak of 325 MW presented 
the tightest capacity situation for 
CIPCO, as it allowed a surplus of 
only 24 MW. CIPCO had a winter 
surplus of 107 MW in 1989.  

CIPCO's growth in kWh sales in 
1989 was less than 0.5% over 1988 
sales. It is, therefore, an indication 
that CIPCO's marketing and eco
nomic development efforts, coupled 
with an improvement in Iowa's 
economy, have halted the trend of 
declining sales which had been 
established in the five years prior to 
1988.  

The 1989 average annual rate to 
the CIPCO Systems was 4.660 per 
kilowatt-hour. The rates of only two 
of the last five years were lower 
indicating that while moving ahead 
CIPCO is maintaining a Stabilized 
Rate.



The Louisa Generating 
Station near 

Muscatine is one of 
CIPCO's power 

sources.  

The nerve center of a 
generating plant is the 

control room.



FOUNDATION 
FOR THE 90's

Investment in the electric plant 
increased by $9.0 million while long
term debt increased by only $1.0 
million, indicating the continued use 
of internally generated funds to 
temporarily finance plant con
struction. Funds in the amount of 
$6.4 million were drawn from the 
Federal Financing Bank in 1989 for 
investment in construction projects.  
Temporary funding of other projects 
is being done with general funds 
while permanent financing is being 
sought from the Rural Electrification 
Administration.  

No short-term debt was out
standing during 1989 under a $12.0 
million line of credit with the 
National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Corporation.  

CIPCO invested $3.3 million in 
nuclear fuel in 1989.

During the year $1.0 million 
was added to the decommissioning 
revenue for the purpose of providing 
funding for the dismantling of the 
DAEC at the end of its useful life.  

CIPCO remains in a very 
healthy financial condition. Margins 
for the year were $2.6 million on 
revenues of $74.8 million.  

CIPCO's Debt Service Coverage 
(DSC) for 1989 was 1.29 compared to 
1.32 in 1988. The Times Interest 
Earned Ration (TIER) for 1989 was 
1.16 compared to 1.17 in 1988. Both 
ratios exceed the 1.0 minimum 
required by the REA/CFC mortgage.  

We encourage you to review the 
Accountants' Report for the years 
1989 and 1988 prepared by KMPG 
Peat Marwick as set out in the 
financial section of this report.  

As CIPCO enters the next 
decade, the goals of maintaining 
Stabilized Rates and high Quality of 
Service will become even more 
challenging. Only through the 
continued development and 
resourcefulness of its People and 
Systems will CIPCO be prepared to 
meet these challenges and oppor
tunities with confidence and the 
assurance of continued success.  

Janel Cerwick, Manager of 
Personnel, and Dwayne 
Augspurger, Manager of 

Accounting, work closely on 
many projects, such as payroll 

and benefit accounting.



KPMG Peat Marwick 
Certified Public Accountants 

1000 Davenport Bank Building 
220 Main Street 
Davenport, IA 52801 

The Board of Directors 
Central Iowa Power Cooperative 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Central Iowa Power 
Cooperative as of December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the related statements of 
revenue and expense, members' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended.  
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Cooperative's management.  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Central Iowa Power Cooperative at 
December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  

March 5, 1990 

0000 Member Firm of 
Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler



December 31, 1989 and 1988 

Assets 
(Note 4)

Capitalization 
and Liabilities

Balance Sheets 1989 1988

Electric utility plant, at cost (notes 2 and 7) 
In service $ 288,667,970 287,043,099 
Less accumulated depreciation 108,047,560 100,930,953 

180,620,410 186,112,146 
Construction work in progress 14,527,120 7,386,316 
Nuclear fuel, at cost less accumulated 
amortization of $29,932,763 in 1989 and 
$26,861,956 in 1988 18,817,913 18,568,174 

Net electric utility plant 213,965,443 212,066,636 

Investments, at cost: 
Investments in associated organizations 11,786,014 11,837,487 
Marketable securities-decommissioning fund 4,367,154 4,382,994 
Other investments 81,063 81,063 

Total investments 16,234,231 16,301,544 

Current assets: 
Cash, general 487,304 495,668 
Cash, construction 126,080 33,559 
Temporary investments 5,450,426 3,519,015 
Accounts receivable, members 6,788,864 5,905,313 
Other receivables, primarily from affiliate 2,064,656 1,478,717 
Fossil fuel, materials and supplies 4,745,352 4,028,995 
Prepaid expenses 897,485 940,276 
Interest receivable 68,480 60,821 
Deferred charges 2,058,115 3,246,634 

Total current assets 22,686,762 19,708,998 

Deferred charges 7,537,685 9,343,599 

$ 260,424,121 257,420,777 

Capitalization: 
Members' equity: 

Membership fees $ 1,700 1,700 
Patronage capital 9,144,923 7,144,923 
Other equities (note 3) 19,596,589 19,017,246 

Total members' equity 28,743,212 26,163,869 
Long-term debt, excluding current 

installments (note 4) 213,767,922 212,957,991 

Total capitalization 242,511,134 239,121,860 

Current liabilities: 
Current installments of long-term debt (note 4) 5,176,819 4,927,937 
Accounts payable 3,470,625 5,510,622 
Accrued property taxes 4,398,645 4,115,758 
Other accrued expenses 312,597 192,090 

Total current liabilities 13,358,686 14,746,407 

Other liabilities - decommissioning reserves 4,554,301 3,552,510 
Commitments and contingent liabilities (note 8) 

$ 260,424,121 257,420,777 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Statements of Revenue and Expense 
1989 1988 

Operating revenue: 
Electric energy sales $ 70,333,114 69,400,309 
Rent of electric property 1,992,416 1,872,046 
Miscellaneous electric revenue 352,688 279,776 

Total operating revenue 72,678,218 71,552,131

Operating expenses: 
Purchased power 
Operations: 

Production plant - fuel 
Production plant - other 
Transmission plant 

Maintenance: 
Production plant 
Transmission plant 

Administrative and general 
Depreciation and amortization 
Decommissioning provision 
Property and other taxes 

Total operating expenses 

Net operating margin

3,271,280 

14,469,476 
10,975,209 

1,340,948 

4,141,628 
2,455,915 
5,140,751 
9,400,390 
1,001,791 
4,710,888 

56,908,276 

15,769,942

Years ended 
December 31, 1989 and 1988

1,911,799 

16,410,651 
9,732,639 
1,137,613 

5,128,234 
2,316,604 
4,357,809 
9,377,277 
1,028,832 
4,364,878 

55,766,336 

15,785,795

Other revenue: 
Interest income 1,469,293 1,377,517 
Patronage capital allocations 158,756 166,409 
Miscellaneous income - principally from 

affiliated cooperative 464,992 201,017 

Total other revenue 2,093,041 1,744,943 

Net margin before interest charges 17,862,983 17,530,738 

Interest charges: 
Interest on long-term debt 16,156,103 15,788,932 
Allowance for borrowed funds used 
during construction (872,463) (958,355) 

Net interest charges 15,283,640 14,830,577 

Net margin $ 2,579,343 2,700,161 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Years ended Statements of Members' Equity 
December 31, 1989 and 1988

Total 
Membership Patronage Other members' 

fees capital equities equity 

Balance at 
December 31, 1987 $1,700 6,177,209 17,317,085 23,495,994 

Net margin - - 2,700,161 2,700,161 

Patronage capital allocated - 1,000,000 (1,000,000) 

Patronage capital settlement - (32,286) - (32,286) 

Balance at 
December 31, 1988 1,700 7,144,923 19,017,246 26,163,869 

Net margin - - 2,579,343 2,579,343 

Patronage capital allocated - 2,000,000 (2,000,000) 

Balance at 
December 31, 1989 $1,700 9,144,923 19,596,589 28,743,212 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



Statements of Cash Flows
1989

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net margin 
Adjustments to reconcile net margin to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization of electric 
utility plant 

Amortization of deferred charges 
Amortization of nuclear fuel 
Decommissioning provision 
Refueling outage costs deferred 
Patronage capital allocations 
not received in cash 

Amortization of investment premium 
Increase in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in fossil fuel, materials and supplies 
Decrease in prepaid expenses and 

interest receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities 
Decrease in advances from members

$ 2,579,343 

8,577,556 
2,994,433 
3,070,807 
1,001,791 

(158,756) 
15,840 

(1,469,490) 
(716,357) 

35,132 

(1,636,603)

1988

Years ended 
December 31, 1989 and 1988

2,700,161 

8,534,462 
2,997,536 
3,323,933 
1,028,832 

(2,401,207) 

(163,685) 
13,674 

(384,378) 
896,313 

305,697 

3,349,854 
(900,000)

Net cash provided by operating activities 14,293,696 19,301,192 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Additions to utility plant, net (10,226,624) (14,350,423) 
Purchases of nuclear fuel (3,320,546) (11,587,330) 
Increase in decommissioning fund - (2,166,641) 
Decrease in investment in associated 
organization 10,277 

Receipt of prior years' patronage capital allocation 199,952 31,305 
Receipt of deferred charges - 124,973 

Net cash used by investing activities (13,336,941) (27,948,116) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Principal payments on long-term debt (5,296,187) (4,887,450) 
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 6,355,000 4,330,000 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 1,058,813 (557,450) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,015,568 (9,204,374) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,048,242 13,252,616 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $6,063,810 4,048,242

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 
Cash paid during the year for interest 

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash 
investing and financing activities: 

Receipt of inventory in lieu of cash relating to 
coal settlement 

Patronage capital settlement 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$16,024,494 15,703,273 

234,000 
32,286



December 31, 1989 and 1988 Notes to Financial Statements 
Note 1 (a) Basis of Accounting 

The accounting records of Central Iowa Power Cooperative (the Cooperative) are 

Policies maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the Rural 
Electrification Administration. Central Iowa Power Cooperative is an electric generation 
and transmission cooperative providing wholesale electric service to its sixteen 
members. The Cooperative is not subject to external rate regulation other than by the 
Rural Electrification Administration.  

Distribution of margins of the Cooperative is made in accordance with the provisions of 
the Code of Iowa.  

(b) Electric Utility Plant 
Depreciation of electric utility plant in service is provided over the estimated useful lives 
of the respective assets on the straight-line basis.  

The Cooperative is recovering its portion of the present value of the estimated future 
costs to decommission the Duane Arnold Energy Center (DAEC) over the remaining life 
of the DAEC using the sinking fund method. The estimated costs of decommissioning 
DAEC, which is projected to begin in 2010, is based on studies performed in 1985 and 
1989. Based on the most recent study, the Cooperative estimates that its portion of the 
costs to decommission DAEC will be approximately $59,000,000.  

Maintenance and repair of property and replacements and renewals of items determined 
to be less than units of property are charged to expense. Replacements and renewals of 
items considered to be units of property are charged to the property accounts. At the 
time properties are disposed of, the original cost, plus cost of removal less salvage of 
such property, is charged to accumulated depreciation.  

(c) Allowance for Funds Used During Construction 
The allowance for funds used during construction represents the estimated cost, during 
the period of construction, of borrowed funds used for construction purposes. The 
composite rates used to calculate the allowance approximated 10.5% for 1989 and 8.2% 
for 1988.  

(d) Nuclear Fuel 
The cost of nuclear fuel, including capitalized interest and taxes, is being amortized to 
fuel expense on the basis of the number of units of thermal energy produced in 
relationship to the total thermal units expected to be produced over the life of the fuel.  
Nuclear fuel expense includes a provision for estimated spent nuclear fuel disposal cost 
which is being collected currently from members.  

(e) Fossil Fuel, Materials and Supplies 
Fossil fuel, materials and supplies are stated at moving average cost.  

(f) Marketable Investment Securities 
Marketable securities and temporary investments consist of U.S. Government securities 
and CFC commercial paper. These investments are stated at cost which approximates 
market.  

(g) Pension Plan 
The Cooperative's policy is to fund pension costs accrued.



Note 1 
Summary of Significant 

Accounting Policies, 
Continued

Note 2 
Electric Utility Plant 

in Service

(h) Deferred Charges 
Deferred charges consist principally of cancelled project costs, major maintenance and 
other fuel costs incurred during the refueling of the nuclear reactor and a one time fee 
for spent nuclear fuel used to generate electricity prior to April, 1983. These costs are 
being recovered through rates over various amortization periods as follows: cancelled 
project costs, ten years ending in 1995; refueling outage costs, fifteen months ending in 
1990; and the one time fee for spent nuclear fuel, thirteen years ending in 1998. The 
amount of these costs to be amortized in 1990 has been reflected as a current asset in the 
balance sheet.  

(i) Cash Equivalents 
Cash equivalents of $5,450,426 and $3,519,015 at December 31, 1989 and 1988, 
respectively, consist of CFC commercial paper. For purposes of the statement of cash 
flows, the Cooperative considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less to be cash equivalents.  

(j) Reclassification 
Certain accounts for 1988 have been reclassified to conform with the presentation for 
1989.  

The major classes of electric utility plant in service at December 31, 1989 and 
1988 and depreciation and amortization for 1989 and 1988 are as follows:

Cost at 
December 31

Depreciation and 
amortization

Composite 
rates (%)

1989 1988 1989 1988 

Intangible plant $ 274,311 405,193 5,744 9,775 4.00 
Production plant 219,366,344 218,598,521 6,564,289 6,711,832 3.10 
Transmission plant 63,758,579 63,259,400 1,628,168 1,498,438 2.75 
Distribution plant 454,256 454,256 12,914 12,914 2.75 
General plant 4,814,480 4,325,729 366,441 301,503 3.0-16.00 

Electric utility 
plant in service $ 288,667,970 287,043,099 8,577,556 8,534,462 

Other equities consist of the following: 
December 31, 

1989 1988 

Unallocated margin $ 2,579,343 2,700,161 
Reserve for contingent losses 12,727,630 12,727,630 
Surplus 4,289,616 3,589,455 

$19,596,589 19,017,246 

The reserve for contingent losses is a discretionary reserve established by the Co
operative for unexpected future losses.

Note 3 
Other Equities



December 31, 1989 and 1988 Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 4 Long-term debt consists of the following: 

Long-Term Debt

Rural Electrification Administration (REA) - 2% and 5% 
mortgage notes payable, due in quarterly installments 
approximating $1,490,000, including interest, maturing 
through June 2019 

Federal Financing Bank (FFB) - 7.319%-11.823% mortgage 
notes payable, guaranteed by the Rural Electrification 
Administration (REA), due in quarterly installments 
approximating $2,957,000, including interest, maturing 
from December 2010 through 2017 

National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation 
(CFC) - 7% mortgage notes payable, due in quarterly 
installments approximating $297,000, including 
interest, maturing from December 2006 through April 
2009 

National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation 
(CFC) - variable interest rate (9.5% at December 31, 
1989) notes payable, due in quarterly installments 
approximating $205,000, including interest, through 
March 31, 2020 

Central Iowa Power Cooperative members - 7% 
unsecured notes payable, due in quarterly installments 
approximating $56,000, including interest, until 
maturity on January 2, 2006 

City of Council Bluffs, Iowa Pollution Control Revenue 
Bonds guaranteed by National Rural Utilities 
Cooperative Finance Corporation (CFC) - 4.70% 
6.125%, due-in annual installments through 
December 1, 2007 

Louisa County, Iowa Pollution Control Revenue Bonds 
guaranteed by National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Corporation (CFC) - 8.6% - 10.625%, due in 
annual installments through December 15, 2003 

Eastern Iowa Light and Power Cooperative - capital lease 
obligations, 2% and 5%, due in quarterly installments 
approximating $170,000 through 1993, $109,000 
through 1998, and $50,000 thereafter through 2013

(continued) 

December 31, 

1989 1988

$ 70,362,705 73,436,564 

113,111,117 107,782,255 

11,935,873 12,269,297 

8,841,155 8,898,819 

2,152,950 2,223,917

3,780,000 3,900,000 

3,540,000 3,660,000 

5,220,941 5,715,076

Total long-term debt 218,944,741 217,885,928 
Less current installments, net of advance payments 5,176,819 4,927,937 

Total long-term debt, excluding current installments $213,767,922 212,957,991 

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for each of the five years subsequent to 
December 31, 1989 are as follows: 1990, $5,176,819; 1991, $5,664,437; 1992, $5,637,163; 
1993, $5,584,872; and 1994, $6,032,319.



Note 4 
Long-Term Debt, Continued 

Note 5 
Pension Plan

Note 6 
Income Tax Status 

Note 7 
Jointly-Owned 

Electric Utility Plant

At December 31, 1989, the Cooperative had $3,882,000 of unadvanced funds available from 
long-term loans approved by REA, CFC and FFB and $12,000,000 of unadvanced funds 
available under a short-term line of credit agreement with CFC which expires in November, 
1990.  

All assets of the Cooperative are pledged to secure the long-term debt to REA, FFB and CFC.  

The Cooperative participates in a multi-employer pension plan (the plan) which covers 
substantially all employees. The accumulated plan benefits and plan net assets of the plan 
are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. Pension expense 
amounted to $322,000 in 1989 and $205,000 in 1988.  

The Cooperative is a nonprofit corporation under the laws of Iowa and is exempt from 
Federal and state income taxes under applicable tax laws.  

The Cooperative's share of jointly owned generating facilities at December 31, 1989, is 
reflected in the following table. These facilities provide approximately 50% of the 
Cooperative's total generating capacity. The Cooperative is required to provide financing for 
its share of the units. The Cooperative's share of expenses associated with these units is 
included with the appropriate operating expenses in the statements of revenue and expense.

Unit 
Duane Arnold Energy Center 
Council Bluffs Unit #3 
Louisa Generating Station

Note 8 
Commitments and 

Contingent Liabilities

Percentage 
Ownership 

20.0% 
11.5% 
4.6%

Capacity 
MW 
108 

78 
30

Electric 
Utility Plant, Net 

$72,325,213 
27,366,787 
24,810,321

The Cooperative has entered into an agreement to guarantee all costs associated with the 
payable to the National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Coporation for loans made to an 
associated cooperative. At December 31, 1989, the associated cooperative had outstanding 
loans of approximately $4,523,000 ($4,376,000 long-term, $147,000 short-term) which are 
secured by real estate of the associated organization.  

The Cooperative has entered into a five-year coal supply contract with a mining company 
through 1993. The terms of the agreement require the Cooperative to purchase annually a 
minimum of 75,000 tons at an estaimted 1990 delivery price per ton of $22.50. This is 
approximately 65% of the annual coal requirements of the Cooperative's 55 MW unit at the 
Fair Generating Station.  

Under the Price-Anderson Act, (as amended in 1988) all nuclear power station operators are 
subject to public liability for a nuclear incident which is currently limited to $650 million per 
incident. Coverage of the first $160 million is provided by private insurance with the balance 
provided by retrospective premium assessments against each licensed nuclear unit in the 
United States. As a joint owner of the DAEC, the Cooperative is a party to the insurance 
policies covering such nuclear incidents which are maintained by Iowa Electric Light and 
Power Company (70% owner and operator of DAEC) and is charged for its proportionate 
share of such insurance costs. In the event of an incident at any nuclear plant in the United.  
States in excess of $160 million, the Cooperative could be assessed a maximum of $12,600,000 
per incident, with a maximum assessment of $2,000,000 in one year.



Ten Year Financial Summary 
1989 1988 1987

Summary of Operations 
Operating revenue $ 72,678,218 71,552,131 68,805,228 

Operating expenses and interest: 
Purchased power 3,271,280 1,911,799 4,511,217 
Operations and maintenance 33,383,176 34,725,741 31,144,655 
Administrative and general 5,140,751 4,357,809 3,787,341 
Depreciation and amortization 9,400,390 9,377,277 
Decommissioning provision 1,001,790 1,028,832 929,960 
Property and other taxes 4,710,889 4,364,878 4,243,785 
Net interest charges 15,283,640 14,830,577 15,323,888 

Total operating expenses and interest 72,191,916 70,596,913 68,851,316 

Operating margin 486,302 955,218 (46,088) 
Other revenue 2,093,041 1,744,943 1,713,438 

Net margin (deficit) $ 2,579,343 2,700,161 1,667,350 

Assets 
Electric utility plant $ 351,945,766 339,859,546 315,296,237 
Less accumulated depreciation 

and amortization 137,980,323 127,792,910 117,308,959 

Net electric utility plant 213,965,443 212,066,636 197,987,278 
Investments 16,234,231 16,301,544 14,016,197 
Current assets 22,686,762 19,708,998 29,492,565 
Deferred charges 7,537,685 9,343,599 10,335,627 

Total assets $ 260,424,121 257,420,777 251,831,667

Capitalization and Liabilities 
Members' equity 
Long-term debt 
Spent nuclear fuel disposal liability 
Current liabilities 
Deferred credits 
Decommissioning reserves

28,743,212 
213,767,922 

13,358,686 

4,554,301

26,163,869 
212,957,991 

14,746,407 

3,552,510

23,495,994 
213,794,778 

12,017,216 

2,523,679

Total capitalization and liabilities $ 260,424,121 257,420,777 251,831,667



67,660,629 71,132,939 64,242,148 58,643,815 53,224,842 37,733,578 33,749,010 

3,228,972 10,651,421 9,310,487 5,354,110 1,728,760 4,131,037 5,298,884 
29,793,316 27,569,688 26,630,591 30,392,265 28,190,534 15,491,146 14,213,687 

3,231,141 3,073,865 2,592,445 2,602,144 2,597,290 1,828,824 1,650,805 

838,831 754,887 - - - -

4,222,102 3,994,490 4,206,417 3,815,460 3,589,478 3,035,812 2,924,455 
15,769,131 14,500,285 13,496,875 9,873,776 9,177,792 6,773,875 6,525,146 

65,630,460 67,797,759 63,935,690 58,521,873 52,282,784 36,299,769 35,487,465 

2,030,169 3,335,180 306,458 121,942 942,058 1,433,809 (1,738,455) 
1,726,608 1,034,308 809,938 534,427 783,548 421,782 815,199 

3,756,777 4,369,488 1,116,396 656,369 1,725,606 1,855,591 (923,256) 

305,693,465 295,189,519 293,659,876 280,635,043 265,446,255 190,095,722 178,875,852 

107,009,719 96,551,822 87,457,382 77,433,944 68,916,957 51,084,244 44,908,794 

198,683,746 198,637,697 206,202,494 203,201,099 196,529,298 139,011,478 133,967,058 
11,290,315 9,341,109 9,290,756 8,730,585 7,713,720 7,207,594 7,294,751 
29,299,708 25,142,825 15,022,757 17,319,460 17,293,393 8,928,450 9,175,865 
11,591,849 12,522,126 6,835,981 7,978,297 - 804,883 2,691,693 

250,865,618 245,643,757 237,351,988 237,229,441 221,536,411 155,952,405 153,129,367 

21,828,644 18,071,867 13,702,379 13,126,587 12,470,218 11,631,927 10,081,007 
215,331,259 213,309,618 202,731,539 203,720,613 198,030,109 136,224,533 135,780,781 

- - 4,735,981 4,735,981 - -

12,111,996 13,507,385 16,182,089 15,646,260 11,036,084 8,069,202 7,238,931 
- - - - - 26,743 28,648 

1,593,719 754,887 -- -

237,351,988 237,229,441 221,536,411

1981 19801986 1985 1984 1983 1982

250,865,618 245,643,757 155,952,405 153,129,367



1

Member Cooperative Operating Statistics 
Adams Benton Buchanan Clarke Eastern Farmers 

Summary of Operations 
Operating Revenue $ 2,194,734 4,051,044 5,546,513 4,689,139 21,606,885 6,430,806 
Purchased Power 1,242,383 2,639,520 3,600,198 2,591,755 14,288,895 4,337,985 
Operating Expenses 495,983 785,460 868,583 951,877 3,254,512 999,343 
Depreciation 184,891 173,018 273,650 426,487 1,318,194 353,748 
Tax Expense 51,754 69,031 106,265 102,188 398,145 113,362 
Interest Expense 219,087 253,047 417,052 460,908 1,173,266 473,006 
Total Cost - Electric Service 2,194,098 3,920,076 5,265,749 4,533,215 20,433,012 6,277,444 

Operating Margins 636 130,968 280,764 155,925 1,173,873 153,362 
Non-operating Margins & Capital Credits 69,230 155,143 201,668 129,131 924,896 117,486 
Patronage Capital or Margins $ 69,866 286,111 482,432 285,056 2,098,769 270,848 

Assets and Other Debits 
Total Utility Plant $ 5,563,662 7,785,507 11,035,762 13,519,150 46,236,937 12,603,829 
Accumulated Depreciation & Amortization 1,585,380 2,186,441 2,720,436 4,249,432 11,281,568 3,439,942 
Net Utility Plant 3,978,282 5,599,066 8,315,326 9,269,718 34,955,369 9,163,887 
Property & Investments 824,204 1,017,292 1,295,306 1,091,289 9,782,297 1,500,368 
Current & Accrued Assets 607,422 1,177,410 1,697,641 1,419,575 8,107,776 1,615,285 
Deferred Debits 54,535 109 39,304 103,556 414,711 157,573 
Total Assets $ 5,464,443 7,793,877 11,347,576 11,884,138 53,260,153 12,437,113 

Liabilities and Other Credits 
Margins & Equities 1,455,986 3,611,884 3,955,788 3,249,958 20,955,527 4,049,260 
Long Term Debt 3,793,067 3,988,059 7,196,153 7,997,115 29,763,250 7,710,582 
Current & Accrued Liabilities 201,060 180,421 163,616 603,800 2,332,569 644,588 
Deferred Credits & Misc. Oper. Reserves 14,330 13,513 32,019 33,265 208,807 32,683 
Total Liabilities $ 5,464,443 7,793,877 11,347,576 11,884,138 53,260,153 12,437,113

Other Statistics 
Miles of Line 
Consumers Served 
Consumers Per Mile 
kWhs sold per consumer 
MWh Sales 
Annual Revenue per Consumer 
Plant Investment per Consumer

796 
1,716 

2 
14,262 
24,474 

1,279 
3,242

941 
3,322 

4 
15,727 
52,244 

1,219 
2,344

1,226 
3,440 

3 
22,033 
75,795 

1,612 
3,208

1,742 
4,171 

2 
11,728 
48,918 

1,124 
3,241

4,371 
19,024 

4 
14,899 

283,433 
1,136 
2,430

System Managers 

Kenneth Stone Martin Gardner 
Adams County Benton County 
Cooperative Electric Electric Cooperative 
Company and Nyman Association 
Electric Cooperative

Glenn Maynard 
Buchanan County 
Rural Electric 
Cooperative

Tom Killebrew 
Clarke Electric 
Cooperative

Melvin Nicholas David Weaklend 
Eastern Iowa Light Farmers Electric 
and Power Cooperative 
Copperative

1,754 
4,605 

3 
21,081 
97,077 

1,396 
2,737

Roger Wieck 
Greene County Rural 
Electric Coopaerative

V

I
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Greene Guthrie Linn Maquoketa Marshall Nyman Pella Rideta

7,071,014 4,322,949 11,016,882 14,497,917 4,983,184 1,751,212 2,473,451 2,512,296 6,273,023 99,421,049 

4,661,105 2,575,419 7,438,216 10,812,283 3,222,610 1,024,071 1,642,463 1,461,305 4,005,633 65,543,841 
1,215,725 952,579 1,920,841 1,936,915 920,779 436,553 501,332 546,511 1,299,302 17,086,295 

483,116 270,002 446,619 620,286 295,428 122,799 114,544 195,256 308,191 5,586,230 
133,066 87,381 198,124 206,974 90,569 36,241 48,257 66,225 122,592 1,830,175 
472,609 356,265 625,454 694,836 316,531 127,793 154,128 225,090 399,132 6,368,204 

6,965,622 4,241,646 10,629,254 14,271,294 4,845,916 1,747,457 2,460,724 2,494,388 6,134,850 96,414,745 

105,392 81,303 387,628 226,623 137,268 3,755 12,727 17,908 138,173 3,006,304 
247,629 221,181 293,564 753,813 220,339 56,576 121,424 99,412 290,222 3,901,714 

353,021 302,485 681,192 980,436 357,606 60,331 134,151 117,320 428,395 6,908,019 

16,943,790 10,109,654 18,019,861 23,260,496 9,184,662 3,677,944 4,656,811 7,221,883 12,318,297 202,138,244 
4,809,432 3,527,435 4,982,961 8,012,906 3,081,923 1,238,752 1,697,252 2,233,816 3,464,638 58,512,314 

12,134,358 6,582,218 13,036,900 15,247,590 6,102,738 2,439,192 2,959,559 4,988,068 8,853,659 143,625,929

1,764,393 1,055,767 2,412,983 3,504,645 1,149,534 
3,151,779 2,880,696 2,937,363 6,102,983 2,206,802 

41,247 2,971 2,523 1,121 30,575

440,978 573,719 722,116 1,541,616 28,676,508 
504,522 1,238,777 669,654 2,274,927 36,592,612 
22,542 17,351 71,827 4,304 964,249

17,091,777 10,521,652 18,389,769 24,856,339 9,489,649 3,407,234 4,789,406 6,451,665 12,674,507 209,859,298 

6,527,389 3,517,457 6,535,301 13,403,495 3,736,485 1,075,470 2,066,603 1,952,465 5,529,138 81,622,207 
9,858,147 6,564,290 10,622,384 11,041,812 5,234,405 2,067,660 2,456,260 4,108,999 6,438,465 118,840,648 

704,092 432,381 1,078,614 372,526 515,979 262,243 256,817 336,619 686,456 8,771,781 
2,149 7,524 153,470 38,506 2,780 1,861 9,726 53,582 20,448 624,662 

17,091,777 10,521,652 18,389,769 24,856,339 9,489,649 3,407,234 4,789,406 6,451,665 12,674,507 209,859,298

1,062 
3,895 

4 
15,616 
60,824 

1,279 
2,358

592 
1,443 

2 
13,586 
19,604 

1,214 
2,549

578 
1,927 

3 
15,986 
31,220 

1,284 
2,417

1,251 
2,652 

2 
10,684 
28,335 

947 
2,723

1,719 23,613 
5,243 81,910 

3 3 
15,335 15,659 
80,402 1,282,604 

1,196 1,214 
2,349 2,468

Frank Mains Kim Colberg Dorothy Postel Daniel Bohike 
Guthrie County Rural Linn County Rural Maquoketa Valley Marshall County 
Elecftic Cooperative Electric Cooperative Rural Electric Rural Electric 

Cooperative Cooperative

Philip Visser Mike Greene 
Pella Cooperative Rideta Electric 
Electric Company Cooperative

Darrel Heetland 
T.I.P. Rural Electric 
Cooperative

9
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T. I. P. Total

1,626 
5,082 

3 
18,009 
91,520 

1,391 
3,334

1,380 
4,254 

3 
11,153 
47,445 

1,016 
2,377

1,612 
10,048 

6 
13,871 

139,379 
1,096 
1,793

2,962 
11,088 

4 
18,212 

201,933 
1,308 
2,098



CIPCOSYSTEMS 
Adams County Cooperative Electric Company * Corning 

Benton County Electric Cooperative * Vinton 

Buchanan County Rural Electric Cooperative * Independence 

Clarke Electric Cooperative, Inc. * Osceola 

Eastern Iowa Light and Power Cooperative * Wilton 

Farmers Electric Cooperative, Inc. * Greenfield 

Greene County Rural Electric Cooperative * Jefferson 

Guthrie County Rural Electric Cooperative * Guthrie Center 

Linn County Rural Electric Cooperative * Marion 

Maquoketa Valley Rural Electric Cooperative * Anamosa 

Marshall County Rural Electric Cooperative * Marshalltown 

Nyman Electric Cooperative * Stanton - , 

Pella Cooperative Electric Association * Pella 

Rideta Electric Cooperative * Mount Ayr 

South Iowa Municipal Electric Cooperative Association (SIMECA) 
Brooklyn, Cascade, Corning, Earlville, Fontanelle, Gowrie, Greenfield, Lamoni, Lenox, 
Stuart, Villisca, Winterset 

T.I.P. Rural Electric Cooperative * Brooklyn 

Central Iowa Power Cooperative 
P.O. Box 2517, Highway 13 and Bertram Road S.E.  
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 52406 * 319-366-8011
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-NOTICE
THE ATTACHED FILES ARE OFFICIAL RE
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Corn Belt Power Cooperative

Member Systems

Boone Valley Electric Cooperative 
Butler County Rural Electric Cooperative 
Calhoun County Electric Co-op Association 
Franklin Rural Electric Cooperative 
Glidden Rural Electric Cooperative 
Grundy County Rural Electric Cooperative 
Hancock County Rural Electric Cooperative 
Hardin County Rural Electric Cooperative 
Humboldt County Rural Electric Cooperative 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative 
Sac County Rural Electric Cooperative 
Wright County Rural Electric Cooperative 
North Iowa Municipal Electric Cooperative Association (NIMECA) 

Alta * Bancroft * Coon Rapids * Graettinger * Grundy Center * Laurens 
Milford * New Hampton * Spencer * Sumner * Webster City * West Bend

orn Belt Power Cooperative, headquartered at Humboldt, Iowa, 
is a generation and transmission rural electric cooperative owned 

by its member systems. Corn Belt provides electric power to 12 member 
distribution rural electric cooperatives and one municipal electric coop
erative (NIMECA). Electricity supplied by Corn Belt serves farm mem
bers, rural residences, small towns, and commercial and industrial 
members across 27 counties in north central Iowa.

i I
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ARTHUR ANDERSEN & CO.  
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 

To the Members of the Board of Directors of 
Corn Belt Power Cooperative: 

We have audited the financial statements of Corn Belt Power Cooperative (the 
Cooperative) for the year ended December 31, 1989, and have issued our report 
thereon dated February 22, 1990. Our audit was made in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and specific Rural Electrification 
Administration (REA) procedures as set out in 7 CFR Part 1789, "REA Policy of 
Audits of Electric and Telephone Borrowers." 

As part of our audit of the financial statements of the Cooperative for the 
year ended December 31, 1989, we considered its internal control structure as 
required by generally accepted auditing standards in order to determine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure and 
as required by the specific REA audit requirements as set out in 7 CFR 
Part 1789. Our consideration of the internal control structure would not 
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might 
be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants.  

The management of the Cooperative is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining the internal control structure. In fulfilling this 
responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess 
the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies 
and procedures.  

Among the objectives of the internal control structure are to provide 
management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are 
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that 
transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and 
recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  

Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors or 
irregularities may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any 
evaluation of the internal control structure to future periods is subject to 
the risk it may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or 
deterioration in its operating effectiveness.  

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or 
more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to a 
relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities in amounts that 
would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may 
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
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internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the 
internal control structure that might be material weaknesses as defined 
above. However, we noted no matters involving the internal control structure 
and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above.  

While our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of the 
matters addressed below, in accordance with REA reporting requirements, 
nothing came to our attention in connection with our audit that caused us to 
believe that: 

1. The accounting records do not fairly reflect, in reasonable detail, 
the events and transactions of the Cooperative.  

2. The accounting and reporting procedures and electronic data 
processing systems were not operating effectively insofar that the 
methods used were not adequate to accumulate cost of material, 
vehicles and work equipment, labor and overhead, and to provide a 
reasonable distribution thereof to construction, retirement and 
maintenance or other expense accounts.  

3. The controls over materials and supplies were not operating 
effectively insofar that there were significant discrepancies among 
the physical inventory, perpetual inventory and the general ledger 
balances.  

4. The Cooperative had not complied with the provisions of the 
applicable REA indenture requirements evidencing its indebtedness 
insofar as such provisions relate to the payment of dividends, 
payment of patronage refunds, retirement of any patronage capital or 
any other cash distribution, including abatement of charges.  

5. The annual certification of insurance coverage provided the REA by 
the Cooperative on REA Form 12 was not appropriate.  

The following comments on the scope of our audit are in response to the 
specific REA audit requirements as set out in 7 CFR Part 1789, "REA Policy on 
Audits of Electric and Telephone Borrowers:" 

1. We have not issued any special reports, summary of recommendations 
or similar communications during the performance of the audit or 
during interim audit work.  

2. As a part of our audit, we read a copy of the December 31, 1989, 
Operating Report - Financial (Form 12A) on file at the Cooperative.  
The financial statements included therein are in agreement, in all 
material respects, with the Cooperative's accounting records, except 
that we have been informed by the Cooperative that the Form 12A will 
be amended to reflect adjustments made for financial reporting of 
accrued pension costs.
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3. The Cooperative has no significant management or operations 

contracts in effect with affiliates or others.  

4. We examined the bank statements of all of the Cooperative's cash 

deposits at December 31, 1989, and noted that the deposits were in 

institutions in which accounts were insured by an agency of the 

federal government to the extent provided by statutes.  

5. We examined the Cooperative's federal income tax return and noted 

that the Cooperative files an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form 

990 which is the form used by entities covered by Section 501(c)(12) 

of the IRS. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe 

that the Cooperative's income tax filing status changed for 1989.  

6. We examined, on a test basis, support for significant related party 

transactions and have satisfied ourselves that the disclosures in 

the financial statements, or the notes thereto, relating to such 

transactions are in accordance with the requirements of Statement of 

Financial Accounting Standards No. 57.  

7. As part of our tests of the property accounting records, we examined 

documentation that indicates there were not significant acquisitions 

of land during 1989.  

This letter is intended solely for the use of management, the Board of 

Directors and the REA. To the extent that the REA intends to rely upon this 

letter, such reliance should take into account the limitations inherent in the 

internal control structure. In addition, the REA should understand that the 

criteria used by us in considering the internal control structure could differ 

significantly from the criteria the REA may be using for its purpose. This 

restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter which, 

upon receipt by the REA, is a matter of public record.  

February 22, 1990



1989 Annual Report
Cooperative Highlights 

1989 1988 

Total Energy Sales (kWh) ....................... 865,871,988 910,215,196 
Peak Demand-RECs (kW) ... ................... 154,942 131,823 
Total Assets .............................. $ 155,380,557 $ 152,005,451 
Total Long Term Debt ...................... $ 131,883,294 $ 128,585,202 
Total Operating Revenues ................... $ 37,909,865 $ 39,178,798 
Total Operating Expenses ................... $ 30,177,349 $ 30,150,578 
Net Operating Revenues .................... $ 7,732,516 $ 9,028,220 
Net Margin ................................... $ 1,692,530 $ 1,946,494 
Miles of Transmission Line ..................... 1566 1566 
Distribution Substations ......................... 110 110 
Number of Employees .......................... 91 96

hen Corn Belt Power Cooperative started over 40 years ago, it was sparked by a commit
ment to improving quality of life for farm and rural residents in north central Iowa. Since then, it 

has moved ahead with leadership and growth. Corn Belt has maintained its commitment to serve and 
provide its members with reliability and integrity. Established by choice. Here today by choice. Corn 
Belt is proud of its role as power supplier and corporate citizen in Iowa.  

1



President's Report

Eugene 
Drager, 

President 
of the 
Board

ooking back at 
1989 gives us a 

yardstick to measure 
how well we met-or 
exceeded-goals that 
were established for 
the cooperative. Look
ing back also gives us 
a measure with which 
to identify plans and 
goals for the future.  

This past year 
found Corn Belt in
volved in the Iowa 
Marketing Coordinat
ing Group-a new 
project established by 
all generating and 
transmission coopera
tives serving in the 
state. Projects spon
sored by this group 
included marketing 
training, common 
messages used in ad
vertising and joint de
velopment of bro
chures and flyers.  
Corn Belt staff worked 
with others to develop 
advertising programs 
on earth energy, light
ing and other services.  
Work started in 1989 
by the Iowa Marketing 
Coordinating Group 
has developed into a 
three-year marketing 
plan. This program is

one that will 
help all Iowa 
electric co
operatives co
ordinate mar
keting activi
ties of many 
types.  

Corn Belt 
renewed its 
support in 
1989 to Iowa 
State Univer
sity research 
projects at the 
Land O'Lakes 
Answer Farm 
near Fort 
Dodge, the 
Iowa Test and Evalu
ation facility and the 
Electric Power Re
search Center at Iowa 
State University.  
Through our Research 
Committee, Corn Belt 
participated in proj
ects that include wind 
generation, solar 
generation, solar water 
heating and high 
voltage transmission 
lines.  

Corn Belt attended 
the NRECA legislative 
conference to inform 
Iowa congressmen of 
the interests we have 
in pending or possible

legislation related to 
acid rain, low interest 
financing to replace 
underground cable, 
open access to trans
mission lines and gov
ernment ownership of 
public power facili
ties. No doubt we are 
at a time that more in
volvement will be 
needed on legislation 
that will directly or 
indirectly affect Corn 
Belt, our member 
RECs and member
consumers. Much of 
the proposed legisla
tion will be costly to 
our consumers and is

2
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questionable in its 
overall benefit.  

It often seems that 
many of the so-called 
environmentalists and 
regulators spend most 
of their time in cli
mate-controlled of
fices. Here in rural 
Iowa we represent a 
small part of the total 
population, and as a 
minority, it will be 
necessary for us to 
spend considerable 
time and effort inform
ing elected officials on 
how legislation can 
seriously affect our 
communities and our 
rural economy.  

In 1989 Corn Belt 
continued its active 
involvement in the 
Iowa Area Develop
ment Group. This has 
been a project that has 
served us well. We 
have come to discover 
success in what eco
nomic development 
can mean to RECs and 
their communities.  
Interest in economic 
development has in
creased to the point 
where existing com
mercial and industrial 
REC consumers have

been helped to up
grade their operations 
and become larger and 
better users of REC 
power. New programs 
are currently being 
developed to enhance 
this effort.  

In 1989, after sev
eral years of planning 
and study, the Corn 
Belt/NIMECA agree
ment was signed. We 
have, in effect, merged 
our generation and 
transmission systems 
under a long-term 
agreement that will 
enable us to plan more 
effectively for the 
future. Due to the 
diversity between the 
Corn Belt and 
NIMECA loads, this 
agreement is likely to 
delay the need for new 
generation further into 
the future. In addition, 
we will be better able 
to utilize existing 
transmission facilities 
and better serve our 
area with less duplica
tion of facilities.  

Wholesale rates in 
1989 remained stable, 
allowing our member 
systems to plan more 
easily for local growth

and energy sales. We 
need to continue to 
look at various types 
of loads with which to 
develop future growth.  

At the end of 1989, 
the Corn Belt board 
prepared for a strate
gic planning process 
in order to evaluate 
our organizational 
mission, services and 
long term trends.  
Strategic planning is 
an important activity 
for any organization.  
At Corn Belt we look 
forward to new ideas

and possible future 
directions as a result 
of this process.  

As we end 1989 
and prepare for a new 
decade, I wish to ex
press my appreciation 
to the Corn Belt Board 
of Directors and em
ployees for their dedi
cated service. Through 
their efforts, Corn Belt 
will continue its com
mitment to always 
moving ahead-from 
the past and on to a 
prosperous future.
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General Manager's Report

George W 
Toyne, 

General 
Manager

ineteen eighty
nine is over

and with it went the 
last of the eighties.  
This was a decade of 
considerable change 
for Corn Belt Power 
Cooperative and the 
electric utility indus
try.  

Total electricity 
sales at Corn Belt 
leveled off during this 
ten-year period from 
all-time highs we had 
in the late 1970s. In 
spite of generally flat 
sales, rates to our 
member systems 
declined in 1989 for

the fourth 
year in a row.  

In 1989, 
Corn Belt's 
rates declined 
more than 
one percent 

compared to 
1988. We 
were able to 
allocate a 
substantial 
amount
$750,000
back to the 
member sys
tems in de

ferred patronage. In 
addition, $250,000 
was paid to member 
systems at the 1988 
annual meeting for 
part of their 1977 
patronage.  

Corn Belt system 
loads in 1989 were 
almost the same as 
1988. This meant no 
new distribution sub
stations were added or 
under construction, 
and no transmission 
line was built.  

Due to our chang
ing rural population 
and membership, 
marketing and eco
nomic development 
programs continue to 
receive strong empha-

sis. We must continue 
to seek opportunities 
for growth of new or 
expanded load.  

A cooperative 
marketing program by 
a coalition of all gen
eration and transmis
sion cooperatives 
(G & Ts) serving in 
Iowa got off to a good 
start in 1989. This coa
lition, called the Iowa 
Marketing Coordinat
ing Group, has en
abled Iowa's RECs to 
present a strong, 
unified message to the 
consumer-members to 
encourage the use of 
electricity for energy 
needs in the home, on 
the farm and for busi
ness. The coordinat
ing group's first year 
projects included 
training, advertising 
and print materials
developed together 
with a common 
theme.  

A preliminary look 
at member survey data 
collected in the Corn 
Belt area last year tells 
us that our member 
systems' consumers 
continue to move 
away from what we 
have traditionally

4
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considered "typical 
REC farm members." 
Although still a major
ity, fewer and fewer 
REC consumers are 
full time farmers. A 
higher proportion of 
them earn a significant 
part of their living 
from off-farm income 
sources.  

As this change 
takes place, we realize 
the increased impor
tance of turning to 
rural economic devel
opment as a way to 
increase load and 
contribute to the 
growth of our rural 
communities. We 
continue to work 
closely with the Iowa 
Area Development 
Group to expand 
existing industry and 
attract new industry to 
our area. IADG, the 
first organization of its 
type in the country, is 
receiving increased 
national recognition 
for its work and its 
success in bringing 
growth to the Iowa 
economy.  

Through our inter
connected transmis
sion system, we con
tinue to work with the

Mid-Continent Area 
Power Pool (MAPP), 
the Western Area 
Power Administration 
(WAPA) and other 
utilities in our area to 
provide reliable, 
economic electric 
service. During ex
tremely hot times last 
summer, our units 
were called upon by 
neighboring utilities to 
provide needed gen
eration capacity for air 
conditioning load.  

In 1989, we re
ceived Rural Electrifi
cation Administration 
approval for a long 
term agreement with 
North Iowa Municipal 
Electric Cooperative 
Association 
(NIMECA). The 20
year agreement, which 
allows for sharing of 
transmission, genera
tion and dispatch 
services, combines the 
two systems and takes 
advantage of load 
diversity that should 
push the need for 
generating capacity 
additions well into the 
future.  

This agreement 
was approved by Corn 
Belt and NIMECA in

late 1988 and is work
ing well.  

In this annual 
report, we look at the 
past year in terms of 
finances, operations 
and activities. But as 
we look at the past, we 
must keep our eyes on 
ways to move ahead to 
the future-recogniz
ing new potential for 
our rural electric and 
municipal systems.  

Corn Belt is becom
ing more aggressive in 
marketing, economic 
development, genera
tion and transmission 
reliability and corpo-

rate leadership. We 
are working to identify 
new services or prod
ucts wanted and 
needed by our mem
bership.  

All of us at Corn 
Belt-including em
ployees, directors and 
member systems-will 
continue to work 
toward the common 
goal of providing the 
best service possible 
to the people we 
serve.

5



Year In Review

Corn Belt & NIMECA 
Begin Agreement 

orn Belt Power 
Cooperative and 

North Iowa Municipal Co
operative Association 
(NIMECA) completed their 
first year under a long term 
capacity sharing and trans
mission agreement 
adopted in late 1988.  
Official approval of the 
agreement from the Rural 
Electrification Administra
tion was received in 1989.  

The agreement pro
vides for the sharing of

both organizations' genera
tion capacity for 20 years 
and the joint ownership of 
transmission for the lives 
of the transmission sys
tems.  

NIMECA, a joint action 
cooperative of 12 munici
pal utilities, has been a 
member of Corn Belt since 
1966.  

Wholesale Rates 
Decline Again 

verage wholesale 
rates to member 

systems declined for the

Laurel Evans, 4, daughter of Dave and Lynette Evans, Iowa Falls, tries out her 
new bike won in Corn Belt's "Name the Groundhog" contest. Laurel submitted the 
winning entry "Wattson" as the name for the new groundhog promoting earth 
energy systems.

fourth consecutive year in 
1989. Average 1989 REC 
system rate was 42.98 
mills/kilowatt-hour.  

Approximately 
$579,000 was given in 
rebate to member systems 
on their November power 
bills.  

Information Days 
Teach about Corn Belt 

O ver 40 directors 
and employees 

from member systems and 
NIMECA municipal utili
ties attended Corn Belt's 
Information Days held in 
January.  

Corn Belt staff planned 
and presented the program 
which included informa
tion about history, genera
tion, transmission and 
electrical planning, finance 
and budget, organization, 
Rural TV and information 
services.  

Information Days 
concluded with tours of 
the Humboldt Control 
Center and the Humboldt 
Station.  

REC Groundhog 
Named 'Wattson' 

r he groundhog 
didn't 

see his 

shadow on Groundhog Day 
in February, but the day 
was bright for one young
ster who won a new 
bicycle for winning Corn 
Belt's "name the ground
hog contest."

6



Year In Review

Carrol Boehnke, Corn Belt director from Hancock County REC, promotes the use 
of electricity through microwave cooking in the busy fall season. Boehnke ap
peared in an ad sponsored by the Iowa Marketing Coordinating Group placed in 
REC and farm publications.

the board in February after 
18 years of service. He had 
been on the Butler County 
REC board for 29 years, the 
last 25 as treasurer, and 
had served as Corn Belt 
secretary for 10 years.  

Donald Feldman, 
Greene, replaced Taylor as 
Butler County REC's 
representative on the Corn 
Belt board.  

James T. (Terry) 
McNiel, Duncombe, retired 
in April as representative 
from Wright County REC.  
He had been on the Corn 
Belt board since 1981 and 
his local board for 12 
years.  

Replacing McNiel was 
Russell Krog, Eagle Grove.  
Krog is president of Wright 
County REC.

including utility rates, 
transportation systems, 
labor statistics and other 
information, and then 
identifies the best types of 
"target" industries for local 
expansion or attraction.  
IADG is the exclusive 
owner of the DevelopMen
tor package in Iowa.  

IADG provides Devel
opMentor program through 
its field staff, working with 
RECs and their community 
development organiza
tions.  

In addition, IADG 
expanded its efforts during 
the year by participating in 
national trade shows, 
making contacts and 
offering information about

Iowa's resources and 
benefits.  

Through targeting, 
sales, and offering assis
tance in funding financial 
capital, IADG has contin
ued to work for the benefit 
of its members. In 1989, 
IADG assisted 48 different 
business locations or ex
pansions in Iowa.  

New Directors Named 

wo new directors 
came on the Corn 

Belt Board of Directors 
during 1989.  

Harold J. Taylor, 
Mason City (formerly form 
Marble Rock), retired from

8
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Laurel Evans, daughter 
of Dave and Lynette Evans, 
Iowa Falls (members of 
Hardin County REC), 
suggested the name 
"Wattson" that was chosen 
as the winner by contest 
judges.  

RECs in Iowa are 
promoting earth energy 
systems as the most 
efficient heating and 
cooling systems available 
today. The groundhog was 
selected as an appropriate 
character to promote earth 
energy systems-living 
underground, taking 
advantage of the year
around constant tempera
tures of the earth.  

Over 100 entries from 
youngsters in a 27-county 
area were submitted in the 
contest.  

Patronage Dividends 
Distributed 

ividend checks 
totalling $250,000 

for retired 1977 patronage 
were distributed to mem
ber systems during Corn 
Belt's 41st annual meeting 
April 4, 1989.  

Elected to three-year 
terms on the Corn Belt 
board were: Donald 
Feldman, Greene (Butler 
County REC); Wilbur 
Harding, Rockwell City 
(Calhoun County Electric 
Cooperative); Roger Rust, 
Sheffield (Franklin REC); 
Dennis Larson, Laurens 
(Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative); and Norman

Although Corn Belt did not have major line or substation construction in 1989, 
crews were busy throughout the year with maintenance and upgrade projects.  
Here Corn Belt transmission crews move a short section of 69-kV transmission 
line on the Alden Tap in Hardin County to make room for Interstate 520 which will 
go through the area.

Kolbe, Sac City (Sac 
County REC).  

Jack Taylor, humorous 
speaker from Columbia, 
MO, spoke at the meeting 
and Helen Ducommun, 
Laurens, presented the 
spouses program about 
doll collecting.  

A special presentation 
was made to Harold 
Taylor, Mason City, retired 
director from Butler 
County REC, for his 18 
years of service to the Corn 
Belt board.  

1988 margins of 
$1,946,494 were allocated: 
reserve to contingent 
losses and expenses
$946,494; surplus-

$250,000; and deferred pa
tronage dividend to mem
bers-$750,000.  

IADG Targets Industry 

he four-year old 
Iowa Area Devel

opment Group expanded 
its assistance in 1989 
through a new computer 
package and targeted 
marketing for economic 
development.  

The computer pro
gram, called "DevelopMen
tor," is a sophisticated 
software program that 
takes data from local areas,

7
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Spring Storms 
Disrupt Power Supply 

orn Belt and area 
utility crews were 

busy as two storms, a 
month apart, struck major 
portions of north central 
Iowa during the spring.  

On April 22, a violent 
storm ripped through 
Humboldt and Kossuth 
County areas bringing high 
winds, rain and hail. When 
it was over, millions of 
dollars of ruin had oc
curred to farm buildings, 
trees and power lines.  

Twenty-six of Corn 
Belt's 69-kV structures 
were felled, along with 
crossarms, insulators and 
hardware. Distribution 
rural electric systems suf
fered significant destruc
tion as well.  

Corn Belt crews had 
power restored to all sub
stations by noon the next 
day.  

On May 23, a second 
version of the April storm 
brought tornado-like dam
age, toppling 42 of Corn 
Belt's 69-kV poles. This 
storm hit hardest in the 
Spencer, Milford, Poca
hontas, Humboldt, Eagle 
Grove and Hampton areas.

Member System 
Approves Merger 

orn Belt's north
ernmost system, 

Iowa Lakes Electric Coop
erative, Estherville, ex
panded its service territory 
through a merger approved 
by members early in the 
year.  

Voters from Iowa Lakes 
and Cherokee County REC, 
Cherokee, voted a merger 
of the Cherokee coopera-

tive into the Iowa Lakes 
system.  

As a result of the 
merger, Iowa Lakes grew to 
over 11,000 members with 
electrical service in eight 
counties. Corn Belt pro
vides wholesale power to 
the original Iowa Lakes 
portion of the merged co
operative, and Northwest 
Iowa Power Cooperative, 
LeMars, provides power to 
the former Cherokee 
portion.

Widespread damage occurred to farms, homes and power lines in the central 
Corn Belt area during two spring storms. Here one of Humboldt County REC's 
distribution poles served as a brake for a flying grain bin.

9



Year In Review

Electrical trades contrac
tors and utility personnel 

join in the seminar at 
Northwest Iowa Techni

cal College, Sheldon, 
during an earth energy 

seminar in August.  
Equipment for the proj

ect, donated by Corn 
Belt, its member systems 
and others, was installed 

in the basement of the 
college's model home to 

be constructed by stu
dents in the building 

trades program.  

Earth Energy Goes 
to College 

tudents at four area 
community col

leges won't have to rely on 
just textbooks to learn 
about the latest in heating 
and cooling technology
earth energy systems
thanks to the efforts of 
Corn Belt and its member 
systems in 1989. Neighbor
ing utilities (RECs, munici
pal utilities and investor
owned utilities) joined 
Corn Belt's efforts in por
tions of the project.  

Over $20,000 worth of 
closed-loop earth energy 
equipment was donated to 
North Iowa Area Commu
nity College, Mason City, 
Hawkeye Institute of Tech
nology, Waterloo, North
west Iowa Technical 
College, Sheldon, and 
Iowa Central Community 
College, Fort Dodge.

Closed earth loops were 
installed at all sites so the 
equipment can operate as 
it would in typical home 
and business conditions.  

The earth energy 
equipment will be used for 
demonstration, teaching 
and research purposes.  

Member System 
Changes Manager 

R~ obert Schulz, 
general manager of 

Calhoun County REC, 
Rockwell City, retired June 
30, after working 26 years 
with the cooperative. He 
had held the manager's 
position since 1971.  

On July 21, Schulz 
died unexpectedly from a 
heart attack.

Weston Karr, retired 
general manager from 
Plymouth County REC, 
LeMars, served as interim 
general manager until 
November 20, when Ted 
Goette, Mt. Pleasant, was 
hired as new general 
manager.  

Goette previously 
served as member service 
director at S.E. Iowa Coop
erative Electric Associa
tion, Mt. Pleasant.  

Iowa G&Ts Coordinate 
Marketing 

11 generation and 
transmission coop

eratives (G&Ts) serving in 
Iowa made a financial and 
staff commitment to work 
together last year in a 
coordinated statewide

marketing effort called the 
Iowa Marketing Coordi
nating Group.  

A committee with 
representatives from all the 
participating utilities 
guides the group's work.  

During its first year, 
the IMCG focused on four 
areas: marketing materials, 
training, advertising 
placement and research.  

Print ads, radio spots 
and brochures that fea
tured electric products and 
services important to all 
Iowa RECs were devel
oped. Topics included 
earth energy systems, secu
rity lighting, cooking 
appliances and electric 
water heaters. Ads were 
placed in various area 
media.  

Marketing training was 
sponsored for REC direc
tors, managers and mem-

10
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ber service directors and 
marketing personnel.  

Research on REC 
members' attitudes and 
information sources was 
carried out to guide the co
ordinating group's efforts 
in the future.  

Corn Belt Hosts 
Annual Member 
Information Meeting 

ince 1970, Corn 
Belt has sponsored 

a yearly "Member Informa
tion Meeting" to offer up
to-date facts and figures 
about its operations and 
plans with member system 
directors and employees.  

The 1989 information 
meeting November 30 
included topics of electric 
and magnetic fields, acid 
rain, greenhouse effect, 
economic development fi
nancial forecast, marketing 
update and strategic plan
ning.  

Corn Belt Personnel 
Changes-1 989 

New Employees 
John Adams, 

Technical & Environmental 
Supervisor-July 17 

Retired 
Norman McArthur, System 

Electrical Maintenance 
Superintendent-March 31 

Bob Roozen, 
Line Foreman-July 30 

Death 
Jerry McKenna, Journeyman 
Lineman-July 21

During the meeting, 
Iowa Area Development 
Group presented awards to 
member systems for out
standing work in economic 
development. Corn Belt 
received the Policy Devel
opment Award.  

Marketing Program 
Adds Rate 
Guarantee 

five-year whole
sale rate guarantee 

and all-electric heating and 
cooling rate were added to 
the Corn Belt marketing 
program in 1989.  

Earth energy systems 
and electric water heaters 
also continued marketing 
emphasis.  

Approximate year end 
installations (all Corn Belt 
systems) were: 

Dual Fuel ....... 80 
Interruptible ....... 110 
All-Electric ......... 350 
Earth Energy ......... 40 
Water Heaters ..... 600 

Rural TV Continues to 
Grow 

t year end, over 
1350 residents of 

northern Iowa were enjoy
ing Rural TV satellite tele
vision programming 
through members of 
Northern Iowa Services 
Cooperative (NISCO).  
Across the nation, the 
number of Rural TV 
subscribers had grown to

I I

The Franklin County Historical Society, Hampton, has 
plans to renovate the old Reeve diesel generating 
station, built in 1938 by Federated Cooperative 
Power Association of Hampton, and to turn it into a 
museum. This was the first generating plant in the 
United States financed with REA funds. Corn Belt 
and other RECs contributed toward the renovation 
project.

about 40,000 by the end of 
1989.  

NISCO was formed in 
1987 as an organization 
through which RECs in 
northern Iowa could offer 
satellite television services 
(and in the future, other 
services) to REC members 
and nonmembers.  

Corn Belt, RECs 
Donate to Preserve 
History 

historical group 
from Hampton 

was assisted by Corn Belt 
and several local RECs in 
its efforts to renovate the 
original diesel generating 
plant of Federated Coop
erative Power Association 
southwest of Hampton.

The Federated plant 
was America's first Rural 
Electrification Administra
tion-financed generating 
station, and came on line 
March 15, 1938.  

Federated and another 
power supply cooperative, 
Central Electric Federated 
Cooperative Association, 
Pocahontas, consolidated 
in 1947 to form Corn Belt 
Power Cooperative.  

In December, Corn Belt 
donated $5,000 and the 
original dedication plaque 
from the plant to the 
Franklin County Historical 
Society REA Power Plant 
Museum Committee for the 
project.  

The historical society 
plans to turn the plant into 
a museum.

11



Balance Sheets 
December 31, 1989 and 1988

ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT (Notes 2 and 6): 
In serv ice .........................................................  
Less-Accumulated depreciation .....................  

Construction work in progress .......................  
Nuclear fuel, net of amortization (Note 2) .....  

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS: 
N onutility property .........................................  
Investment in the National Rural 

Utilities Cooperative Finance 
C orporation .................................................  

Land held for future generating 
site (N ote 8) .................................................  

Decommissioning fund (Note 2).....................  
Other investments and receivables (Note 11).  

CURRENT ASSETS: 
General fund cash and temporary cash 

investm ents .................................................  
Special construction fund cash and 

temporary cash investments .......................  
Working capital advances ...............................  
Member accounts receivable ..........................  
O ther receivables ............................................  
Inventories 

Fuel, primarily coal, at last-in 
first-ou t cost ..............................................  

Materials and supplies, at average cost......  
Prepaym ents ................................................  

DEFERRED CHARGES: 
Deferred spent nuclear fuel disposal costs 

(N o te 9 ) ........................................................  
Deferred refueling costs (Note 2) ................  

O ther (N ote 7)..................................................

1989 

$181,791,823 
72,614,061 

109,177,762 

2,206,297 
9,140,465 

120,524,524

421,654

2,578,280 

3,856,509 
2,404,305 
4,862,669 

14,123,417 

8,457,568 

348,435 
257,734 

4,108,350 
255,706 

2,707,343 
1,851,993 

682,404 
18,669,533 

1,361,496 
380,886 
320,701 

2,063,083 

$155,380,557

1988 

$182,078,294 
69,040,458 

113,037,836 

4,261,473 
9,213,575 

126,512,884

426,050

2,600,583 

3,856,509 
1,086,350 

765,882 
8,735,374 

1,889,274 

392,445 
504,209 

3,663,352 
764,246 

3,597,450 
1,861,540 

657,315 
13,329,831 

1,521,672 
1,831,803 

73,887 
3,427,362 

$152,005,451

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these balance sheets.
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- Balance Sheets 
December 31, 1989 and 1988

MEMBERSHIP CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

MEMBERSHIP CAPITAL: 
Memberships, at $100 per membership .........  
Deferred patronage dividends, per 

accompanying statements (payment 
restricted as indicated in Note 3) .......  

Other equities, per accompanying 
statements .........................  

LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 4): 
Rural Electrification Administration .............  
Federal Financing Bank ..................................  
Capital lease obligations (Note 2) ...................  
Pollution control revenue bonds ....................  

Less - Current maturities of 
long-term debt ...... ................  

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES: 
Deferred com pensation .................................  

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Current maturities of long-term debt .............  
A ccounts payable ............................................  
Accrued property and other taxes ..................  
O th er ................................................................  

DEFERRED CREDITS: 
Deferred settlement credit (Note 10) ..............  
O ther (N ote 7) ..................................................

1989 

$ 1,400 

5,367,255 

10,920,296 
16,288,951 

50,964,992 
69,656,309 
8,076,993 
3,185,000 

131,883,294 

4,058,576 
127,824,718 

366,869 
366,869 

4,058,576 
3,778,226 
2,330,465 

445,596 
10,612,863 

287,156 
287,156 

$155,380,557

1988 

$ 1,400 

4,867,255 

9,953,166 
14,821,821 

54,303,178 
65,289,262 
5,707,762 
3,285,000 

128,585,202 

3,749,487 
124,835,715 

362,805 
362,805 

3,749,487 
4,957,419 
2,320,660 

421,393 
11,448,959 

526,457 
9,694 

536,151 

$152,005,451

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these balance sheets.
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Statements of Revenues and Expenses 
For the Years Ended December 31, 1989 and 1988

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Sales of electric energy .................  
Other ...............................  

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Operation 

Steam and other power generation ............  
Purchased Pow er .........................................  
Transm ission ...............................................  
S a le s .............................................................  
Administrative and general ........................  

Maintenance 
Steam and other power generation ............  
Transm ission ...............................................  
G eneral plant ...............................................  

Depreciation and decommissioning 
(N o te 2 ) ........................................................  

Property and other taxes .................................  

Net Operating Revenues ...........................  

INTEREST AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS: 
Interest on long-term debt ...................  
Other interest (Note 2) ....................................  
Interest during construction (Note 2) .............  
O ther deductions ............................................  
Amortization of loan expense ........................  

NET OPERATING MARGIN...............................  

NON-OPERATING MARGIN: 
Interest incom e ................................................  
O ther, net (N ote 11) ........................................  

NET MARGIN ..........................

1989 

$ 35,502,773 
2,407,092 

37,909,865 

13,821,223 
(573,219) 

1,181,259 
266,179 

2,883,253 

3,240,822 
554,442 
32,740 

6,288,172 
2,482,478 

30,177,349 
7,732,516 

8,494,828 
14,363 

(445,435) 
6,554 
1,383 

8,071,693 
(339,177) 

582,422 
1,449,285 
2,031,707 

$ 1,692,530

1988 

$ 36,561,194 
2,617,604 

39,178,798 

12,620,279 
869,566 

1,162,449 
225,767 

2,593,314 

3,342,241 
648,377 

35,833 

6,168,298 
2,484,454 

30,150,578 
9,028,220 

8,386,596 
(257,980) 
(505,969) 

22,143 
7,644,790 
1,383,430 

432,994 
130,070 
563,064 

$ 1,946,494

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended December 31, 1989 and 1988 (Note 2)

1989 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net margin ............ ...............  
Adjustments to reconcile net margin to 

cash provided by (used in) operations: 
Depreciation and decommissioning ...........  
Amortization of nuclear fuel ...........  
Amortization of deferred refueling costs ...  
Amortization of nuclear fuel disposal 

costs ........ ...................  
Reduction in long-term obligation (Note 2) 
Deferred settlement credit (Note 10) ..........  
Changes in current assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable ................  
Inventories ........................  
Prepayments ......................  
Accounts payable ..................  
Accrued property and other taxes ...........  
Other liabilities ....................  

Increase in deferred compensation ............  
Freight refund receipts (Note 10).......  
Other ....... ......................  

Net cash provided by operating activities

$ 1,692,530 

6,590,938 
1,493,348 
1,525,763 

160,176 

(526,457) 

(581,926) 
899,654 
(25,089) 

(1,179,193) 
9,805 

24,203 
4,064 

645,468 
30,650 

10,763,934

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds from long-term obligations ............. 8,072,920 
Repayment of long-term obligations .............. (4,774,828) 
Deferred patronage dividends paid ................ (250,000) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
financing activities ................................ 3,048,092 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Additions to electric plant, net ...................... (4,718,092) 
Additions to nuclear fuel................................ (1,420,238) 
Additions to deferred refueling costs............. (74,846) 
Additions to nonutility property .................... 4,396 
Decommissioning fund ................................... (1,317,955) 
Other investm ents ........................................... (7,482) 

Net cash used in investing activities ....... (7,534,217)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents ........................ 6,277,809

1988 

$ 1,946,494 

6,429,735 
1,600,068 
1,031,022 

160,176 
(264,423) 
(581,990) 

22,708 
771,103 
56,127 

2,882,514 
31,765 
(41,860) 

4,877 
696,405 
(98,345) 

14,646,376 

196,000 
(3,441,686) 

(200,000) 

(3,445,686) 

(5,373,047) 
(6,165,066) 
(1,831,803) 

(37,956) 
(82,547) 

(125,458) 
(13,615,877)

(2,415,187)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT: 
Beginning of year ........................... 2,785,928 5,201,115 
End of year ............................. $ 9,063,737 $ 2,785,928 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Statements of Deferred Patronage Dividends and Other Equities 
For the Years Ended December 31, 1989 and 1988 (Note 3)

DEFERRED PATRONAGE DIVIDENDS: ......  
Balance assigned beginning of year .......  
Net margin ...........................  
Lease revenue deferred patronage 

dividends ..........................  

Patronage dividends paid ...... .........

1989 

$ 4,867,255 
1,692,530 

24,600 
6,584,385

(250,000)

1988 

$ 4,317,255 
1,946,494 

19,500 

6,283,249

(200,000)

Appropriation of margin 
Reserve for contingent losses ................. (717,130) 
Statutory surplus. ........................ (250,000) 

Balance assigned end of year ............... $ 5,367,255 

OTHER EQUITIES: 
(Appropriated Margins) 

Reserve for 
Statutory Contingent 

Surplus Losses 
Balance December 31, 1987............ $ 1,349,484 $ 7,387,688 

Appropriation of margin ............. 250,000 965,994 
Balance December 31, 1988............ 1,599,484 8,353,682 

Appropriation of margin ............. 250,000 717,130 
Balance December 31, 1989............ $ 1,849,484 $ 9,070,812

(965,994) 
(250,000) 

$ 4,867,255 

Total 
$ 8,737,172 

1,215,994 
9,953,166 

967,130 
$ 10,920,296

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 1989 and 1988

NOTE (1) ORGANIZATION: 

Corn Belt Power Cooperative (the Cooperative) is a Rural Electrification Administration (REA) 
financed generation and transmission cooperative created and owned by twelve distribution coopera
tives and one municipal cooperative association.  

The Cooperative's Board of Directors is comprised of one representative from each member coopera
tive and is responsible for establishing rates charged to the member cooperatives.

NOTE (2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The Cooperative maintains its accounting records in accordance with the Uniform System of Ac
counts as prescribed by the REA. The significant accounting policies are described below.  

A. Electric Plant 
Electric plant is stated at original cost which includes certain pension costs, sales and use taxes, 

payroll taxes, property taxes and interest during the period of construction.  
Costs in connection with repairs of properties and replacement of items less than a unit of

16



Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 

* property are charged to maintenance expense. Additions to and replacements of units of property 
are charged to electric plant accounts.  

B B. Depreciation and Decommissioning 
Depreciation is provided using straight-line methods and REA prescribed lives. These provi

sions, excluding nuclear facilities, were equivalent to a composite depreciation rate on gross plant 
of 3.00% and 3.23% for 1989 and 1988, respectively.  

Under a joint-ownership agreement, the Cooperative has a 10% undivided interest in the Duane 
Arnold Energy Center (DAEC), a nuclear-fueled generating station, which was placed in service in 
1974. The Cooperative is depreciating its interest in the DAEC and each year's property additions 
subsequent to 1984 on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the initial Nuclear Regula
tory Commission license for DAEC (2010). The composite depreciation rate on gross plant for 
DAEC was 3.32% and 3.14% for 1989 and 1988, respectively.  

A site-specific estimate of the decommissioning costs of DAEC was updated in 1989. This report 
estimated the Cooperative's share of the decommissioning costs of DAEC to be approximately 
$29,572,110 (in 1989 dollars). The Cooperative is providing for nuclear decommissioning costs 
based upon a straight-line constant dollar method designed to accumulate a decommissioning 
reserve sufficient to cover the Cooperative's share of DAEC decommissioning costs by the year 
2010. The decommissioning provision was $868,190 and $514,416 for 1989 and 1988, respec
tively.  

The Cooperative has funded $2,404,305 of the accumulated decommissioning reserve by estab
lishing an internally managed decommissioning fund. The fund's assets are United States 
government securities.  

C. Nuclear Fuel 
The cost of nuclear fuel is amortized to steam and other power generation expenses based on the 

quantity of heat produced for the generation of electric energy. Such amortization was $1,493,348 
and $1,600,068 for 1989 and 1988, respectively.  

D. Deferred Refueling Costs .  
The Cooperative defers extraordinary operation and maintenance expenses incurred during 

refueling outages of DAEC. These costs are being amortized to expense based on the expected 
generation of the next fuel cycle which corresponds with the period the Cooperative is recovering 
these costs in its rates. Such amortization was $1,525,763 and $1,031,022 for 1989 and 1988, re
spectively.  

E. Interest During Construction 
Interest during construction represents the cost of funds used for construction and nuclear fuel 

refinement. The average rate was 7.4% and 6.6% for 1989 and 1988, respectively, and is based on 
the Cooperative's levels and costs of financing.  

F. Capital Lease 
The Cooperative has a long-term lease agreement with the City of Webster City (Webster City) 

under which Webster City has agreed to provide certain generation and transmission facilities to 
the Cooperative. In return, the Cooperative will pay a minimum charge which approximates the 
debt service on these facilities. The Cooperative has capitalized this lease and reflected it in 
electric plant and has reflected the related obligation as a capital lease obligation.  

G. Income Taxes 
The Cooperative is exempt from federal and state income taxes under section 501(c) (12) of the 

Internal Revenue Code.  

H. Statements of Cash Flows 
For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Cooperative considers temporary cash investments 

purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 

1989 1988 
General fund cash and temporary cash investments $8,457,568 $1,889,274 
Special construction fund cash and temporary 

cash investments 348,435 392,445 
Working capital advances 257,734 504,209 

$9,063,737 $2,785,928 

Cash paid for interest, net of interest capitalized, was $7,952,919 and $6,613,020 for 1989 and 
1988, respectively.  

NOTE (3) DEFERRED PATRONAGE DIVIDENDS AND OTHER EQUITIES: 

In accordance with the Iowa Code, the Board of Directors is required to allocate a portion of the 
current year's net margin to statutory surplus until the statutory surplus equals 30% of total equity. No 
additions can be made to statutory surplus whenever it exceeds 50% of total equity. The Board of 
Directors appropriated $250,000 of the 1989 net margin to statutory surplus.  

The equity designated, "Reserve for Contingent Losses" in the Statements of Deferred Patronage 
Dividends and Other Equities is an appropriation of equity by the Board of Directors. -The Board of 
Directors appropriated $717,130 of the 1989 net margin to Reserve for Contingent Losses. There is no 
statutory restriction of this equity.  

The Board of Directors is permitted by the Iowa Code to allocate the current year's net margin to 
deferred patronage dividends upon meeting certain requirements and is required to make such 
allocations if the net margin for the year exceeds specified maximums. The Board of Directors has 
appropriated $750,000 of the 1989 net margin to deferred patronage dividends. Deferred patronage 
dividends are to be paid in the future as determined by the Board of Directors.  

Under the conditions of the Cooperative's mortgages, deferred patronage dividends cannot be retired 
without approval of the REA and the National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation (CFC) 
unless the remaining equity meets certain tests. The Cooperative does not meet these tests at Decem
ber 31, 1989. However, the Cooperative received permission and retired $250,000 of the 1977 
patronage dividends during 1989 and plans to request permission to retire an additional $250,000 of 
the 1977 deferred patronage dividends during 1990.  

NOTE (4) LONG-TERM DEBT: 

Long-term debt consists of mortgage notes payable to the United States of America acting through the 
REA and the Federal Financing Bank (FFB), capital lease obligations, and notes issued in conjunction 
with the issuance of pollution control revenue bonds. Substantially all the assets and all rent, income, 
revenue and net margin of the Cooperative are pledged as collateral for the long-term debt of the 
Cooperative. Long-term debt is comprised of: 

1989 1988 
Mortgage notes due in quarterly 

installments 
REA 2% , due 1990-2008............................. $ 21,425,130 $ 24,130,981 
REA 5% , due 1990-2019............................. 29,539,862 30,172,197 
FFB 7.3%-13.5%, due 1990-2019 .............. 69,656,309 65,289,262 

120,621,301 119,592,440 

Capital lease obligations 
Webster City Revenue Bonds 

4.7%-7.5%, due 1990-1997 .................. 5,211,073 5,707,762 
Webster City Revenue Notes 

6.5%, due 1991 ......................... 2,865,920 
8,076,99 5,707,762 

Pollution control revenue bonds 
5%-6.25%, due serially 

1990-1997 and term due 2007......... 3,185, 0 0  3,285,000 
$131,883,294 $128,585,202
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Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are as follows: 
Year Maturity 
1990 ........................ $ 4,058,576 
1991 ......................... 6,859,539 
1992 ......................... 4,122,379 
1993 ......................... 4,208,681 
1994 ......................... 4,234,478 

In connection with the mortgage notes, the Cooperative had available at December 31, 1989, 
$9,494,000 of loan funds from FFB, $5,269,000 from REA and $3,882,000 from CFC to meet future 
borrowing needs. The Cooperative has approximately $2,500,000 of unreimbursed capital additions 
which they anticipate will be funded by a new loan from these sources in 1990. The Cooperative had 
available at December 31, 1989, an unused $12,000,000 line of credit with CFC of which $1,000,000 is 
available only in the event of disaster at DAEC.  

NOTE (5) CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS: 

Total construction expenditures for 1990, including expenditures for the jointly owned units, are 
estimated to be $6,168,000 of which $387,000 is for the purchase of nuclear fuel at DAEC.  

NOTE (6) JOINT PLANT OWNERSHIP: 

Under joint-ownership agreements with other Iowa utilities, the Cooperative had undivided interests 
at December 31, 1989 in three electric generating units as shown below: 

Duane 
Council Arnold 

Neal Bluffs Energy 
Unit #4 Unit #3 Conte 

Total electric plant................................ $44,648,968 $13,143,457 $56,765,584 
Accumulated depreciation ................... $14,798,170 $ 4,457,457 $16,609,109 
Unit accredited capacity - MW ............ 600 675 550 
Cooperative's share-percent ................. 11.63% 3.8% 10.0% 
Capital cost per KW .............................. $ 640 $ 512 $ 1,032 

The dollar amounts shown above represent the Cooperative's share in each jointly-owned unit. Each 
participant provided its own financing for its share of the unit. The Cooperative's share of direct 
expenses of the jointly-owned units is included in the operating and maintenance expenses on the 
Statements of Revenues and Expenses.  

NOTE (7) PENSION PLAN: 

The Cooperative has a deposit administration defined benefit plan which covers substantially all 
employees. The plan is funded jointly by contributions from the Cooperative and all participants.  
Assets are held on deposit by an insurance company in its general account.  

Benefits paid to retired employees are equal to 2-1/4% of the average monthly earnings multiplied by 
the years of service since January 1, 1973.  

The Cooperative has recorded pension expense equal to its funding contribution in its Statements 
of Revenues and Expenses consistent with the rate treatment afforded this cost.  

Net periodic pension cost for 1989 and 1988 includes the following components: 

1989 1988 

Service cost-benefits earned during the period .................. $ 301,238 $ 302,359 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation ..................... 324,843 269,077 
Reduction in pension cost from actual return on assets ............... (480,473) (574,167) 
Net amortization and deferral ................................. 131,854 259,758 
Net periodic pension cost - employees ........................... (83,239) (77,108) 
Net periodic pension cost - employer ........................... 194,223 179,919 
Change in expenses due to rate regulation ...................... (194,223) 36,335 

Total pension cost .................................................................. $ 216,254
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1989 1988 
Assumptions used were: 

Discount rate ........................ ............. 6.31% 6.74% 
Rate of increase in compensation levels ........................... 6.00% 6.00% 
Expected long-term rate of return on assets.... ................. 8.00% 8.00% 

The following table presents the plan's funding status and amounts recognized in the Cooperative's 
balance sheets as of December 31: 

1989 1988 

Actuarial present value of benefit obligations: 
Vested benefit obligation ................................................................ $3,378,693 $3,213,622 
Nonvested benefit obligation .......................................................... 274,622 241,041 
Accum ulated benefit obligation ..................................................... 3,653,315 3,454,663 
Provision for future pay increases.................................................. 1,604,419 1,185,957 
Projected benefit obligation ............................................................ 5,257,734 4,640,620 
Plan assets at fair value ................................................................... 4,771,838 4,750,172 
Projected benefit obligation (greater) or less than plan assets...... (485,896) 109,552 
Unrecognized net (gain) or loss ...................................................... 200,410 (117,442) 
Unrecognized prior service cost ..................................................... (2,545) (2,799) 
Unrecognized net transition obligation ......................................... 875 995 

Accrued pension cost recognized in the balance sheets............... $ (287,156) $ (9,694) 

The Cooperative does not anticipate making a funding contribution in 1990.  
In 1989, the Cooperative established a 401(k) plan which is available to all employees with the Coop

erative matching 50% of the employees' contribution up to 4% of the employees' wages.  

NOTE (8) LAND HELD FOR FUTURE GENERATING SITE: 

The Cooperative is a participant in Allied Power Cooperative of Iowa (Allied). Allied was organized 
for the purpose of building a generation plant and related transmission facilities to provide for the 
future power needs of its member cooperatives. During 1980, Allied determined that the estimated 
future power needs of its member cooperatives had declined and that the continued development of 
its plant site was not feasible. It is contemplated that the plant site will be developed in the future as 
the needs for power increase.  

NOTE (9) LIABILITY FOR SPENT NUCLEAR FUEL DISPOSAL COSTS: 

The Nuclear Waste Disposal Act of 1982 gave approval to the federal government to construct a 
repository for the nation's civilian spent nuclear fuel. The Act stated that funding for this repository 
would be provided by assessing nuclear generating unit owners a one-time fee for spent nuclear fuel 
being stored on-site at each nuclear facility in April 1983, and by assessing all future energy generated 
by nuclear facilities at a rate of 1.0 mil per kilowatt hour. The Cooperative is paying the post 1983 fees 
on a current basis and such fees are being charged to steam and other power generation expenses. The 
Cooperative has previously paid the one-time fee and is amortizing it to expense over a thirteen year 
period ending in 1998 which corresponds with the period the Cooperative is recovering these costs in 
its rates. In both 1989 and 1988, $160,176 was amortized to steam and other power generation 
expenses.  

NOTE (10) DEFERRED SETTLEMENT CREDIT: 

The Cooperative, as a participant in jointly-owned generating stations, was involved in several legal 
actions regarding coal transportation which were settled in 1986. Refunds received were used to 
reduce steam and other power generation expenses over a four-year period which began in 1986 and 
ended in 1989 in accordance with the period the Cooperative recovered these costs in its rates.
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NOTE (11) NIMECA COMBINED TRANSMISSION SYSTEM: 

In 1989, the Cooperative and one of its members, North Iowa Municipal Electric Cooperative 
Association (NIMECA), entered into a joint transmission agreement which allows several members of 
NIMECA an individual undivided ownership interest in and access to the Cooperative's transmission 
system. The agreement resulted in the Cooperative recording a sale of approximately $6,200,000 of 
electric plant and recognizing a gain of approximately $996,000. Corn Belt has a receivable of 
$4,066,000 from a trust established by NIMECA for ultimate payment to Corn Belt. The Cooperative 
will continue to operate and maintain the system. NIMECA members will reimburse the Cooperative 
for the proportionate share of operating expenses of the system and will contribute proportionately for 
all future capital additions of the system. The reimbursement of the 1989 operating expenses were 
$504,000 and were recorded as operating revenue. Additionally, the Cooperative and NIMECA entered 
into a capacity sharing agreement which provides for the sharing of generating resources for the next 
twenty years.  

Report of Independent Public Accountants 

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
CORN BELT POWER COOPERATIVE: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Corn Belt Power Cooperative 
(a cooperative association incorporated in Iowa) as of December 31, 1989 and 1988, 
and the related statements of revenues and expenses, cash flows and deferred patron
age dividends and other equities for the years then ended. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Cooperative's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing stan
dards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Corn Belt Power Cooperative as of December 
31, 1989 and 1988, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then 
ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting pri 1 

Chicago, Illinois, ARTHUR ANDERSEN & CO.  
February 22, 1990
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Statistics

Expenses

1989

G eneration ................................  
Interest and Loan Expense ......  
Depreciation 

& Decommissioning ...............  
T ax es ........................................  
Administrative and General ....  
Purchased Power .....................  
Transm ission ...........................  
S ales .........................................  

T O T A L ...................................

Amount 
$17,062,045 

8,071,693 

6,288,172 
2,482,478 
2,915,993 

(573,219) 
1,735,701 

266,179 
$38,249,042

Percent 
44.61 
21.10 

16.44 
6.49 
7.62 

(1.50) 
4.54 

.70 
100.00

Amount 
$15,962,520 

7,644,790 

6,168,298 
2,484,454 
2,629,147 

869,566 
1,810,826 

225,767 
$37,795,368
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1988
Percent 

42.23 
20.23 

16.32 
6.57 
6.96 
2.30 
4.79 

.60 
100.00

Net Margin Operating Revenue & Expenses 

Million Dollars Million Dollars 

2 40 

35 
Operating Revenue 

1.5 
30 

25 

0.5 

19801 1981 1982 19813 19814 1985 1986 1987 19818 1989 19801 1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 

Total Assets & Long Term Debt REC Peak Demand 

Million Dollars Megawatts 
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System Data 
1989 kWh Billed 1989 Revenue 

Member/Utility by Corn Belt to Corn Belt 

Boone Valley Electric Co-op .. .................. 5,603,256 $ 245,547 
Butler County REC ........................... 95,542,261 4,197,261 
Calhoun County Electric Co-op ................. 28,081,985 1,234,781 
Franklin REC ............................... 37,452,490 1,643,967 
Glidden REC ................................ 34,253,025 1,556,015 
Grundy County REC........ .................. 46,931,085 2,010,799 
Hancock County REC ......................... 42,328,239 1,845,871 
Hardin County REC .......................... 72,700,849 3,093,040 
Humboldt County REC ........................ 40,040,835 1,745,167 
Iowa Lakes Electric Co-op .................... 207,167,547 8,774,201 
Sac County REC ............................. 19,584,388 892,632 
Wright County REC .......................... 60,094,159 2,408,610 
NIMECA ................................... 71,992,603 3,054,284 
Webster City ............................... 104,099,266 4,455,727 
TOTAL ................................... 865,871,988 $ 37,157,902 

Load Summary 

Sources of Energy 1989-kWh 1988-kWh 

Duane Arnold Energy Center .................. 318,295,450 316,320,468 
Council Bluffs #3 ........................... 131,261,000 147,319,000 
Neal #4 .......... ......................... 476,699,000 361,071,000 
Humboldt Station ............................. 571,807 4,935,453 
Wisdom Station ............................. 27,621,600 32,370,100 
Webster City ........ ............................ 78,167 190,900 
NIMECA/Other .............................. 14,364,939 2,717,422 
Western Area Power Administration ............ 140,158,000 186,510,000 
Basin Electric Power Cooperative 0 138,950,000 
IPS Economic Dispatch ...................... (196,161,000) (235,700,000) 
MAPP Line Loss Repayment Procedure ............ 7,629,000 1,457,000 

TOTAL SOURCES .......................... 920,517,963 956,141,343 

Sales of Energy 

RECs ............. ....................... 689,780,119 692,131,404 
Webster City ............................... 104,099,266 98,005,572 
NIMECA ................................... 71,992,603 120,078,220 

TOTAL SALES ............................ 865,871,988 910,215,196 
System Losses ............................... 54,695,975 45,926,147 
TOTAL SALES & SYSTEM LOSSES ........... 920,517,963 956,141,343

23



Board of Directors

Seated, left to right: 
Clarence Lange, treasurer, Hardin 
Dennis Larson, vice president, Iowa Lakes 
Carrol Boehnke, assistant 

secretary/treasurer, Hancock 
George Toyne, executive vice president 

and general manager, Corn Belt 
Eugene Drager, president, Humboldt 
Paul Robertson, secretary, Grundy

Standing,left to right: 
Lawrence Wittry, Glidden 
Donald Feldman, Butler 
Roger Rust, Franklin 
Ronald Deiber, NIMECA 
Russell Krog, Wright 
Norman Kolbe, Sac 
Wilbur Harding, Calhoun
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Strategic Planning-Moving Ahead to the Future

orn Belt's basic 
goal has always 

been to provide an 
adequate, reliable 
supply of electricity at 
the lowest possible 
cost. A large part of 
our future should 
revolve around this 
same purpose. How
ever, we should also 
consider ways to meet 
other needs of our 
members and to opti
mize utilization of our 
human and physical 
resources.  

Conditions have 
changed considerably 
since Corn Belt's 
beginning over 40 
years ago, and things 
are changing now. To 
develop a plan for the 
future, Corn Belt 
began a process of 
strategic planning 
over three years ago.  
Out of this plan, de
veloped in 1986, have 
come such things as 
the Corn Belt Market
ing Plan, the Corn Belt 
Marketing Advisory 
Committee, support of 
the Iowa Area Devel
opment Group, the 
long term NIMECA 
agreement, and the 
Northern Iowa Serv
ices Cooperative

(NISCO) for satellite 
television.  

It is time again to 
review our strategic 
planning efforts and 
establish new goals 
and priorities for Corn 
Belt into the future.  
During the process of 
re-writing our strategic 
plan, we will be work
ing with the board of 
directors, the distribu
tion cooperative man
agers and the Corn 
Belt staff to gather 
input.  

Our first objective 
will be to clearly 
define Corn Belt's 
purpose and identity.  
In order to do this we 
must look at the past 
and try to establish 
whether those same 
objectives we had in 
the past are still ap
propriate today. If not, 
we must redefine our 
purpose in a changing 
world and establish 
those goals and objec
tives which will make 
life better for the 
members we serve.  

Once we have es
tablished new goals 
and objectives, then 
we must begin to chart 
a path to achieve these

new goals.  
I believe 

that the 
future will 
show a Corn 
Belt that has 
been able to 

adaptto 
change. One 
that will be 
focused on 
providing a 
quality of 
life for our 
members 
not even 
imagined 
today.  

You will 
see a Corn Belt provid
ing services to our 
members that they 
cannot provide for 
themselves or that are 
not available else
where. Electricity will 
continue to be the 
base on which every
thing else is built, but 
you will see a diver
sity of services in 
related areas.  

Today's business 
climate dictates that 
change is coming. By 
looking forward with 
strategic planning, we 
expect to be the leader 
of change, not the 
follower.

Dale M.  
Arends, 
Assistant 
General 

Manager
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About the Company 
IE Industries was formed in July 1986 to accelerate diversification 

outside the utility business. Its principal subsidiary, Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company, provides electric, natural gas and steam 
energy to residential, commercial and industrial customers, in Iowa.  
Iowa Electric is in its 107th year of operation.  

IE Industries' diversification efforts have resulted in development 
of subsidiaries in telecommunications, transportation and utility
related businesses. IE Industries also has a 9-percent equity interest 
in Telecom*USA, the fourth-largest telecommunications company, 
in the United States.*
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Financial Highlights

Operating revenues (000's) ....................................  
N et incom e (000's) .................................................  
Earnings per average common share ....................  
Dividends declared per common share ................  
Construction expenditures (000's) ........................  
Cash flows from operating activities (000's).........  
Sales of electricity to customers (Kwh) (000's) ....  
Total gas sales, including transported volumes 
(dekatherm s) (000's).............................................  

Number of common shareholders.........................  
Number of full-time employees ............................

1988 

$ 438,252 
$ 34,154 
$ 2.43 
$ 2.025 
$ 65,271 
$ 34,644 

4,704,329 

30,762 
26,353 
1,719

* Before cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles.

1987 

$ 412,778 
$ 29,529* 
$ 2.14* 
$ 1.99 
$ 52,887 
$ 34,042 

4,418,005 

27,291 
27,414 
1,591

Percent 
Increase Increase 

(Decrease) (Decrease)

$ 25,474 
$ 4,625 
$ .29 
$ .035 
$ 12,384 
$ 602 
286,324 

3,471 
(1,061) 

128

6 
16 
14 
2 

23 
2 

6.5 

13 

(4) 
8

Return on Average 
Common Equity 
14%

13 

12 

11 

10 

9 

8 

7

1985 1986 1987* 1988 
-Bfor cumulative effects of changes in acounting principles.  

The Company's return on average com
mon equity has continued to improve 
since 1985.

Quarterly High, Low, and Closing Prices of 
Common Stock (Dollars)
28 

27 

26 

25 

24 

23 

22 

21 

20

1L 1I8 i8t Znu aru 
1987 1988

Quarterly common stock dividends of $.505 and $.495 were paid by the Company 
during 1988 and 1987, respectively. The Company's common stock is traded on the 
New York Stock Exchange. The accompanying chart shows the range of trading 
prices for the last two years.
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IE Industries Description 
IE Industries Inc., is a 

diversified holding company 
with a broad range of busi
nesses in telecommunications, 
transportation and utility
related areas. The principal 
subsidiary, Iowa Electric Light 
and Power Company, provides 
electric, natural gas and steam 
energy to about 275,000 resi
dential, commercial and indus
trial customers in more than 
400 communities in Iowa.  
Fossil fuel units provide 70 
percent of Iowa Electric's 1,143 
megawatts of generating and 
purchased power capacity with 
nuclear providing the remain
ing 30 percent.

Vision Statement 
Our vision is to become a 

profitable, diversified, growing, 
vibrant business which is recog
nized for its sensitivity to 
customer, employee and 
shareholder needs. This busi
ness would: 
" Retain and expand the core 

electric and gas utilities; 
* Selectively invest in other 

businesses; 
" Maintain a strong customer 

service orientation; 
" Provide significant oppor

tunity for employee growth in 
an environment that pro
motes their ideas, self-esteem 
and financial well-being and 

" Provide continuing increases 
in shareholder value.

Diversified Businesses 
Telecom*USA: As a result of the merger between the Teleconnect 
Company and SouthernNet, Inc., IE Industries holds a 9-percent 
equity interest in the new entity, Telecom*USA. The new company 
is the fourth largest long-distance carrier in the United States.  
Long Lines, Ltd.: IE Industries has a 23.5-percent equity interest in 
this telemarketing, telephone switching and resort business. The 
company has demonstrated dramatic growth and has excellent future 
potential.  
Cedar Rapids and Iowa City Railway (CRANDIC): This wholly 
owned short-line railroad subsidiary moves and switches more than 
34,000 carloads of freight per year, benefiting from the growth of 
major grain processors.  
IEI Container Services Corp.: This subsidiary opened in 1988 to 
wash and repair railroad cars. Specializing in sanitizing the insides 
:of rail cars used to haul food and food products, the company has ex
perienced rapid growth.  
Industrial Energy Applications, Inc.: IEA owns and operates 
standby generating units. Its joint venture subsidiary, EnDYNA 
Power Corp., is penetrating the national co-generation market.  
MicroFuel Corporation: A joint venture subsidiary, this company 
developed the technology to micronize coal for burning in coal-fired 
generating facilities. The process is currently undergoing full-scale 
testing.

Strategy 
Having considered the corpo

rate vision, IE Industries devel
oped its "New Directions" strat
egy that is customer, employee 
and shareholder oriented. Key 
ingredients are: 
+ Customer-oriented electric 

and gas utility businesses, 
with expansion to other 
opportunities as they arise; 

" Intensified efforts to control 
costs in the utility business; 

" Profitable growth of IE 
Industries' non-regulated 
businesses and 

" Selective diversification 
into investments consistent 
with business capabilities, 
where profit potential exists 
at acceptable risks.

I * it
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Chairman's Message 

Dear Shareholder: 
For IE Industries, 1988 was a year 

of progress.  

*Utility business experienced 
significant increase in 
energy sales.  

*Diversified investments showed 
marked progress in expansion 
and growth.  

* Earnings per share posted gain 
from the previous year.  

* Iowa's economy continued its 
accelerated growth, with manu
facturing and food processing 
leading the way.  

Financial Performance 
From a financial viewpoint, 1988 

was a good year. Earnings per share 
rose from $2.14 (prior to the cumula
tive effects of changes in accounting 
principles) in 1987 to $2.43. Sales 
growth was strong, aided by the 
strengthening of the economy and 
benefits received from economic 
development efforts. Electric sales 
increased almost 7% and gas sales 
improved 13%. Earnings for 1988 
were assisted by a significant contri
bution from our diversified invest
ments, which provided 16% of 
consolidated earnings.  

Utility Business 
Utility business is our core busi

ness and it will continue to be the 
flagship of our company for some 
time to come. We must maintain its' 
strength and viability in an increas
ingly competitive environment.  

The aggressive program in busi
ness development launched in 1985 
has reaped significant benefits, not 
only for our company, but also for 
the communities we serve and the 
state at large. In 1988 several of our 
large industrial customers an
nounced major expansion plans. In
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addition, the decisions by Eastman 
Kodak to locate a $50 million bio
technology facility in Cedar 
Rapids, and NSK Corporation to 
build the largest ball -bearing 
manufacturing facility in North 
America at Clarinda, are clear indi
cations that Iowa's economy is 
indeed on the move.  

The sales of electric energy and 
natural gas exceeded our fore
casted goals. However,the record 
jump in energy consumption 
during the summer months 
signaled the need for us to review 
our production capacity to meet 
future demand. One of our major 
challenges in 1989 will be the in
creased effort in demand-side load 
management, and the promotion 
of innovative programs in the 
efficient use of energy. It is our 
goal to further delay major capital 
investment in new power plants.  

Environmental issues such as 
acid rain and the greenhouse effect 
will merit our close attention in 
1989. Federal legislation on acid 
rain is imminent, and it will 
almost certainly impact on our 
generation utilization and future 
planning.  

The need to have stabilized 
energy prices to protect our 
market position cannot be 
achieved without a sustained 
effort in cost containment and 
cost reduction. Therefore, this 
strategy, initiated in 1984, will be 
refocused in 1989, and new pro
grams will be pursued to optimize 
operational efficiency.  

Diversified Activities 
The goal of our diversification 

effort is to complement our utility 
operation and to enhance our 
shareholder values over the long 
term. The year of 1988 marked 
substantial progress in the targeted 
areas of telecommunications, 
transportation, and energy-related 
businesses.  

Our investment in Teleconnect, 
the fast growing, Iowa-based 
telecommunications company, 
continues to increase in value.  

In 1988 Teleconnect became a 
publicly traded company, and 
later merged with the Atlanta
based SouthernNet, Inc.. The 
resulting holding company,

Telecom*USA, is now the 
fourth-largest long distance 
service company in the United 
States, with a customer base of 
400,000 and revenue over $523 
million.  

In 1988 we also made a signifi
cant investment in Long Lines, 
Ltd., another telecommunications 
company with dramatic growth 
in its six years of operation. Cur
rently, Long Lines employs more 
than 2,000 people. Its diversified 
resort business in the Iowa Lakes 
region has had a significant 
impact on our utility business 
and also on the economic growth 
of the area.  

In the transportation sector, 
the Cedar Rapids and Iowa City 
Railway Company (CRANDIC) 
had another successful year. In a 
strategic move to expand its com
petitive position, the CRANDIC 
successfully acquired a control
ling interest in the largest barge 
terminal north of St. Louis on the 
Mississippi River.  

The development of IEI 
Container Services Corporation, 
a wholly-owned subsidiary in rail 
car repair and washing, is also on 
target. We are satisfied with its 
progress and expect continuing 
growth in 1989.  

In the non-regulated energy 
business, we are active in two 
projects. One joint venture, 
MicroFuel Corporation, specializ
ing in micronization of coal, 
continues to make good progress.  
EnDYNA Power Corporation, 
another joint venture subsidiary, 
is making inroads in the national 
cogeneration business.  
Economic Resurgence 

The economic recovery in 
Iowa, which began in 1987, 
gained additional strength last 
year. The unemployment rate is 
now at four percent. Farm and 
land values rose twenty percent, 
and manufacturing employment 
increased substantially for the 
first time in almost fifteen years.  

This economic resurgence is 
even more evident in the service

territory of our utility business.  
In eastern Iowa housing starts 
doubled from 1985 to 1988, and 
service industries such as data 
processing and telemarketing, 
almost non-existent a decade ago, 
now employ thousands of workers.  

Indeed we are encouraged by the 
progress made thus far and 
enthusiastic about the future. In 
the environment of economic 
resurgence, we expect to find new 
markets for our products and 
services, and added opportunities 
for expansion. The past year's de
velopments reaffirmed our belief 
in our vision and strategy. We look 
upon the year of 1989 with opti
mism, and we realize that our 
success will depend on meeting 
new challenges and capitalizing on 
new opportunities.  

The progress made in 1988 
could not have been achieved 
without the commitment and dedi
cation of our employees, and the 
continuing encouragement and 
support of the shareholders. To all 
of you, our deepest appreciation 
and gratitude.* 

Sincerely, 

Lee Liu

II
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Converting Energy into 
Opportunity

energy into opportuT he phrase "converting 
nity" is more than a 
theme statement for 

this report. This Company has 
been creating opportunities for 
itself and Iowa for years.  

The news from the heartland 
is laced with optimism. Agri
business and a diversified core 
of manufacturing, appliance, 
automotive, electronics firms 
and grain processors are pros
pering.  

Farmland prices rose another 
20 percent in 1988, the second 
significant gain in as many 
years. The unemployment rate 
is at 4 percent, with some areas 
experiencing labor shortages.  
Housing starts have doubled 
since 1985.  

Our aggressive economic de
velopment effort continues to 
play an important role in the re
surgence of the Iowa economy.  
Over the past two years, eco
nomic development efforts 
brought in or saved some 9,000 
jobs. Communities in the Iowa 
Electric service territory like 
Fairfield, Marshalltown, Clar
inda and Cedar Rapids have 
been particularly successful in 
their efforts.  

The agricultural sector in this 
state certainly had difficulties 
in the mid 1980s. However, 
Iowa moves into the 1990s with 
a recognition of the importance 
of a diversified economy to its 
continued economic well-being.  
We are committed to this goal 
as we assist in the economic

Electric Capability and System Peak Load 
In thousands of kilowatts
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Capability-Generated Capability-Purchased 

Iowa Electric's 1988 peak load of 1,049,341 kilowatts occurred on August 15. Its ad
ditional reserve obligation was 153,651 kilowatts. Available generating capability at 
that time was 1,052,550 kilowatts, supplemented by 115,000 kilowatts of purchased 
capability.  

development of the communities 
we serve.  

It is the customers, employees 
and shareholders of this Com
pany who will be the real benefi
ciaries of this economic resur
gence because the recovery bodes 
well for the growth and contin
ued success of our utility busi
ness and diversified interests.*
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W hen IE Industries was formed in 1986, the "new 
directions" corpo

rate strategy was adopted. That 
strategy built upon a core utility 
base to diversify into other busi
nesses which are directly 
related to existing business and 
expertise. As a result, the diver
sification effort at IE Industries 
has been focused in the areas of 
energy, transportation and tele
communications.  

* Energy 

Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company 

The overall corporate strategy 
of IE Industries has, from the 
beginning, been anchored on a 
strong commitment to manag
ing, strengthening and position
ing the principal subsidiary, 
Iowa Electric Light and Power 
Company, to take advantage of 
emerging opportunities while 
controlling costs and offering 
customers superior service.  

Electric Operations 
1988 was a record-breaking 

year for the utility business. In 
August, the company hit a new 
record for electric demand. For 
the year, electric sales grew by 
6.5 percent over 1987, with 
actual sales of 4.7 billion 
kilowatt hours. Although the 
hot summer weather was re
sponsible for about half of this 
load growth, the continued 
growth of the economy in Iowa 
has created real sales increases 
among all major classes, par
ticularly with industrial and

commercial customers. After 
normalizing for weather, that's a 
3.9 percent increase from 1987, 
and 3.5 percent above forecast.  

The challenge associated with 
the increased load demand is 
the apparent need for additional 
generation capacity in the 
future. Iowa Electric has an 
aggressive demand-side load 
management program which 
emphasizes time-of-day and 
interruptible service pricing, as 
well as a seasonal pricing 
structure. These programs 
produce total load savings in the 
150 to 200 megawatt range, 
which would be equivalent to 
plant expansion costing in 
excess of $200 million. To meet 
the increasing energy demand, 
our least-cost planning strategy 
calls for an acceleration of this 
demand-side program and new 
energy efficiency programs 
while new plant construction 
is delayed.  

Gas Operations 
The natural gas business con

tinues to experience healthy 
volume growth. Iowa Electric's 
aggressive and innovative 
strategy on the gas spot market 
and in the contract carriage 
business has placed us in a 
position to look for opportu
nities to expand our gas opera
tions.  

In December, in an effort to 
consolidate the gas business, 
Iowa Electric sold its Nebraska 
gas operations, which included 
service to five small eastern 
Nebraska communities.  

Challenges 
The utility business will face 

a number of challenges in the 
near future with generation

Year-End Investment in 
Diversified Companies 
In millions of dollars 
90

1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 

The increase in the investment in di
versified companies in 1988 is related 
to the Telecom*USA and Long Lines, 
Ltd. investments.  

planning, environmental issues, 
cost containment and an in
creasingly competitive market
place. These areas will be the 
focus of our planning for 1989 
and beyond.  

Industrial Energy 
Applications, Inc.  

In 1988, Industrial Energy 
Applications, Inc. (IEA) and its 
joint venture subsidiary, 
EnDYNA Power Corporation, 
moved to capture a share of the 
nationwide cogeneration busi
ness. An East Coast office was 
established to move into the 
burgeoning independent power 
market in the East.  

MicroFuel Corporation 
A new concept on the cutting 

edge of technology in the coal
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business is the focus of the 
MicroFuel Corporation, based 
in Ely, Iowa. MicroFuel has de
veloped the technology and 
equipment to efficiently 
micronize coal for burning in 
electric utility coal-fired gener
atingfacilities.  

The milling process has wide 
potential application in the 
electric utility business. For 
fossil fuel generating facilities, 
it holds promise for both 
limiting environmental emis
sions and for providing greater 
flexibility using coal.i.  

Tests are under way, at Duke 
Power Company in North 
Carolina. A newly-constructed 
test facility in Ely is in opera
tion to simulate varying coal.  
quality and operating condi
tions. IE Industries-has made a 
venture capital investment in 
MicroFuel, and holds a major
ity interest.  

* Transportation.  
Cedar Rapids and Iowa City 
Railway Company 

The Cedar Rapids and Iowa 
City RailwayCompany 
(CRANDIC) continued its track 
record as a profitable short-line 
-freight carrier. Over the last six 
years, revenues grew from $7.6 
million to $10.7 million in 
1988, while earnings increased 
from $2 million to $3 million.  

CRANDIC expanded its -busi
ness in 1988 to include a barge 
terminal on the Mississippi 
River in East Dubuque, Illinois.  
The purchase of the Dubuque 
barge terminal provides

CRANDIC customers access to 
the Mississippi River for trans
porting coal and grain.  

IEIContainer 
Services Corp.  

The first rail cars rolled into 
this-new state-of-the-art rail car 
washing and repairifacilityin 
1988. This wholly-owned .  
subsidiary is a natural exten
sion of our transportation 
business. Its specialty is sani
tizing the insides of rail cars 
used to haul food or food 
products. In-addition, 
Container:Services is develop
ing a car repair business sub
stantially exceeding expecta
tions.  

* Telecommuncations 
Teleconnect 

The shining-starrof our diver
sification program continues to 
be our investmentin the 
Teleconnect Company, now 
Telecom*USA. 1988 was a 

'very big year for this rapidly, 
expanding telecommunications 
company. Teleconnect went 
public in the spring and soon 
after that, announced plans to 
merge with theAtlanta-based 
SouthernNet, Inc. The resulting 

* holding company, Tele
com*USA, is the fourth-largest 
long distance carrier in the 
United'States with combined 
revenues in excess of $523 
million.  

The merger was completed 
on a share for share basis. Both 
companies had essentially the 
same number of shares out
standing, so IE Industries 
retains a 9 percent interest in 
Telecom*USA and holds a 
seat on the board of directors.

Because of accounting rules 
concerning the extent of owner
ship interest, IE Industries will' 
no longer be able to record 
Telecom*USA's income, as was, 
done with Teleconnect. Cur
rently, the market value of.  
Telecom*USA's stock is sub
stantially in excess-of our.$32 
million carrying value.  

Long:Lines, Ltd..  
Another rapidly growing tele' 

communications company based 
in Sergeant Bluff, I6wa caught 
our attention in 1988. Long 
Lines- Ltd. operates-in ithe tel&
phone switching, telemarketing 
and resort businesses. It has.  
grown from 22 employees in, 
1983,,to more than 2,000 today.  
Most of this growth has'beerr iir 
the telemarketing company, 
PioneerT6letechnologies.  

Long Lines attracted our
interest because its management 
team has demonstrated areal 
ability to identify and seize 
opportunities in rapidly chang-
ing markets.  

The resort business of Long 
Lines has been focused in the
Lakes-region of northwest lowa..  
The area has become the premier 
tourist and convention center in 
Iowa. The resorts, Village East, 
Village West and Manhattan 
Beach have developed into one 
of Iowa Electric's largest north
west Iowa customers.*
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Diversification Tmeline

On July 1, 1986, IE Industries 

became the parent company 
of Iowa Electric Light and 
Power Company. IE Indus

tries later acquired Iowa Electric's 
subsidiaries. Those included the Cedar 
Rapids and Iowa City Railway Com
pany, Industrial Energy Applications, 
Inc. and Iowa Land and Building 
Company. IE Industries also held a 30 
percent equity interest in Teleconnect 
Company of Cedar Rapids.  

Since its inception, IE Industries has 
moved forward with an aggressive, yet 
focused diversification program. That 
focus is in businesses where IE Indus
tries has a developed expertise, like 
energy, transportation and telecommu
nications. Since 1986, IE Industries 
has added several companies to its list 
of investments and subsidiaries. This 
timeline provides information on what 
investments and acquisitions have 
been made in the short history of IE 
Industries' diversification effort.  

a IOWA ELECTRIC LIGHT I AND POWER COMPANY

IE 
INDUSTRIES

[ Container L U Services Corp.

IE held a 30 percent equity 
interest in this fast-growing tele

T ommunications company TUPBCO,#i%*X(E T* based in Cedar Rapids, Iowa.

Iowa Electric Light and Power 
Company provides electric, gas 
and steam service to 275,000 
customers in 55 Iowa counties.

July 
1986

(8/87) 24-hour centralized 
IE Customer Service Center 

fully operational.

February 
1988

N I
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(5/88) IE Industries acquires an 
equity interest in this Ely, Iowa
based research and devel

DU opment company focused on

developing the technology and 
equipment to micronize coal for 
burning in electric utility coal
fired generating facilities.

(4/88) IE Industries acquires an 
equity interest in Long Lines 
Ltd., a telephone switching, 
telemarketing and real estate 
holding company based in 
Sergeant Bluff, Iowa.

(5/88) Long Lines announces 
the purchase of Village East, 

located in Okoboji, Iowa.

(9/88) Pioneer Teletechnologies, 
Long Lines' telemarketing and 
telcommunications business 

expands to eastern Iowa with a 
facility in Iowa City.

() = ) = NN O M.  

(2/88) IEI Container Services and repair facility. The new 
Corp., a wholly-owned subsidi- plant, located in Cedar Rapids, 
ary of IE Industries begins op- Iowa, employs state-of-the-art 
erations as a rail car washing technology in its operation.  

(12/88) Teleconnect shareholders 
(5/88) Teleconnect offers 2.2 million approve a merger with the Atlanta, 

shares of common stock on the Georgia-based SouthernNet,Inc., under 
New York Stock Exchange. the holding company, Telecom *USA.  

(8/88) IE recognized by Iowa 
Community Action Association for 

development of Project Share, 
IE's energy assistance program.  

(6/88) CRANDIC purchases a 
controlling interest in Dubuque 
barge terminal to provide rail 
customers with access to the 

Mississippi River.  

(12/88) EnDYNA Power Corp. opens 
an East Coast office to develop 

cogeneration systems.

May 
1988

January 
1989

-4

April 
1988
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Management's Discussion 
and Analysis of the 
Results of Operations and 
Financial Condition 

The following discussion analyzes changes in the 
components of net income during the calendar years 
1988 and 1987 for IE Industries Inc. (Industries) and 
its wholly-owned subsidiaries (the Company).  

Results of Operations 
Income before cumulative effects of changes in 

accounting principles increased in both 1988 and 
1987 compared to prior years. The reasons for.the 
increases are explained in the following discussion.  

Electric revenues changed because of the following 
factors: 

Electric Revenues 
Increase (Decrease) 

from Prior Year 
1988 1987 

(in millions) 

Rate changes ............... $ (2.6) $11.3 
Recovery of fuel costs ................. 1.0 3.4 
Kwh sales and other ................... 12.9 3.3 

$11.3 $18.0 
Increase in sales (in Kwh) .......... 6.5% 1.7% 

In 1988, approximately one-half of the increased 
Kwh sales resulted from unseasonably warm summer 
weather and the remaining one-half from the 
strengthening of the Iowa economy. Iowa Electric's 
largest electric customer is constructing a co-genera
tion plant, a portion of which is now in service. An 
agreement has been signed with that customer 
through June 1, 1990 which provides for a minimum 
billing demand of approximately 50% of its histori
cal monthly usage. While the ultimate impact of 
losing the customer is uncertain, it is not expected to 
have a significant impact on earnings.  

The increase in 1987 revenue was primarily the 
result of increases in electric rates which were placed 
into effect in July, 1986 on an interim basis and May, 
1987 on a final basis.  

Offsetting the revenue increases during both years 
was an electric tariff decrease, effective July 1, 1987, 
filed with the Iowa Utilities Board (IUB) in order to 
reflect the effects of the Tax Reform Act of 1986.  
(See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further discussion of these rate 
matters.) 

Iowa Electric's tariffs include an energy adjustment 
clause which is designed to currently recover the 
costs of fuel and the energy portion of purchased 
power in billings to customers.

Gas revenues changed because of the following 
factors: 

Gas Revenues 
Increase (Decrease) 

from Prior Year 
1988 1987 

(in millions)

Rate changes ............................... $ 
Recovery of gas costs .................. 11.5 
Sales and other ........................... 1.5 

$13.0 
Increase (decrease) in sales, 
including transported volumes 
(in therms) .. ............... 12.7%

$0.5 
(29.6) 
_(5.9) 

$(35.0) 

(10.6)%

As reflected above, Iowa Electric's gas tariffs 
include purchased gas adjustment clauses designed 
to recover the cost of gas purchased for resale on a 
current basis. Gas revenues increased during 1988 
primarily due to increased sales volumes and the 
recovery of increased gas purchases. The decrease 
during 1987 resulted primarily from reductions in 
the cost of gas purchased and decreases in gas sales.  

Gas margins were $15.7 million and $20.2 million 
for the years 1988 and 1987, respectively. The 1988 
margin was adversely effected by the recording of a 
$5.0 million estimated liability to pipeline suppliers, 
included in gas purchased for resale. The 1987 gas 
margin decreased from 1986 by $5.7 million, primar
ily due to mild weather.  

Fuel for production increased during 1988 and 
decreased during 1987. The 1988 increase was pri
marily due to increased electric generation and a full 
year's amortization of coal contract termination 
costs, which are being recovered through rates. (See 
Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements.) The decrease during 1987 is primarily 
due to decreases in the cost of coal, partially offset by 
increases in fossil-fueled generation and a partial 
year's amortization of coal contract termination 
costs. The primary factor causing the increase in 
fossil-fueled generation was the nuclear refueling 
outage at the Duane Arnold Energy Center (DAEC); 
there was no refueling outage during 1986.  

Purchased power decreased during 1988 as a result 
of increased electric generation as discussed above, 
as well as reduced capacity purchase charges under a 
long-term power purchase contract. Purchased 
power costs increased during 1987 primarily because 
of energy purchases made during the refueling 
outage at the DAEC and decreased sales to other utili
ties. A reduction in the cost of capacity purchases 
under the long-term power purchase contract par
tially offset the increases.  

Combined other operation and maintenance ex
penses increased during 1988 and 1987. Such 
increases resulted primarily from increased costs 
incurred at the DAEC during the refueling in both
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Electric Sales 
In billions of kilowatt-hours

Fuel Cost 
Per million Btu's burned
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Electric sales increased 6.5% from 1987 to 4,704,329,000 kilo
watt-hours. Residential sales increased 7% and rural sales in
creased 4%. Commercial sales increased 7% while industrial 
sales increased 6%. Sales for resale and other increased 6%.  
The 5-year compound rate of growth is 2%.
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Coal prices have decreased 47% since 1984, primarily as a result 
of the termination of two long-term coal contracts. In 1988, aver
age fuel costs decreased 6% because of greater nuclear-fueled 
generation.
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Total volumes delivered, including transported volumes, were 
30,762,000 dekatherms, a 13% increase from 1987. Residential 
end commercial sales both increased 15%. Industrial sales de
creased 4% but industrial volumes delivered, including trans
ported volumes, increased 10%.
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years. Also contributing to the increase in 1988 were 
increased costs associated with maintenance on 
distribution lines, as well as increased operating 
costs of a diversified subsidiary which began opera
tions in December, 1987.  

Depreciation and amortization expense increased 
during 1988 and decreased during 1987. The 1988 
increase is primarily attributable to increased utility 
plant in service and a higher provision for decom
missioning. The 1987 decrease resulted from the 
effect of an adjustment to reflect the change in 
the useful life of the DAEC from 28 to 36 years, 
partially offset by the provision for decommission
ing.  

Taxes other than income taxes increased in 1988 
because of increased property taxes, resulting from 
higher assessed values.  

Interest expense increased during both 1988 and 
1987 primarily due to increases in the average 
amount of debt outstanding during the year partially 
offset by decreased average interest rates.  

Income from stock transactions of affiliate of $5.8 
million and $2.3 million for 1988 and 1987, respec
tively, is explained in Note 1(c) of the Notes to Con
solidated Financial Statements.  

Miscellaneous, net for 1987 reflects the write-off of 
disallowed allowance for funds used during con
struction (AFC) recorded for the Guthrie County 
generating station. (See Note 2 of the Notes to Con
solidated Financial Statements.) 

Changes in income taxes for 1988 and 1987 are 
primarily related to reductions in the Federal statu
tory income tax rates from 46% in 1986 to 40% in 
1987 and 34% in 1988 and reductions in taxable 
income. See Notes 1(i) and 4 of the Notes to Consoli
dated Financial Statements for detailed discussions 
of income tax matters, including a discussion of 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96 
(SFAS 96) which establishes accounting and report
ing standards for the effects of income taxes.  

Net income for 1987 was affected by two changes 
in accounting principles. Iowa Electric began record
ing revenue for service rendered but unbilled at 
month-end. The cumulative effect as of January 1, 
1987 of recording such unbilled revenues increased 
net income by $6,894,000. In addition, pursuant to a 
rate order of the IUB, Iowa Electric was allowed to 
recover the cost (after the AFC write-off referred to 
above) associated with cancelled projects, but with
out rate base treatment. In accordance with SFAS 
90, an adjustment of $2,347,000, net of income taxes, 
was recorded to discount the future revenues associ
ated with such recoverable costs. Both adjustments 
were presented as changes in accounting principles 
in the Consolidated Statements of Income. (See 
Notes 1(e) and 2, respectively, of the Notes to Con
solidated Financial Statements.) 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 
The Company's capital requirements are primarily 

attributable to Iowa Electric's construction program,

Industries' diversification activities and maturing 
debt and sinking fund requirements. It is anticipated 
that future capital requirements will be met by both 
cash flows from operating activities and external 
financing. Cash flows from operating activities is 
dependent on economic conditions as well as timely 
rate relief for Iowa Electric. Access to the long-term 
and short-term capital and credit markets is neces
sary for obtaining funds externally.  

Construction Program 
The Company's construction program consists 

principally of improvements to Iowa Electric's exist
ing electric production, transmission and 
distribution facilities in service. Construction expen
ditures during 1989 are expected to approximate $60 
million. The levels of construction are projected to 
decrease 20% in 1990 and remain relatively stable 
through the early 1990's. It is estimated that ap
proximately 85% of construction expenditures will 
be provided by cash flows from operating activities 
(after dividends and decommissioning, and exclud
ing capital lease obligations and other changes in 
assets and liabilities) for the five year period 1989
1993. The construction program will be modified as 
necessary for changing economic conditions, timeli
ness of rate relief and other relevant factors.  

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 (the Act) significantly 
modified many provisions of the Federal income tax 
law. The modifications include a reduction in the 
corporate income tax rate and repeal of the invest
ment tax credit. Generally, the provisions of the Act 
have had an adverse impact on the Company's 
cash flows from operating activities.  

Long-Term Financing 
During 1988, Iowa Electric issued $100 million of 

long-term debt, the proceeds of which were used to 
redeem $35 million of Series V, 11%, First Mortgage 
Bonds, which matured during 1988, and $30 million 
of Series T, 14.75%, First Mortgage Bonds, due 1991, 
redeemed at par. The remaining proceeds were used 
to repay commercial paper.  

In addition to periodic sinking fund requirements 
and serial redemptions relating to a pollution control 
bond issue, $45 million of Series 1986 Debentures 
and two First Mortgage Bond issues totaling $16.8 
million will mature prior to 1994. Refer to the table 
shown in Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Finan
cial Statements for more details.  

The Indenture pursuant to which Iowa Electric's 
First Mortgage Bonds are issued contains covenants 
restricting the amount of additional bonds which 
may be issued thereunder. At December 31, 1988, 
such restrictions would have allowed Iowa Electric 
to issue $109 million of First Mortgage Bonds.  

The Articles of Incorporation of Iowa Electric au
thorize and limit the aggregate amount of additional 
shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock and Cumula
tive Preference Stock which may be issued. At 
December 31, 1988, under applicable limitations,
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Iowa Electric could issue shares in excess of the 
number currently authorized for both classes of stock.  

Short-Term Financing 
For interim financing, Iowa Electric is authorized 

by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission to 
.issue up to $75,000,000 of short-term notes, of which 
a maximum of $65,000,000 can be in the form of 
commercial paper. This availability of short-term 
financing provides Iowa Electric flexibility in the 
issuance of long-term securities.  

At December 31, 1988, Iowa Electric had lines of 
credit aggregating $51,000,000, of which $24,800,000 
was being used to support commercial paper. Addi
tionally, Industries had a $10,000,000 line of credit.  

Diversified Activities 
The Company's investment in Telecom*USA and 

other diversified companies increased significantly in 
1988 as compared with 1987. Refer to Note (1)(c) of 
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for 
further information.

Effects of Inflation 
Under the rate making principles prescribed by the 

regulatory commissions to which Iowa Electric is 
subject, only the historical cost of plant is recover
able in revenues as depreciation. As a result, Iowa 
Electric has experienced a loss equivalent to the 
current year's impact of inflation on utility plant.  

In addition, the regulatory process imposes a sub
stantial time lag between the time when operating 
and capital costs are incurred and when they are 
recovered. During periods of inflation, this lag, 
coupled with rates based on historical costs and 
inadequate rates of return allowed on common 
equity, produce revenues which do not recover the 
cost, in terms of purchasing power, of the productive 
facilities used to provide services to current custom
ers. While the inflation gain related to debt and 
preferred stock financing reduces the effect of this 
loss, the common shareholders still experience a net 
erosion in their investment due to inflation. Since 
1984, the inflation rate has ranged from 1% to 4%.

Selected Consolidated Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 
The following unaudited consolidated quarterly data, in the opinion of the Company, includes all adjustments 

necessary for the fair presentation of such amounts.  
Quarter Ended 

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 
(in thousands)

1988 
R ev en u es ...................................................................  
Operating income ...............................  
N et in com e ................................................................  
Earnings per average common share........................  

1987 
R ev en u es ...................................................................  
O perating incom e .....................................................  
Income before cumulative effects of 

changes in accounting principles...........................  
Cumulative effects of changes in 

accounting principles .............................................  
N et in com e ................................................................  
Earnings per average common share before 

cumulative effects of changes 
in accounting principles ........................................  

Cumulative effects of changes in 
accounting principles .............................................  

Earnings per average common share........................  

Because the Iowa Electric results of operation are a 
significant portion of the consolidated results, the 
above amounts are affected by seasonal weather 
conditions and the timing of utility rate changes.  

Electric kilowatt-hour sales increased 11%, 3.6%, 
8% and 3.6% during the four quarters of 1988 com
pared to the comparable quarters in the prior year.  
These increases were influenced by abnormal 
weather conditions and the strengthening of the Iowa 
economy. Additionally, Iowa Electric experienced

$119,542 
16,709 
8,408 

0.60 

$105,271 
17,479 

5,225 

4,547 
9,772 

0.38 

0.34 
0.72

$86,418 
9,224 
6,855 

0.49

$124,081 
33,128 
16,872 

1.20

$89,980 $120,443 
8,730 36,946

3,701 

3,701 

0.27 

0.27

17,290 

17,290 

1.25 

1.25

$108,211 
4,847 
2,019 

0.14 

$ 97,084 
9,644 

3,313 

3,313 

0.24 

0.24

increases in gas sales, including transported volumes, 
of 20%, 13%, 5% and 7% during the four quarters of 
1988 primarily as a result of a colder heating season 
than in 1987.  

Net income for the second quarter of 1988 was 
benefited from the initial public offering of Telecon
nect Company. The transaction increased Industries' 
share of Teleconnect's net assets and resulted in a 
$5.8 million pre-tax credit to "Interest expense and 
other - Income from stock transactions of affiliate."
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Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of 
IE Industries Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets and statements of capitalization of IE 
Industries Inc. (an Iowa corporation) and subsidiary 
companies as of December 31, 1988 and 1987, and 
the related consolidated statements of income, 
retained earnings and cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 1988. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with gen
erally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assess
ing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluat
ing the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of IE Industries Inc. and subsidiary 
companies as of December 31, 1988 and 1987, and 
the results of their operations and their cash flows for 
each of the three years in the period ended December 
31, 1988, in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles.  

As discussed in Notes 1(e) and 2 to the consoli
dated financial statements, during 1987 IE Industries 
Inc.'s wholly-owned subsidiary, Iowa Electric Light 
and Power Company, changed its methods of ac
counting for revenues and for regulatory disallow
ances of cancelled plant costs.  

Chicago, Illinois 
February 3, 1989
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986 

(in thousands)

Revenues: 
Electric ......................................................  
Gas .........................................................  
Other .......................................................

$314,769 
103,165 

20,318 
438,252

$303,491 
90,171 
19,116 

412,778

$285,448 
125,158 
18,639 

429,245

Expenses: 
Gas purchased for resale.................................................................................. 84,153 71,995 99,867 
Fuel for production .......................................................................................... 60,093 56,011 57,234 
Purchased pow er, net ...................................................................................... 44,697 49,667 46,565 
Operation 

Change in adjustment clause balances ......................................................... 3,020 (2,048) (107) 
O th er............................................................................................................... 92,066 88,098 79,019 

M aintenance................................................................................................... 27,728 24,046 21,188 
Depreciation and am ortization........................................................................ 38,704 31,784 34,226 
Taxes other than incom e taxes ........................................................................ 23,883 20,426 18,982 

374,344 339,979 356,974 

Operating income ......................... ........................ 63,908 72,799 72,271 

Interest expense and other: 
Interest expense ............................................................................................... 27,828 26,193 25,305 
Allowance for funds used during construction.............................................. (1,455) (1,198) (2,375) 
Preferred and preference dividend requirements of subsidiary .................... 1,641 1,812 3,410 
Income from stock transactions of affiliate..................................................... (5,826) (2,344) 
M iscellaneous, net........................................................................................... (1,147) 4,237 (1,187) 

21,041 28,700 25,153 

Income before income taxes and cumulative effects of changes in 
accounting principles ..................................... ........ 42,867 44,099 47,118 

Federal and state income taxes ....................................... 8,713 14,570 18,582 

Income before cumulative effects of changes 
in accounting principles ........................................... 34,154 29,529 28,536 

Cumulative effect of discounting recoverable cancelled plant 
costs, net of $1,177,000 income tax benefit.. ........................... - (2,347) 

Cumulative effect of change in method of 
accounting for revenues, less income taxes of $4,599,000 ................. -

Net income - As reported .......................................... $ 34,154 $ 34,076 $ 28,536 

- Pro forma (Notes 1 (e) and 2) ............................ $ 34,154 $ 29,529 $ 23,641 

Average number of common shares outstanding... ...................- 14,053 13,748 13,408 

Earnings per, average common share before 
cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles.................$ 2.43 $ 2.14 $ 2.13 

Cumulative effect of discounting recoverable 
cancelled plant costs............................................... - (.17) 

Cumulative effect of change in method of 
accounting for revenues........................................._ _ .51 

Earnings per average common share -As reported ...................... $ 2.43 $ 2.4 $ 2.13 

-Pro forma (Notes 1 (e) and 2)............. $ 2.43 $ 2.14 $ 1.76 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets

Property, plant and equipment, at original cost: 
Utility 
Plant in service 

E le c tric ........................................................................ ...................................................  
G a s .............................................................................. ...................................................  
O th e r ........................................................................... ...................................................  

Less - Accum ulated depreciation ..................................................................................  

Leased nuclear fuel, net of am ortization ....................................................................  
Construction w ork in progress ......................................................................................  

Other property, net of accumulated depreciation of $4,635,000 and 
$3,066,000, respectively ...............................................

December 31 
1988 1987 

(in thousands)

$ 943,541 
72,010 
31,586 

1,047,137 
410,178 
636,959 
66,200 
26,461 

729,620

$ 905,252 
70,842 
27,639 

1,003,733 
378,635 
625,098 

33,866 
15,373 

674,337

29,979 23,000 
759,599 697,337

Current assets: 
Cash ........................................................................... 1,714 1,407 
Accounts receivable 

Customer, less reserve ...................................................... 36,589 35,587 
Other ....................................................................... 9,581 4,816 

Unbilled revenues .......................................................... 12,546 11,224 
Income tax refunds receivable ................................................. 2,694 582 
Production fuel, at average cost..................... .......................... 18,114 15,220 
Materials and supplies, at average cost.................. ....................... 12,947 11,625 
Adjustment clause balances ...................................................- 2,903 
Prepayments and other ...................................................... 13,661 12,816 

107,846 96,180 

Deferred charges and other (Note 11) ........................................... 34,425 41,360 

Investments: 
Telecom*USA (Market value at 12/31/88 - $46,125,000) ............................................ 31,939 24,490 
Other diversified companies .................................................. 15,587 2,200 
Nuclear decom m issioning trust fund ............................................................................ 3,671 1,223 
O th er.................................................................................................................................. 3 ,7 9 9 2 ,2 7 2 

54,996 30,185 
$ 956,866 $ 865,062 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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December 31 
1988 1987Capitalization and Liabilities

(ini thousands) 

Capitalization (See Consolidated Statements of Capitalization): 
Common stock...........................................................$193,640 $187,383 
Retained earnings.. .................................. ........................ 77,283 71,273 

Total common equity ...................................................... 270,923 258,656 
Preferred stock of subsidiary.................................................. 18,320 18,320 
Redeemable preference stock of subsidiary....................................... 6,000 8,000 
Long-term debt ....................................................................................... 302,849 230,471 

598,092 515,447 

Current liabilities: 
Commercial paper .......................................................... 24,800 30,430 
Capital lease obligations ..................................................... 14,507 12,937 
Long-term debt maturities .................................................... 832 36,073 
Debt sinking fund requirements ............................................... 1,033 1,033 
Preference stock sinking fund requirements ...................................... 1,000 1,000 
Accounts payable .......................................................... 47,767 33,865 
Accrued interest ............................................................ 5,344 4,670 
Accrued taxes ............................................................. 21,878 16,586 
Adjustment clause balances .................................................. . 117 
Accumulated refueling outage provision ........................................ .- 2,437 
Other ....................................................................... 19,914 12,183 

137,192 151,214 

Other long-term liabilities: 
Capital lease obligations ..................................................... 56,645 26,454 
Other ....................................................................... 13,957 12,006 

70,602 38,460 

Deferred credits: 
Accumulated deferred income taxes ........................................... 107,100 115,042 
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits . .................................... 43,880 44,899 

150,980 159,941 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10) 

$956,866 $865,062
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Consolidated Statements of Capitalization 

December 31 
1988 1987 

(in thousands) 

Common equity: 
Common stock - no par value - authorized 24,000,000 shares; 

outstanding 14,164,049 and 13,883,161 shares, respectively ...................... $193,640 $187,383 
Retained earnings ($20,414,000 restricted as to payment of cash dividends) ............ 77,283 71,273 

270,923 258,656 

Cumulative preferred stock: 
Iowa Electric Light and Power Company - par value $50 per share 
authorized 466,406 shares; outstanding 366,406 shares 

6.10% - Outstanding 100,000 shares .......................................... 5,000 5,000 
4.80% - Outstanding 146,406 shares .......................................... 7,320 7,320 
4.30% - Outstanding 120,000 shares ......................................... .6,000 6,000 

18,320 18,320 

Redeemable cumulative preference stock: 
Iowa Electric Light and Power Company - par value $100 per share 
authorized 700,000 shares 

8.55% - Outstanding 70,000 and 90,000 shares ........................................................... 7,000 9,000 
Less - Amount to be redeemed within one year........................................................... 1,000 1,000 

6,000 8,000 

Long-term debt: 
Series 1986 debentures, 8-1/8%, due 1993 ....................................... 45,000 45,000 

Iowa Electric Light and Power Company 
First mortgage bonds 

Series I, 5-1/8%, due 1991 ................................................. 16,000 16,000 
Series J, 6-1/4%, due 1996 ................................................. 15,000 15,000 
Series K, 8-5/8%, due 1999 ................................................. 20,000 20,000 
Series L, 7-7/8%, due 2000 ................................................. 15,000 15,000 
Series M, 7-5/8%, due 2002 ................................................ 30,000 30,000 
Series 0, 9.80%, due 1991 .................................................. 2,855 3,888 
Series P & Q, 6.70%, due 2006.................... .......................... 9,200 9,200 
Series R, 8-1/4%, due 2007 ................................................. 25,000 25,000 
Series T, 14-3/4%, due 1991 .................................................. - 30,000 
Series U, 9-7/8%, due 2000 ................................................. 5,300 5,300 
Series V, 11%, due 1988 ..................................................... - 35,000 
Series W, 9-3/4%, due 1995 ................................................ 50,000 
Series X, 9.42%, due 1995 .................................................. 50,000 

238,355 204,388 
Guarantee of pollution control bonds, 5.73%, $600,000 

due annually 1989-1994; $10,200,000 due 2003 ................................ 13,800 14,600 
252,155 218,988 

Other subsidiaries' debt maturing through 1993 .................................... 8431 4,59 
305,586 268,587 

Unamortized debt premium and (discount), net ................................... (872) (1,010) 
304,714 267,577 

Less - Amount due within one year .......................................... 1,865 37,106 
302,849 230,471 

$598,092 $515,447 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986 

(in thousands) 
Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income before dividends on preferred and 

preference stock of subsidiary ..................................... $35,795 $35,888 $31,946 

Items not requiring cash 
Depreciation and amortization........................................................................ 38,704 31,784 34,226 
Principal payments under capital lease obligations ...................................... 12,304 9,963 12,080 
Deferred taxes and investment tax credits...................................................... (8,945) 3,045 3,462 
Amortization of deferred charges.................................................................... 7,122 6,210 5,658 
Refueling outage provision .............................................................................. (2,437) (3,948) 4,494 
Cumulative effect of recording unbilled revenues ......................................... (11,493) 
Discount of recoverable cancelled plant costs ............................................... - 3,524 
Disallowed costs associated with Guthrie County generating station ........... - 3,615 
Income from stock transactions of affiliate..................................................... (5,826) (2,344) 
Allowance for equity funds used during construction .................................. (594) (195) (1,271) 
O th er ................................................................................................................. 3,387 (983) (2,685) 

Other changes in assets and liabilities 
Account receivable, including unbilled revenues ......................................... (7,089) 4,959 2,550 
A ccounts payable............................................................................................. 13,784 (3,387) (4,200) 
A ccrued taxes................................................................................................... 3,181 (1,665) 1,429 
O th er.................................................................................................................. 2 ,703 1,059 (271) 

Net cash flows from operating activities .................................................... 92,089 76,032 87,418 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Dividends on common stock ........................................................................... (28,473) (27,370) (26,156) 
Dividends on preferred and preference stock of subsidiary .......................... (1,641) (1,812) (3,410) 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ...................................................... 6,562 7,805 8,106 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt ...................................................... 100,253 2,550 46,633 
Net change in commercial paper and short-term notes payable ................... (5,673) 11,730 (2,580) 
Sinking fund requirements and reduction in long-term 

debt and preference stock.............................................................................. (69,443) (3,884) (60,897) 
Principal payments under capital lease obligations ...................................... (15,523) (9,619) (12,584) 
O th er ................................................................................................................. (88) (50) (3,056) 

Net cash flows from financing activities .................................................... (14,026) (20,650) (53,944) 

Cash flows for investing activities: 
Construction expenditures .............................................................................. (65,271) (52,887) (42,618) 
Decom m issioning trust fund ........................................................................... (2,448) (1,223) 
O th er ................................................................................................................. (10,037) (1,446) 2,482 

Net cash flows for investing activities ........................................................ (77,756) (55,556) (40,136) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and temporary cash investments .............. 307 (174) (6,662) 

Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of period....................... 1,407 1,581 8,243 

Cash and temporary cash investments at end of period.................. $ 1,714 $ 1,407 $ 1,581 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
Cash paid during the period for 

Interest ....................................................... $29,914 $28,606 $28,028 

Income taxes ................................................... $16,452 $17,286 $13,241 

Capital lease obligations of $44,064,000, $2,013,000 and $14,117,000, respectively, for 1988-1986 were incurred for nuclear fuel.  

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings 

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986 

(in thousands) 

Balance at beginning of year............................................................................. $ 71,273 $64,192 $62,161 
Add: 

N et incom e ....................................................................................................... 34,154 34,076 28,536 
Tax benefit resulting from the deduction of ESOP dividends ....................... 329 375 585 

105,756 98,643 91,282 

Deduct: 
Cash dividends declared on common stock, at per share rates 

of $2.025, $1.99, and $1.95, respectively ..................................................... 28,473 27,370 26,156 
Preference stock redemption premiums of subsidiary ................................... - - 934 

28,473 27,370 27,090 

Balance at end of year 
($20,414,000 restricted as to payment of cash dividends) ............... 77,283 $71,273 $64,192 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

(a) Basis of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the 

accounts of IE Industries Inc. (Industries) and its 
wholly-owned subsidiaries (the Company), of which 
the principal operating companies are Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company (Iowa Electric) and the 
Cedar Rapids and Iowa City Railway Company 
(CRANDIC). All significant intercompany balances 
and transactions have been eliminated from the con
solidated financial statements.  

(b) Regulation 
Industries is currently exempt from regulation 

under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 
1935. Iowa Electric is subject to regulation by the 
Iowa Utilities Board (IUB) and the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC).  

(c) Investments in Diversified Companies 
In December, 1988, the stockholders of Telecon

nect Company (Teleconnect) approved the merger of 
Teleconnect and SouthernNet, Inc. Pursuant to the 
terms of the merger, Teleconnect became a wholly
owned subsidiary of Telecom*USA (Telecom). Each 
share of Teleconnect common stock outstanding 
immediately prior to the merger was converted into 
one share of Telecom common stock. Industries 
owns 2,460,000 shares or 9% of Telecom. Industries 
has accounted for the Teleconnect investment using 
the equity method; the cost method will be used to 
account for the Telecom investment.  

In May, 1988, Teleconnect sold 3,200,000 shares 
of its common stock in an initial public offering at 
$18.00 per share. The transaction increased Indus-

tries' share of Teleconnect's net assets and resulted in 
a $5,826,000 pre-tax credit to "Interest expense and 
other - Income from stock transactions of affiliate." 

In 1987, Teleconnect privately placed 1,554,000 
shares of original issue common stock at a price sig
nificantly in excess of book value. As a result, Indus
tries' share of Teleconnect's net assets increased 
resulting in a $2,344,000 pre-tax credit to "Interest 
expense and other - Income from stock transactions 
of affiliate." 

In April, 1988, Industries purchased a 23.5% equity 
investment in Long Lines, Ltd. (Long Lines), a rapidly 
growing telecommunications company headquartered 
in Sergeant Bluff, Iowa. Long Lines is also involved in 
developing real estate for recreational purposes. At 
December 31, 1988, Industries' investment exceeded 
its equity ownership in the net assets of Long Lines 
by $6,600,000. This amount is being amortized over a 
forty year period.  

(d) Depreciation 
Iowa Electric's provision for depreciation, except 

for the Duane Arnold Energy Center (DAEC), is based 
on straight-line composite rates. The average rate was 
3.4%, 3.3% and 3.7% of the cost of depreciable 
electric property for 1988-1986, respectively. The av
erage rate for gas property was 3.0% for 1988-1986.  

The DAEC is currently being depreciated over a 36 
year life using a remaining life method. Based on a 
study completed in 1985, Iowa Electric's 70% share 
of the cost to decommission the DAEC approximated 
$107 million in 1985 dollars. Iowa Electric began 
external funding of revenues collected for future de
commissioning costs in 1987. The total decommis
sioning funds accumulated at December 31, 1988 
were $25,380,000 including $21,709,000 of an inter
nal decommissioning reserve recorded as accumu
lated depreciation.



27

(e) Revenues 
In 1987, Iowa Electric began accruing revenue for 

service rendered but unbilled at month-end in order 
to more properly match monthly revenue with the 
cost of service provided to customers. The cumula
tive effect of this change and pro forma effects on 
income are shown in the Consolidated Statements 
of Income. The pro forma information presents the 
financial results which would have been experi
enced had Iowa Electric been accounting for reve
nues under its current method throughout the 
periods.  

(f) Allowance for Funds Used 
During Construction 

The allowance for funds used during construction 
(AFC), which represents the cost during the con
struction period of funds used for construction 
purposes, is capitalized by Iowa Electric as a compo
nent of the cost of utility plant. The amount of AFC 
applicable to debt funds and to other (equity) funds, 
a non-cash item, is computed in accordance with the 
formula prescribed by FERC. The aggregate gross 
rates for 1988-1986 were 9.3%, 8.2% and 10.8%, 
respectively.  

(g) Adjustment Clauses 
Iowa Electric's electric tariffs include an energy 

adjustment clause (EAC) designed to reflect the 
current costs of fuel, including nuclear fuel and an 
estimated cost associated with nuclear waste dis
posal, and the energy portion of purchased power in 
billings to customers. The clause is based on the 
estimated cost of fuel consumed and the estimated 
energy cost of purchased power for the current and 
immediately preceding months. A correction factor 
is included to reflect previous over-or-under collec
tions of revenue resulting from variances between 
the actual cost of fuel consumed and the amount 
included in billings to customers. Iowa Electric 
records the change in over-or-under collections by 
charging or crediting operation expense. The cumu
lative effect is reflected in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets as a current asset or current liability, pending 
automatic reflection in future billings to customers.  

Iowa Electric's gas tariffs include clauses designed 
to reflect changes in the cost of gas purchased for 
resale on a current basis. These clauses are ac
counted for in a manner similar to the EAC.  

(h) Accumulated Refueling Outage Provision 
The IUB allows Iowa Electric to collect, as part of 

its base revenues, funds to offset operation and 
maintenance expenditures incurred during refueling 
outages at the DAEC. As these revenues are col
lected, an equivalent amount is charged to other op
eration and maintenance expenses with a corre
sponding credit to the reserve. During a refueling 
outage, the reserve is reversed to offset the increased 
expenditures.

(i) Income Taxes 
Federal income tax expense includes provisions for 

deferred taxes to reflect the tax effects of timing dif
ferences between when certain costs are recorded in 
the accounts and are deducted for tax return pur
poses. As these timing differences reverse, the 
related accumulated deferred income taxes are 
reversed to income.  

Consistent with rate making practices, deferred 
taxes are not provided on certain timing differences.  
At December 31, 1988 Federal and state deferred 
income taxes have not been provided on cumulative 
net tax timing differences of $80,000,000 and 
$192,000,000, respectively. Iowa Electric believes 
that the income taxes payable in the future, due to 
the reversal of such timing differences, will be 
recovered through the rate making process.  

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96 
(SFAS 96) which establishes accounting and report
ing standards for the effects of income taxes. The 
Company is required to adopt the new accounting 
and disclosure requirements of SFAS 96 prior to 
1991. When adopted, the Company will record the 
cumulative effect of SFAS 96. Adjustments to 
accumulated deferred income taxes will be recorded 
for (1) additional deferred income tax liabilities not 
provided as a result of rate making practices and (2) 
the effects of income tax rate changes. It is expected 
that such adjustments will be essentially offset by 
regulatory assets and liabilities. Although the 
amount of such adjustments has not yet been deter
mined, the Company does not anticipate a significant 
impact on the Consolidated Statements of Income.  

Investment tax credits are utilized to offset Federal 
income taxes which otherwise would be currently 
payable. Such credits are deferred and are subse
quently credited to income over the lives of the 
property which gave rise to the credits.  

(j) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
The Company has adopted SFAS 95, "Statement of 

Cash Flows". Prior years Consolidated Statements of 
Changes in Financial Position have been reclassified 
to conform to the 1988 presentation.  

(2) Rate Matters: 

Tax Reform Act of 1986 
In order to reflect the effects of the Tax Reform Act 

of 1986, Iowa Electric filed with the IUB to reduce 
electric rates on an annual basis by $5.6 million; the 
reduction went into effect on July 1, 1987. Although 
the IUB allowed the reduction to be placed into 
effect, it rejected Iowa Electric's electric filing assert
ing that such rate reduction was deficient and should 
be approximately $3.0 million greater. Iowa Electric 
filed with the Iowa District Court for Linn County 
(Linn County District Court) for judicial review of the 
alleged deficiency. On June 28, 1988, the Linn
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County District Court issued an order which af
firmed the IUB order. Iowa Electric has appealed to 
the Iowa Supreme Court and a decision is not 
expected until mid-1989. Iowa Electric has reserved 
for the amount in dispute, including interest.  

1986 Electric Rate Case 
On April 25, 1986, Iowa Electric applied to the 

IUB for an electric rate increase to be charged to 
Iowa retail customers. Of the amount requested, 
$43.9 million on an annual basis, an interim in
crease of $19.2 million was allowed by the IUB 
effective July 24, 1986. On April 2, 1987, the IUB 
issued its final Order establishing rates based on an 
increase of $25.1 million. Such rates were placed 
into effect on May 8, 1987.  

In its Order, the IUB disallowed $5.2 million of 
AFC recorded for the cancelled Guthrie County 
generating station. The disallowed AFC, net of an 
amount reserved in prior years, was written-off in 
March, 1987 and is reflected in "Interest expense 
and other - Miscellaneous, net." The disallowance 
was based on an interpretation of state law regard
ing when construction began. Iowa Electric believes 
that the IUB is in error on this matter and has ap
pealed to the Iowa District Court for Polk County for 
relief from this finding. On September 30, 1988 the 
District Court issued an order affirming the IUB on 
this matter. Iowa Electric has filed a Notice of 
Appeal with the Iowa Supreme Court.  

The IUB Order did allow recovery of the remain
ing costs associated with cancelled generating 
projects, but without rate base treatment. In accor
dance with SFAS 90, Iowa Electric recorded an 
adjustment in March, 1987 to discount the future 
revenues associated with such costs. The cumula
tive effect of such discounting and pro forma effect 
on income, assuming the change would have been 
applied retroactively, are shown in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income for the year ended December 
31, 1987. The pro forma information presents the 
financial results which would have been experi
enced had Iowa Electric discounted the recoverable 
cancelled plant costs at the date of cancellation in 
February, 1986.  

The Office of Consumer Advocate filed a Notice of 
Appeal to the Iowa District Court for Polk County on 
certain issues including recovery of a portion of the 
coal contract termination costs, recovery of certain 
future nuclear decommissioning costs, and recovery 
of a portion of the cancelled Guthrie County gener
ating station costs. On September 30, 1988, the Polk 
County District Court issued its Order denying the 
Consumer Advocate's appeal and affirming the IUB 
on all matters. The Consumer Advocate has filed a 
Notice of Appeal with the Iowa Supreme Court.  
Iowa Electric believes the probability that the Con
sumer Advocate will be successful in its appeal is 
remote. Accordingly, no refund liabilities have 
been recorded.

1983 Electric Rate Case 
In August, 1988, the Iowa Supreme Court issued its 

Order affirming the IUB rate order as orginally issued 
and, as a result, no refund liabilities exist.  

(3) Leases: 

Iowa Electric has a nuclear fuel lease covering its 
70% undivided interest in the nuclear fuel purchased 
for the DAEC. Future purchases of fuel may also be* 
added to the fuel lease. This capital lease provides for 
annual one year extensions which Iowa Electric pres
ently intends to exercise to a date not later than De
cember 31, 2023. Interest costs under the lease are 
based on costs incurred by the lessor on commercial 
paper. Iowa Electric is responsible for the payment of 
taxes, maintenance, operating cost, risk of loss and 
insurance relating to the leased fuel.  

The lessor has a credit agreement with a bank sup
porting the nuclear fuel lease. The agreement is 
scheduled to terminate December 31, 1991, but will 
continue on a year to year basis unless either party 
provides at least a three year notice of termination.  
The maximum amount of financing available under 
the agreement is currently $80 million.  

Annual nuclear fuel lease expenses include the cost 
of fuel, based on the quantity of heat produced for the 
generation of electric energy, plus the lessor's interest 
costs related to fuel in the reactor and administrative 
expenses. These expenses (included in fuel for pro
duction) for 1988-1986 were $13,684,000, $11,541,000 
and $13,708,000, respectively.  

Iowa Electric is operating the Prairie Creek Generat
ing Station Units 1, 2 and 3, under a ten year capital 
lease agreement. Iowa Electric expects to purchase 
the units in 1989 for approximately $5,000,000. The 
lease payments (included in other operation expenses) 
for 1988-1986 were $1,101,000 annually.  

Operating lease rental expenses were $7,648,000, 
$7,852,000 and $7,444,000 for 1988-1986, respec
tively.  

Future minimum lease payments, which include the 
estimated annual expenses for fuel currently under 
Iowa Electric's nuclear fuel lease, are as follows:

Year 

1989 ......... ...........  
1990 ......... ...........  
1991 .....................  
1992 ...................  
1993 .....................  
1994-2005 ................  

Less: Amount 
representing interest ........  

Present value of 
net minimum lease 
obligations ...........

Capital Operating 
Leases Leases 

(in thousands) 
$ 15,598 $ 4,169 

12,607 3,633 
10,925 3,328 
11,511 3,175 
8,236 3,248 

44,875 29,631 
103,752 $47,184 

32,600 

$ 71,152
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(4) Income Taxes: 

Federal and state income taxes as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Income are comprised
of the following:

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986

Federal income taxes: 
Current ......................................................  
Deferred 
Unbilled revenues ..........................................................................................  
Coal contract term ination costs ....................................................................  
Plant abandonm ents ......................................................................................  
Refueling outage provision ...........................................................................  
Internal decom m issioning.............................................................................  
Depreciation...................................................................................................  
O th er ..............................................................................................................  
Prior years ......................................................................................................  

Investment tax credits 
Deferred .........................................................................................................  
Am ortization and other .................................................................................  

Total Federal incom e taxes ...................................................................  

State income taxes: 
Current .............................................................................................................  
Deferred 

Unbilled revenues .........................................................................................  
Coal contract term ination costs....................................................................  
Plant abandonm ents .....................................................................................  
Refueling outage provision ..........................................................................  
Internal decom m issioning ............................................................................  
Depreciation ..................................................................................................  
O th er .............................................................................................................  
Prior years .....................................................................................................  

Total state incom e taxes..........................................................................  
Total incom e taxes ..................................................................................  

Included in Consolidated Statements of Income as: 
Federal and state incom e taxes .......................................................................  
Cum ulative effects of changes in accounting principles ...............................

(in thousands) 

$12,671 $11,060 $11,786

(1,196) 
(3,142) 

(231) 
879 

1,313 
(1,503) 
(2,215) 

987 
(2,005) 
5,558

3,590 
(3,615) 

(676) 
2,058 

(6,176) 
6,700 
1,489 

(1,777) 

1,911 
(1,941) 
12,623

(963) 
3,998 

(2,067) 

3,561 
6,984 

(7,153) 

1,645 
(1,847) 
15,944

4,987 3,905 3,289

(273) 
(717) 

(53) 
240 

(395) 
(311) 
(323) 

3,155 
$ 8,713 

$ 8,713 

$ 8,713

817 
1,771 

681 
(223) 

(1,685) 
(484) 
846 

(259) 

5,369 
$17,992 

$14,570 
3,422 

$17,992

(484) 
666 

(833) 

2,638 
$18,582 

$18,582 

$18,582

The overall effective income tax rates shown below were computed by dividing total income tax expense by 
income before income taxes.  

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986

Statutory Federal income tax rate....................................................................  
Add (deduct): 

Allowance for funds used during construction.............................................  
Amortization of investment tax credits .........................................................  
Amortization through tariffs of certain accumulated 

deferred income taxes over five and seven years .......................................  
Preferred and preference dividend requirements of subsidiary ...................  
State income taxes, net of Federal benefits ..............................  
A djustm ent of prior period taxes ...................................................................  
Reversal through tariffs of deferred taxes provided at rates in excess, 

of the current statutory Federal income tax rate ........................................  
O th er item s, n et ..............................................................................................  

O verall effective incom e tax rate......................................................................

34.0% 

(1.2) 
(4.7) 

(6.9) 
1.3 
6.8 

(4.1) 

(3.5) 
(1.4) 

20.3%

40.0% 46.0%

(0.9) 
(3.7) 

(6.3) 
1.4 
5.1 

(2.1) 

(.8) 
1.9 

34.6%

(2.3) 
(4.0) 

(7.5) 
3.3 
4.0 

(1.4) 

1.3 

39.4%

I--- I
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(5) Retirement Plan: 

The Company has a non-contributory retirement 
plan which covers substantially all of its employees.  
Plan benefits are based on years of service and com
pensation during the employees' latter years of em
ployment. Payments made from the pension fund to 
retired employees and beneficiaries during 1988 
totaled $5,727,000.  

The Company's policy is to expense and fund the 
pension cost determined using the frozen entry age 
actuarial cost method, provided that this amount is at 
least equal to the minimum funding requirements

mandated by the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act (ERISA) and does not exceed the maxi
mum tax deductible amount for the year.  

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 87 
effective January 1, 1987. However, Industries' major 
subsidiary is Iowa Electric, a public utility subject to 
the provisions of SFAS 71. Therefore, certain adjust
ments are necessary in order to reflect the amount of 
annual pension cost allowed in Iowa Electric's most 
recent rate case.  

The components of the 1988 and 1987 pension 
provision are as follows:

1988

Service cost..........................................................................................................................  
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation......................................................................  
Assumed return on plan assets (actual return on plan assests were $10,603,000 

and $4,723,000, respectively) .........................................................................................  
Am ortization of unrecognized plan asset as of January 1, 1987 .......................................  
SFAS 87 pension cost .........................................................................................................  
Adjustm ent to funding level...............................................................................................  
Total pension costs paid to the Trustee .............................................................................

1987
(in thousands)

$2,142 $2,226 
5,854 5,558

(6,527) 
(261) 

1,208 
1,433 

$2,641

(6,449) 
(261) 

1,074 

$2,516

Total pension cost paid to the Trustee was $2,786,000 for 1986.  

A reconciliation of the funded status of the Plan under SFAS 87 to the amounts recognized in the Consoli
dated Balance Sheets is presented below:

Fair m arket value of plan assets .........................................................................................  
Actuarial present value of benefits rendered to date 
Accumulated benefits based on compensation to date, including 

vested benefits of $55,839,000 and $52,893,000, respectively ....................................  
Additional benefits based on estimated future salary levels ..........................................  
Projected benefit obligation ..............................................................................................  

Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation .........................................................  
Remaining unrecognized net asset existing at 

January 1, 1987, being amortized over 20 years .............................................................  
U nrecognized net gain ........................................................................................................  
Prepaid pension cost recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.............................  

A ssum ed rate of return .......................................................................................................  

Weighted average discount rate of projected benefit obligation .......................................  

Assumed rate of increase in future compensation levels..................................................

In addition to providing pension benefits, the 
Company provides certain health care benefits for 
retired employees. The costs of such benefits are

December 31 
1988 1987 

(in thousands)

$91,168 $83,650

62,876 
17,429 
80,305 
10,863 

(4,695) 
(3,293) 

$ 2,875 

8.00% 

7.75% 

5.75%

58,436 
13,420 
71,856 
11,794 

(4,956) 
(5,396) 

$ 1,442 

8.00% 

8.25% 

5.75%

expensed as claims are paid. Such costs totaled 
$1,134,000, $914,000 and $754,000 for 1988-1986, 
respectively.
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(6) Changes in Outstanding Shares of Common Stock: 

The following table presents information relating to the issuance of common stock:

Common Stock

Number of 
Shares

Balance, Decem ber 31, 1985 ..............................................................................  
Stock plan issuances* ...................................................................................  

Balance, Decem ber 31, 1986 ..............................................................................  
Stock plan issuances* ...................................................................................  

Balance, Decem ber 31, 1987..............................................................................  
Stock plan issuances* .................................................................................  

Balance, Decem ber 31, 1988 ..............................................................................

13,172,893 
375,548 

13,548,441 
334,720 

13,883,161 
280,888 

14,164,049

Amount 
(in thousands) 

$171,472 
8,106 

179,578 
7,805 

187,383 
6,257 

$193,640

* Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Employees' Stock Ownership Plan 
** Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Long-Term Incentive Plan of 1987 

Shares reserved for issuance pursuant to the stock plans totaled 1,478,438 at December 31, 1988.

(7) Preferred and Preference Stock: 

Industries has 5,000,000 shares of Cumulative 
Preferred Stock, no par value, authorized for issu
ance, of which none is issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 1988.  

The 6.10%, 4.80% and 4.30% Series of lowa 
Electric Cumulative Preferred Stock are redeemable 
at the option of Iowa Electric upon 30 days' notice at 
$51.00, $50.25 and $51.00 per share, respectively, 
plus accrued dividends.

Iowa Electric Cumulative Preference Stock aggre
gating $2,000,000 in both 1988 and 1987 and 
$4,094,000 in 1986 was redeemed at par under 
mandatory and optional sinking fund provisions.  
Annual sinking fund redemptions of $1,000,000 will 
be required in 1989-1993. The Series 8.55% is 
redeemable at the option of Iowa Electric upon 30 
days' notice at $104.28 through October 1, 1993 and 
at $102.14 thereafter.
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(8) Long-Term Debt: 

Iowa Electric's Indenture securing its First Mort
gage Bonds constitutes a direct first mortgage lien 
upon substantially all tangible public utility property 
of Iowa Electric.

Total sinking fund requirements and debt maturi
ties for 1989-1993 are as follows. The table pertains 
to Iowa Electric unless otherwise noted.

Sinking Fund 
Year Requirements* Debt Issue

Debt Maturities 

Maturity Date

Pollution Control 
Other Subsidiaries' 

Debt 
Pollution Control 
Other Subsidiaries' 

Debt 
Series I 
Series 0 
Pollution Control 
Other Subsidiaries' 

Debt 
Pollution Control 
Other Subsidiaries' 

Debt 
Industries' Series 

1986 Debentures 
Pollution Control 
Other Subsidiaries' 

Debt

11/1/89 

Various 
11/1/90 

Various 
1/1/91 
7/1/91 

11/1/91 

Various 
11/1/92 

Various 

9/1/93 
11/1/93 

Various

$ 600,000 

1,794,000** 
600,000 

4,122,000** 
16,000,000 

790,000 
600,000 

197,000 
600,000 

197,000 

45,000,000 
600,000 

2,121,000

* Includes annual sinking fund requirements of $1,210,000 for 1989 and $1,050,000 for the years 1990-1993 which, by 
terms of the Indenture under which Series I, J, K, L, M and R Bonds have been issued, may be satisfied by the pledging of 
additional property. Iowa Electric intends to meet the 1989 requirements for these issues by this means.  

** Company intends to refinance the majority of this debt with long-term debt.  

The Series P, Q and U Bonds secure the obligation of Iowa Electric with respect to three series of pollution 
control revenue bonds issued by three Iowa municipalities.  

(9) Short-Term Borrowings: which $24,800,000 was being used to support com
mercial paper. Commitment fees are paid to maintain 

At December 31, 1988, Industries had an unused these lines. There are no contractual restrictions 
line of credit in the amount of $10,000,000. Iowa placed on the withdrawal of these funds.  
Electric had lines of credit totaling $51,000,000, of

(10) Commitments and Contingencies: 

Construction Program 
The Company's construction program for 1989 

anticipates expenditures aggregating approximately 
$60,000,000 for which substantial commitments have 
been made.  

Long-Term Power Purchase Contract 
Iowa Electric has a power purchase contract, as 

amended, with the City of Muscatine, Iowa for 
capacity purchases of 90 Mw through May, 1991

and 70 Mw for the final two years ending May, 1993.  
The cost of such capacity purchases, along with Iowa 
Electric's proportionate share of operating and main
tenance costs, are reflected in purchased power in 
the Consolidated Statements of Income and will ap
proximate $30,000,000 in 1989.  

Nuclear Fuel 
In September, 1985, the U.S. District Court in 

Colorado issued a decision holding that the Depart
ment of Energy's (DOE) Utility Services Contract 
which provides for the enrichment of uranium fuel

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993

Amount

$2,243,000 

2,083,000 

1,050,000 

1,050,000 

1,050,000

Total

$4,637,000 

6,805,000 

18,637,000 

1,847,000

48,771,000
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.0

for U.S. nuclear power plants violates the DOE's ura
nium enrichment criteria and is "null and void." That 
ruling was ultimately appealed to the U.S. Supreme 
Court and on August 4, 1988, that Court issued its 
decision which allows the DOE to enrich foreign 
supplied uranium pending matters remanded to the 
District Court. On February 1, 1989, the District Court 
ordered the matters dismissed without prejudice. The 
Company believes the probability of new litigation 
being filed is remote.  

In January, 1988, Iowa Electric took delivery of 
foreign uranium hexaflouride for future processing 
into nuclear fuel. Such quantities are expected to 
fulfill Iowa Electric's nuclear fuel requirements 
through 1994.  

Nuclear Insurance Programs 
The Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988 

(1988 Act) provides Iowa Electric with the benefit of 
$7.3 billion of public liability coverage consisting of 
$200,000,000 of insurance and $7.1 billion of poten
tial retroactive assessments from the owners of each 
nuclear power plant.  

Pursuant to provisions in various nuclear insurance 
policies, Iowa Electric could be assessed retroactive 
premiums in connection with a future accident at a 
nuclear facility owned by a utility participating in the 
particular insurance plan. Under the 1988 Act, Iowa 
Electric could be assessed a maximum of $63,000,000 
per nuclear incident, with a maximum of $10,000,000 
per year (of which Iowa Electric's 70% ownership 
portion would be $44,100,000 and $7,000,000, respec
tively), if losses relating to the accidents exceeded 
$200,000,000. With respect to excess property damage 
and replacement power coverages, Iowa Electric could 
be assessed a maximum of $5,000,000 and $929,000, 
respectively, if the insurer's losses relating to an 
accident exceeded its reserves. No such assessments 
have been made under these policy provisions.  

IRS Audit 
Iowa Electric's Federal income tax returns for the 

years 1982-1984 were audited by the Internal Revenue 
Service. The Revenue Agent's Report includes certain 
proposed adjustments with which Iowa Electric 
disagrees. The most significant proposed adjustment 
relates to payments made in 1984 for the termination 
of a coal contract. The agent has.disallowed a deduc
tion in that year, contending that an intangible asset 
was created by the payments. Iowa Electric disagrees 
with that position and has filed a protest with the 
District Director of Internal Revenue in Des Moines, 
Iowa. Iowa Electric believes that it will be successful 
and the proposed adjustment will be dismissed.  
Should this adjustment be upheld, Iowa Electric 
would not anticipate a material adverse impact on the 
income statement. The contested tax amounts have 
been deferred and such deferrals would be credited to 
income at the time the current tax liability would be 
recorded. There would, however, be a significant

impact on cash flow since Iowa Electric would have 
to pay a tax assessment of approximately $9 million 
for the three year period as well as interest.  

(11) Deferred Charges: 

Coal Contract Termination 
In 1984 and 1985, Iowa Electric terminated coal 

contracts with two suppliers at a cost of $27,511,000.  
The termination payments are being recovered in 
rates; the retail portion over a four year period com
mencing in 1987. Recovery of related interest costs 
and inclusion of the unrecorded costs in rate base 
was disallowed by the IUB. At December 31, 1988, 
unamortized coal contract termination costs were 
$11,683,000.  

Cancelled Plant 
The costs of cancelled plant ($11,252,000) are 

being amortized over 10 years, commencing in 1987, 
as they are collected in rates. Refer to Note 2 for 
more information. At December 31, 1988, unamor
tized costs of cancelled plant were $9,401,000.  

(12) Guarantees: 

At December 31, 1988, Industries or its subsidiary, 
Iowa Electric, have guaranteed $1,339,000 of loans 
primarily in connection with economic development 
activities.  

(13) Jointly-Owned Electric Utility Plant: 

Under joint ownership agreements with other Iowa 
utilities. Iowa Electric has undivided ownership 
interests in two electric generating stations and 
related transmission facilities. Each of the respective 
owners was responsible for the issuance of its own 
securities to finance its portion of the construction 
costs. Kilowatt-hour generation and operating 
expenses are divided on the same basis as ownership 
with each owner reflecting its respective costs in its 
Statements of Income. Information relative to Iowa 
Electric's ownership interest in these facilities at 
December 31, 1988 is as follows: 

Ottumwa 
DAEC Unit 1 

(in thousands)

Utility plant in service ............  
Accumulated depreciation .....  
Construction work in progress 
Plant capacity - Mw ...........  

Iowa Electric's share ...............  
In-service date .........................

$392,582 
$129,767 
$ 13,962 

500 
70% 

1974

$62,110 
$14,832 
$ 119 

675 

15% 
1981
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(14) Segments of Business: 

The principal subsidiary of Industries is Iowa Elec- and in the purchase, distribution and sale of natural 
tric, a utility engaged primarily in the generation, gas. Certain financial information relating to Indus
transmission, distribution and sale of electric energy tries' segments of business is presented below: 

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986 

(in thousands) 

Operating results: 
Revenues 

Electric......................................................$314,769 $303,491 $285,448 
Gas .......................................................... 102,524 90,401 125,441 
Railroad ................. . ........................... ........ 10,689 10,270 11,037 

Operating income 
Electric.......................................................$61,191 $64,185 $55,851 
Gas ..................... . ......................... ......... (2,349) 3,605 9,112 
Railroad ................ . ........................... .......... 4,283 4,590 5,818 

Other information: 
Depreciation 

Electric....................................................... $35,774 $29,159 $31,758 
Gas ............................................................ 2,105 2,048 2,021 
Railroad ................. . ........................... ......... 165 157 146 

Construction expenditures 
Electric....................................................... $54,255 $41,045 $34,788 
Gas ......................... .......................... ........ 2,735 2,729 1,843 
R ailroad ......................................................................................................... 1,788 1,696 835 

Assets
Identifiable assets* 

Electric........................................................................................................ $751,325 $691,110 $689,327 
G as .............................................................................................................. 55,00 5 58,622 54 ,152 
R ailroad ...................................................................................................... 21,414 25,285 22,090 

827,744 775,017 765,569 
Other corporate assets ..................................................................................... 129,122 90,045 85,641 

Total consolidated assets.............................................................................. $956,866 $865,062 $851,210 

* Includes net utility plant, leased nuclear fuel, production fuel, materials and supplies, and other identifiable assets.
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'A Selected Consolidated Financial Data 

1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 
Income statement data (000's): 

Operating revenue ................................... $438,252 $412,778 $429,245 $461,798 $476,706 $452,925 
Operating income .................................... 63,908 72,799 72,271 56,286 71,966 66,334 
Net income............................................... 34,154 29,529* 28,536 19,056 30,023 23,289 

Common stock data: 
Average number of shares 

outstanding (000's) ................................ 14,053 13,748 13,408 12,973 12,445 10,901 
Earnings per average common share ...... $ 2.43 $ 2.14* $ 2.13 $ 1.47 $ 2.41 $ 2.14 
Return on average common equity ......... 12.9% 11.8%* 12.0% 8.2% 13.5% 11.6% 
Dividends declared per common share.. $ 2.025 $ 1.99 $ 1.95 $ 1.91 $ 1.855 $ 1.795 
Annual dividend rate at end of year ....... 2.04 2.02 1.98 1.94 1.90 1.84 
Market price per common share 

at year-end............................................. 22.63 22.63 23.38 20.75 18.00 14.88 
Book value per common share 

at year-end............................................. 19.13 18.63 17.99 17.73 18.16 17.75 
Ratio of market price to book value 

at year-end ............................................. 118% 121% 130% 117% 98% 84% 

Capitalization (000,000's): 
Common equity ....................................... $271 45 $259 47 $244 46 $234 43 $230 45 $215 43 
Preferred and preference stock ............... 24 4 26 4 28 5 51 10 55 11 57 11 
Long-term debt......................................... 303 51 230 49 265 49 252 47 220 44 233 46 

$598 100 $515 100 $537 100 $537 100 $505 100 $505 100 

Other selected financial data: 
Total assets (000's) ..... $........... 956,866 $865,062 $ 851,210 $ 850,918 $831,202 $800,049 
Investments in diversified companies .... 86,305 53,969 43,945 40,158 19,458 14,247 
Construction expenditures 

including AFC (000's) ........................... $ 65,271 $ 52,887 $ 42,618 $ 47,866 $ 39,404 $ 48,110 
Percent of construction expenditures 

financed internally from operations .... 54% 65% 100% 72% 100% 99% 
Times interest earned 

before income taxes ................... 2.60 3.06 3.00 2.32 3.04 2.74 
Number of Iowa Electric preferred 

and preference shareholders ................ 2,070 2,161 2,222 2,802 3,006 3,121 
Number of common shareholders........... 26,353 27,414 29,869 32,348 32,805 31,768 

*Before cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles.  

Selected Financial Data-10 
1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983

Utility plant in service (000's) 
Electric ................................................. $ 943,541 $ 905,252 $870,818 $838,139 $787,500 $764,696 
Gas ....................................................... 72,010 70,842 -70,785 71,126 69,586 67,173 
Other..................................................... 31,586 27,639 22,761 22,512 20,021 14,902 

$1047137 $1,003,733 $964,364 $931,777 $877,107 $846,771 

Accumulated depreciation (000's) .......... $ 410,178 $ 378,635 $354,641 $332,783 $303,233 $275,500 
Ratio of accumulated depreciation to 

utility plant in service .......................... 39% 38% 37% 36% 35% 33' 
AFC as a percent of net income .............. 4% 3% 8% 9% 4% 14' 
Times interest earned 

before income taxes .............................. 2.65 3.21 3.10 2.32 3.05 2.74 
Construction expenditures 

including AFC (000's) ........................... $61,944 $47,649 $40,111 $45,427 $38,793 $47,874 
Percent of construction expenditures 

financed internally from operations .... 56% 69% 100% 69% 100% 94 %
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Electric Operating Comparison- 10, 

Five Year 
Compound 

Rate of 
1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 Growth 

Operating revenue (000's): 
Residential ..................................... $121,488 $114,395 $100,067 $ 99,309 $ 98,882 $ 92,229 
Rural ............................................... 17,139 16,826 16,801 16,858 17,233 16,106 
Commercial .................................... 90,230 87,996 86,111 86,059 89,500 83,019 
Industrial........................................ 67,179 66,448 65,537 70,562 73,629 66,332 
Street lighting and 
public authorities ........................ 4,229 4,26 4,161 4,346 4,367 4,15 
Total from ultimate consumers . 300,265 289,933 272,677 277,134 283,611 261,836 

Sales for resale ............................... 13,415 12,556 11,641 13,282 12,883 13,447 
Other............................................... 1,089 1,002 1,130 1,208 1,044 911 

$314,769 $303,491 $285,448 $291,624 $297,538 $276,194 

Energy sales (000's Kwh): 
Residential ..................................... 1,313,852 1,232,622 1,215,722 1,174,150 1,209,678 1,272,030 0.6% 
Rural ............................................... 201,877 193,908 213,431 208,491 210,958 212,775 (1.1) 
Commercial .................................... 1,223,644 1,143,103 1,118,493 1,072,674 1,071,934 1,066,847 2.8 
Industrial........................................ 1,579,569 1,485,476 1,440,276 1,391,573 1,365,959 1,290,168 4.1 
Street lighting and 
public authorities ......................... 52,550 50,572 48,643 51,117 52,952 55,030 (0.9) 
Total to ultimate consumers ...... 4,371,492 4,105,681 4,036,565 3,898,005 3,911,481 3,896,850 2.3 

Sales for resale ............................... 332,837 312,324 307,759 296,629 294,047 322,436 0.6 
4,704,329 4,418,005 4,344,324 4,194,634 4,205,528 4,219,286 2.2 

Sources of electric energy (000's Kwh): 
Generated 

Fossil, primarily coal ................. 1,900,288 1,946,916 1,844,564 1,524,106 1,079,576 1,608,895 
Nuclear ....................................... 2,214,243 1,766,319 2,095,334 1,348,821 1,889,865 1,615,878 
Hydro .......................................... 3,300 5,153 5,595 3,892 5,517 6,309 

4,117,831 3,718,388 3,945,493 2,876,819 2,974,958 3,231,082 
Purchased and net interchange ..... 991,713 1,076,115 751,634 1,705,08 1,588,61 1,377,310 

5,109,544 4,794,503 4,697,127 4,581,899 4,563,573 4,608,392 

Operating statistics: 
Heat rate 

(Btu per Kwh generated) ............ 11,409 11,359 11,212 11,495 11,657 11,591 
Net capability at time of 

peak load (Kw) 
Net generating capability 

Steam stations 
Nuclear* ................................. 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 
Fossil ...................................... 535,250 513,750 540,750 541,250 492,250 491,250 

Peaking turbines and others .... 167,300 155,900 155,900 156,500 155,900 157,800 
1,052,550 1,019,650 1,046,650 1,047,750 998,150 999,050 

Purchase capability .................. 90,000 90,00 100,00 100,00 149,00 201,25 
1,142,550 1,109,650 1,146,650 1,147,750 1,147,150 1,200,300 

Net peak load (Kw) - - - - - _ 

60 minutes integrated ................ 1,031,185 978,322 953,926 922,190 966,935 985,456 0.9% 

Number of customers at year-end... 206,935 206,354 206,007 205,959 204,712 204,460 0.2% 

Residential and rural service: 
Average number of customers ....... 176,079 175,693 175,502 175,221 175,039 174,002 
Average annual Kwh sales 

per customer................................. 8,608 8,169 8,143 7,891 8,116 8,533 
Revenue per Kwh sold................... 9.150 9.200 8.181 8.400 8.170 7.300 
Average annual revenue 

per customer ............................... $787.30 $751.46 $665.91 $662.98 $663.37 $622.60 

* Represents Iowa Electric's 70% undivided interest in the Duane Arnold Energy Center which is operated by Iowa Electric.
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4. 1 * Gas Operating Comparison- -I8

Five Year 
Compound 

Rate of 
1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 Growth 

Operating revenues (000's): 
Residential ................................. $ 52,871 $45,245 $ 59,153 $ 68,719 $ 73,089 $ 71,202 

,Commercial - firm ....................... 22,403 18,475 23,986 27,466 28,995 28,123 
- interruptible.......... 7,211 6,086 8,433 11,032 12,055 12,041 

Industrial - firm ........................... 4,107 3,883 11,961 16,324 17,868 19,815 
- interruptible ............. 14,698 14,455 21,037 30,968 31,456 29,999 

Total from ultimate consumers ... 101,290 88,144 124,570 154,509 163,463 161,180 
Other............................................... 1,049 2,026 588 461 433 1,046 

$102,339 $90170 $125,158 $154,970 $163,896 $162,226 

Energy sales (000's dekatherms): 
Residential ..................................... 11,680 10,166 12,092 13,147 13,444 13,015 (2.2)% 
Commercial - firm ....................... 5,046 4,301 5,160 5,514 5,575 5,374 (1.3) 

- interruptible.......... 2,236 2,059 2,374 2,713 2,838 2,840 (4.7) 
Industrial - firm............................ 607 626 3,474 4,293 4,842 5,186 (34.9) 

- interruptible ............. 5,490 5,699 6,731 8,261 7,986 7,697 (7.0) 
Total sales..................................... 25,059 22,851 29,831 33,928 34,685 34,112 (6.5) 

Industrial - transported volumes 5,703 4,440 682 - - 100+ 
Total volumes delivered .............. 30,762 27,291 30,513 33,928 34,685 34,112 (2.1) 

Operating statistics: 
Gas purchased for resale 

(000's dekatherms) ....................... 24,920 23,271 28,954 34,507 34,125 34,894 
Cost of gas purchased for 
resale (000's) ................................. $ 83,372 $71,995 $ 99,867 $133,394 $136,603 $140,844 

Cost per dekatherm of gas 
purchased for resale ..................... $ 3.35 $ 3.09 $ 3.45 $ 3.87 $ 4.00 $ 4.04 

Sendout capability at time of 
peak demand (dekatherms) ......... 218,224 251,211 263,986 261,291 261,291 261,221 

Peak daily sendout (dekatherms) .. 217,869 195,682 220,836 264,772 246,384 272,727 (4.4)% 

Number of customers at year-end... 121,919 122,351 126,951 132,986 133,165 132,587 (1.5)% 

Residential service: 
Average number of customers ....... 105,363 107,921 110,480 114,372 114,316 113,603 
Average annual dekatherm sales 
per custom er................................. 111 95 109 115 118 115 

Revenue per dekatherm sold ......... $ 4.53 $ 4.39 $ 4.89 $ 5.23 $ 5.44 $ 5.47 
Average annual revenue 
per customer................................. $ 501.80 $ 417.87 $ 535.42 $ 600.84 $ 639.36 $ 626.77 

Annual Report 
This report is published to provide general information concerning the Company and is not in connection with any sale, 

offer for sale or solicitation of any offer to buy any securities.  
The statements in this report are furnished solelyfor your information. The facts and figures presented, while accepted by 

the management as reliable in the operations of the property, are not, however, guaranteed by us against inaccuracy or 
omission of material fact and are not furnished by us nor to be used by you in any way which implies liability on our part or 
on the part of our officers and directors in connection with your dealings in the securities of this Company. The purpose of 
this paragraph is to protect you and this Company against any liability that may occur under any State or Federal Securities 
Act.
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Assistant Secretary 
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Power Company 
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Chairman of the Board, 
President and Chief 
Executive Officer 

J. B. Rehnstrom (58-29) 
Senior Vice President-Finance 
and Secretary 
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Senior Vice President
Operations and Production 
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Vice President and Treasurer 
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Vice President-Corporate 
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Vice President and 
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Shareholder Information

Shareholder 
Information 
Annual Meeting 

The annual meeting of the 
shareholders will be held at 2:00 
p.m., Central Daylight Time on 
ftesday, May 23, 1989 at the ie: 

Tower, 6th floor, 200 First Street 
S.E. in Cedar Rapids, Iowa. A 
proxy statement with respect to 
this meeting will be mailed on 
April 11, 1989. All common 
shareholders are cordially 
invited to attend. However, those 
who are unable to attend in 
person are urged to promptly 
sign and return their proxy.  
Stock Exchange Listing 

IE Industries Inc. common 
stock is listed on the New York 
Stock Exchange under the 
symbol IEL. Newspaper listings 
often use the.symbol IE IND.  
General Inquiries 

Shareholder inquiries, includ
ing the replacement of dividend 
checks, address changes, transfer 
or reissuance of stock certifi
cates, and requests from the 
general public for any financial 
publications may be directed to: 

IE Industries Inc.  
Attn: Shareholder Services 
P.O. Box 351 
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 52406 
1-800-247-9785 or 319-398
7755 

Where to Buy and Sell Stock 
Common stock may be pur

chased and sold privately or on 
the open market through a bro
kerage firm. A shareholder 
enrolled in the Company's Divi
dend Reinvestment and Stock 
Purchase Plan can purchase 
additional common stock with 
no brokerage fees through the op
tional cash feature of the Plan.  

Shares held in the Dividend 
Rfzinvestment and Stock Pur
chase Plan can be sold through 
the Plan Administrator upon 
written request of the share
holder, who will receive all 
proceeds of the sale less any 
brokerage commission.

Dividend Reinvestment and 
Stock Purchase Plan 

The Company has a Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Pur
chase Plan which allows share
holders to automatically rein
vest their cash dividends in ad
ditional shares of commonstock.  
The First National Bank of 
Chicago acts as the Plan Admin
istrator. A prospectus describing 
the Plan can be obtained by 
writing to Shareholder Services.  
Duplicate Accounts 
and Mailings 

Shareholders sometimes 
receive more than one Annual 
Report because shares owned by 
one shareholder may be regis
tered with slight variations in 
names. The Company is re
quired to mail an Annual Report 
to each name on the shareholder 
list unless the shareholder re
quests that duplicates be elimi
nated. To eliminate duplicate 
mailings, please send a written 
request to Shareholder Services.  
Dividend Payment Dates 

Scheduled Dividend Payment 
and Record Dates for 1989 are:

Record Dates 
March 10, 1989 
June 16, 1989 
Sept. 15, 1989 
Dec. 15, 1989

Payment Dates 
April 1, 1989 
July 1, 1989 
Oct. 1, 1989 
Jan. 1, 1990

Transfer Agents 
The First National Bank 

of Chicago 
Chicago, Illinois 

The Merchants National Bank 
of Cedar Rapids 
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 

IE Industries 
Common Stock 

Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company 

Preferred and 
Preference Stock 

Registrars 
The First National Bank of 

. Chicago.  
Chicago, Illinois 

Norwest Bank Cedar Rapids, 
N.A.  
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 

IE Industries 
Common Stock 

Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company 

Preferred and 
Preference Stock 

Trustee 
The First National Bank of 

Chicago 
Chicago, Illinois 

IE Industries 
Indenture 

Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company

Dividends paid on common 
stock in 1988 were fully taxable 
for federal income tax purposes.  
1988 Form 10-K Available 
on Request 

The Company files annually 
with the Securities and Ex
change Commission an Annual 
Report Form 10-K. This required 
report contains certain other in
formation not made a part of 
this report. The Company will 
be happy to send you a copy of 
our 1988 Form 10-K without 
charge. Requests should be 
made to Shareholder Services.
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